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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO THE REGULAR STO CKHOLDERS’
MEETING HELD ON MARCH 17, 2015

To the Stockholders,

As required by law, we have called this stockhadtdeneeting to approve the financial
statements for fiscal year 2014.

OPERATIONS

This fiscal year was characterized by a lack afesson the part of CRH due not only to the
low level of refinancing applications from bankd biso and above all to the implementation of the
new European regulations, which do not take intmant the specific nature of CRH’s refinancing
operations. It was also characterized by the stiesting exercise carried out by the European
authorities.

The total loans granted to banks by CRH betweeesitsblishment and December 31, 2014
therefore remained at EUR 90.5 billion, the samellas at the end of 2013.

After taking into account the final contractual pagnt on the 4.25% borrowing — October 25,
2014 for the amount of EUR 4.1 billion — the nonhinalue of outstanding loans at
December 31, 2014 totaled EUR 47.6 billion (comg@avéh EUR 51.7 billion at December 31, 2013
and EUR 53.9 billion at December 31, 2012).

In addition, no contractual early repayments weaglen

Total assets amounted to EUR 49.1 billion at De@mmBl, 2014 (compared with
EUR 53.1 billion at December 31, 2013 and EUR H#llbn at December 31, 2012).

RESULTS, FINANCIAL POSITION, AND DEBT

In accordance with the provisions of Article L. 2280 of the French Commercial Code
(Code de Commerkean analysis of the Company’s results, finanpiasition, and debt must be
prepared.

Since January 1, 2007, in accordance with the pravs of Regulation no. 2005-01 of the
French Accounting Regulations Committggo(nité de la Réglementation Comptablmortgage
notes have been recognized as assets at theirsaioguiprice and the difference between the
acquisition price and the face value of the montgagtes is spread over time using an actuarial
method. Bonds are recognized as liabilities udnggsame rule.

a) Results:
Funding transactions, i.e. lending, borrowing aegdayments, have no direct impact on

earnings. CRH does not charge an interest margihese transactions, and lends all capital raised
on financial markets to its stockholders at theesaates and with the same maturities.



As a result, CRH’s earnings represent the incomm fstockholders’ equity invested on the
money market, net of general and administrativeeegps and interest paid to stockholders on
subordinated loans.

At EUR 4.3 million, financial income was lower th#dre previous year due to a reduction in
the average investment return rate.

Interest on subordinated loans totaled EUR 0.9ianiltompared with EUR 2.1 million in
2013.

General and administrative expenses, which totalgl 2.6 million, were at about the same
level as in 2013.

Net income after taxes came to EUR 0.5 million cared with EUR 0.6 million in 2013.
It is recommended to the Stockholders’ Meeting titadividend be paid.
b) Financial position:

CRH'’s stockholders’ equity, now exclusively consigtof Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
(CET1), totaled EUR 564 million at December 31,420Ilhe capital increase carried out in June 2014
increased the capital stock from EUR 300 millioietdR 540 million.

Of this capital increase, EUR 184 million was paig through an offset against the
subordinated loans and EUR 62 million was paidhupugh a cash contribution.

The capital adequacy ratio at December 31, 201eleded in accordance with the provisions
of the Capital Requirements Regulation (CRR), cam#0.19% excluding transitional provisions
and to 11.04% in accordance with the transitiomavigions of Article 496-3.

In the absence of additional capital, the Commouityier 1(CET1) capital adequacy ratio
came to the same level, i.e. 10.19% and 11.04%ctsply.

CRH intends in the near future to amend its Ariab¢ Incorporation and internal rules and
regulations to give itself the ability — in compiie with the law and banking regulations and subjec
to the agreement of the authorities — to carrycapital reductions, provided they are not as altresu
of losses, if its capital adequacy ratio becomghdr than the required level.



Table summarizing those delegations of authoritgnted by the Stockholders’ Regular
Meeting to the Board of Directors for the purposégapital increases, that remain valid and the
utilization made of said delegations during thedlsyear:

Stockholders’| Purpose of the delegation Amount Term Utilization Unutilized
Meeting of authority given to made during amount
Resolution the Board of Directors the fiscal year
2014
Stockholders’| After cancellation of any Maximum nominal| 5 yearq €240,187,500.0p €60,005,257.75
Meeting of | previous delegation of amount of capital
March 11, authority for the purposes of increase authorized:
2014 capital increases, to increasg€300,192,757.75

4" resolution | the capital stock by the issu¢
of ordinary stock units

c) Debt:

CRH does not borrow for its own account but on Hebgbanks, which contribute the
amounts required to service the debt when thedsteand principal payments become due. CRH
therefore does not have to generate operatingft@agto service and amortize its debt. As a result,
an analysis of its debt is of only limited signértce.

RESULTS OF THE AQR AND STRESS TESTS ON CRH

The presentation of these results on October 264 2@s in complete contrast to information
previously provided to CRH and, in addition, gase ito inappropriate comments in the press.

The exercise known as the “comprehensive assessmeoltved:

- a review of the quality of bank assets, the “A<3aality Review” (AQR), based on the
banks’ position at the end of 2013;

- then, on the basis of the position adjusted essalt of the AQR, an examination of the
resilience of banks under two stress test scendhniesbaseline scenario” and the “adverse scehario

Under the baseline scenario, the Common Equity T{&ET1) capital adequacy ratio must
be equal to or greater than 8%; under the advems®aso, the ratio must be equal to or greater than
5.50%.

The parameters and assumptions applied to CRHtwergame as those applied to the major
European banks. The constant balance sheet assampés particularly inappropriate for an
institution like CRH, which is a pure debt instrumeMoreover, this assumption failed to take
account of the significant contraction of CRH’sdrade sheet between December 2013 and December
2016 due to the repayment of significant amountbafowings having reached their contractual
maturity.



1. Asset quality review

In this context, CRH’s accounting procedures anthous were reviewed, following which
CRH was not required to recognize any asset impgautmprovisions. It is important to stress that this
situation was unusual amongst those European btratswere subject to the comprehensive
assessment.

2. The tests

The exercise did not therefore take into accountiSGRforementioned capital increase, the
aim of which was to enable it to comply with thevneapital adequacy standards to which it is now
subject.

The only measurement considered was the CET1atbecember 31, 2013 of 5.74% (within
a total ratio of 9.17%). This level, which is highttan the minimum requirement of 4.5 %, was
accepted until that date by the authorities becatitee security of the CRH mechanism and the fact
that its ultimate risk, relating to the home-pursh#ans pledged to CRH, is already covered in the
balance sheets of the banks concerned.

a) Baseline scenario:

Given the initial value calculated at 5.74%, follag the stress test the CETL1 ratio could not
possibly reach the minimum level set in this cas#s, even with an extremely low stress impact of
negative 0.06% on this ratio. This situation wasiobsly not identified during the exercise. The
French Banking Regulator, the ACPRuforité de Contrdle Prudentiel et de Résolutidrgd asked
CRH at the end of December 2013 to increase itdatgmecisely because new capital adequacy
standards were going to be applied to it.

b) Adverse scenario:

Despite the ratio’s initial value of 5.74%, CRH ped the most difficult test with a stress test
impact on the CET1 ratio of only negative 0.22%dentining the considerable resilience of its
mechanism — one of the strongest of the Europeakstihat were subject to the test exercise. Indeed,
the median impact of the adverse stress scenatibeo@ET 1 ratio for all these banks was negative
4.00%.

3. Presentation of the results on October 26, 2014

The designation by the European Authorities, is gresentation, of CRH as the only French
bank to have failed this exercise is not expeabeldalve a significant impact on the markets, other
than reputational damage, which will affect onlyK:R

It is important to note, moreover, that investosasidered the results of the comprehensive

assessment to be inappropriate in the case of @Ri¢h has not therefore suffered from adverse
investor reaction. There continues to be significeemand from investors for further CRH issues.
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Nevertheless, the fact that CRH was deemed to fadlee an exercise aimed at assessing the
resilience of banks was unexpected:

- From a technical point of view, as explained ay®ince CRH has demonstrated, de facto,
via these tests, that it is one of the most retili@ terms of impact, of the European banks Wete
the subject of the exercise.

- CRH lends exclusively to major French bankspéivhich passed these tests.

- The long-term rating of Aaa given by the ratiragency Moody’'s to CRH’s bonds is
excellent and few European bonds currently havh auavorable rating.

- Since its formation, none of CRH’s assets hawmitme impaired or been written off.

- CRH successfully navigated the genuine streshefacute phases of the 2007 to 2010
financial crisis, during which it was on severatasions one of the very few European institutions
able to access the financial market and borrowifsignt amounts for the long term on this market
despite the turbulent economic climate.

- Following CRH’s capital increase on June 17, 201l before CRH had submitted the
documents in respect of the stress test itselGatmmon Equity Tier {CET1) capital adequacy ratio
was 10.27% (at June 30, 2014).

OUTLOOK

Because CRH does not generate any margin, neftb€&ampany’s earnings nor its financial
position is directly impacted by changes in theunoé of its operations.

Clearly, volumes vary largely subject to the ecomomnd financial position and the
refinancing needs expressed by banks, but alsondeme on how the new European Capital
Requirements Regulation (CRR) are adapted to CRH.

As indicated in the amendment to the registratioocudhent published in July 2014, the new
regulations implemented to avoid a repetition @& #ffects of the crisis were designed mainly for
deposit and investment banks and are not gearedrdswnstitutions that play a specific role in
financing the economy such as CRH. Paradoxicalthpagh CRH did not have any difficulties
obtaining finance even during the acute phaseh@ffinancial crisis, these new regulations are
hampering its activities and affecting its ability fulfil its mission of refinancing home-purchase
loans in France in accordance with the legislati@t enabled its formation.

It should be noted, however, that:

1. The servicing of CRH’s debt is economically eesluby the borrowing banks, and CRH
does not borrow for its own account or charge &r@st margin on refinancing operations.

2. CRH has decided to retain its status as a Earopeedit institution and not to opt for the
new status of financing comparso€iété de refinancem@meserved for institutions that do not wish
to bear all of the new regulatory constraints goirey European credit institutions.

In view of the size of its balance sheet, whicthesdirect result of the significant amounts of
long-term refinancing it was able to raise and tgeant to banks during the financial crisis, CRH is
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currently included in the list of significant Euregmn credit institutions henceforth placed under the
direct supervision of the ECB.

On December 24, 2013, CRH received a letter froenAG PR indicating that its board was
examining CRH'’s position regarding the regulatitret came into force on January 1, 2014 and was
considering requesting that CRH henceforth maintai@ommon Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital
adequacy ratio of 10%. This request was confirmedlletter dated February 18, 2014.

The European Central Bank recently indicated, ietter dated December 18, 2014, that it
was planning to require the same capital adequetay. r

Lastly, in order to comply with the new Europeaivisions relating to the separation of the

functions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officathmn credit institutions, CRH is preparing to
implement new corporate governance procedures.

COMPENSATION OF CORPORATE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS AN D INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS

As required by law, compensation paid to corpoddfeers and directors is presented in
Note 15 to the financial statements, on page 110.

The fees paid to the independent auditors are pieden page 48 and in Note 13 to the
financial statements, on page 108.
TERMS OF OFFICE

The terms of office and functions exercised by ooaafe officers and directors during the year
are presented in Chapter 9, on pages 83 to 86.
SUPPLIER PAYMENT TERMS

CRH complies with the prevailing rules on this ®dbj As of December 31, 2014, trade
creditors totaled EUR 9,568.24. The creditors’ pagitrperiod is less than one month.

12



RECOMMENDATIONS BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
TO THE REGULAR STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING
To the Stockholders,
- We recommend that you approve the financial statgs for 2014 as presented to you.

- We recommend that you approve the agreementsrexbu®y the special report of the
independent auditors.

- We recommend that the income for fiscal year 20d4.4llocated as indicated below:
. Net income for the year available for allocation €544,903.6:
To be allocated as follows:

. Legal reserve €28,000.0(¢
The total amount of which is thereby increaseB iR 3,236,000.00

. Balance to the other reserves account €516,9( .63
The total amount of which is thereby increaseB iR 1,121,801.38

The dividends paid for the three previous fiscalrgenere as follows:

In EUR per stock unit:

Year Net dividend
2013 0.00
2012 0.09
2011 0.05

We recommend that you appoint Olivier HASSLER ds@ctor and renew the terms of office
as directors of BNP Paribas, BPCE, Caisse Centital€redit Mutuel, Crédit Agricole SA, Crédit
Lyonnais, Société Générale and the independentaasidsubject to the ACPR’s approval.

13
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RESOLUTIONS

FIRST RESOLUTION
(Approval of the Company financial statements ierytear ended December 31, 2014)

The Stockholders’ Meeting, following the presematiof the Board of Directors’
management report on the management of the Conthamg the year ended December 31, 2014,
and having heard the independent auditors’ repotthe annual financial statements, approves the
Company financial statements as presented forfseidcial year comprising the income statement,
balance sheet and notes to the financial statemastwell as the transactions recorded in these
financial statements and summarized in these report

The Stockholders’ Meeting also notes the term&efréport of the Chairman of the Board of
Directors on internal control and corporate goveogawhich was presented to it, as well as the terms
of the independent auditors’ report, which setstbair observations on said Chairman’s report and
the terms of the report of the independent audépointed as an independent third party, on the
labor, environmental and social information congaliin the management report.

The Stockholders’ Meeting notes that the Compadyndit during the period under review

incur any expenses or charges that are not detritibtax purposes, in accordance with Article 39-
4 of the French General Tax Cod&ofle Général des Impdis

SECOND RESOLUTION
(Review and approval of agreements governed byglaiti. 225-38 of the French Commercial Code)
The Stockholders’ Meeting, having heard the speeabrt of the independent auditors on the

agreements governed by Atrticles L. 225e88eqof the French Commercial Code, notes the findings
of said report and resolves to approve the agretsngescribed therein.

THIRD RESOLUTION
(Board of Directors’ proposed allocation of the metome for the year ended December 31, 2014)

The Stockholders’ Meeting approves the allocatibrthe net income for the year ended
December 31, 2014, as shown in the following table:

. Net income for the year available for allocation €544,903.6:
To be allocated as follows:

. Legal reserve €28,000.0(¢
The total amount of which is thereby increaseB iR 3,236,000.00

. Balance to the other reserves account €516,9( .63
The total amount of which is thereby increasedtdR 1,121,801.38
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The dividends paid for the three previous fiscalrgenere as follows:

In EUR per stock unit:

Year Net dividend
2013 0.00
2012 0.09
2011 0.05

FOURTH RESOLUTION
(Appointment of Olivier HASSLER as a director)

The Stockholders’ Meeting, having reviewed the BoardDofectors’ report, decides to
appoint Olivier HASSLER as a director for a peraicix years, expiring in 2021 at the close of the
Stockholders’ Meeting called to approve the finahcstatements for the year ending
December 31, 2020.

FIFTH RESOLUTION
(Renewal of BNP Paribas’ term of office as a diogkt

TheStockholders’ Meeting, having reviewed the Boardogctors’ report, notes the expiry
of the term of office as a director of BNP Paribag;rench corporatiors¢ciété anonymevhose
registered office is at 16, Boulevard des ltaliefs)09 Paris, France and which is registered on the
Paris Trade and Companies Register under numbed45249.

It decides to renew this term of office for a het period of six years, expiring in 2021 at the
close of the Stockholders’ Meeting called to apprdive financial statements for the year ending
December 31, 2020.

SIXTH RESOLUTION
(Renewal of BPCE's term of office as a director)

TheStockholders’ Meeting, having reviewed the Boardogctors’ report, notes the expiry
of the term of office as a director of BPCE, a Etenorporationgociété anonymevhose registered
office is at 50, Avenue Pierre Mendes France, 79P48s, France and which is registered on the
Paris Trade and Companies Register under numbet3®842.

It decides to renew this term of office for a het period of six years, expiring in 2021 at the
close of the Stockholders’ Meeting called to apprdive financial statements for the year ending
December 31, 2020.

SEVENTH RESOLUTION
(Renewal of Caisse Centrale du Crédit Mutuel’s tefroffice as a director)

TheStockholders’ Meeting, having reviewed the Boardogctors’ report, notes the expiry
of the term of office as a director of Caisse Calrtdu Crédit Mutuel, a French corporatisndiété
anonymg whose registered office is at 88/90, Rue Cardi@&017 Paris, France and which is
registered on the Paris Trade and Companies Registier number 632 049 052.

It decides to renew this term of office for a het period of six years, expiring in 2021 at the

close of the Stockholders’ Meeting called to apprdive financial statements for the year ending
December 31, 2020.
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EIGHTH RESOLUTION
(Renewal of Crédit Agricole SA’s term of officeaadirector)

TheStockholders’ Meeting, having reviewed the Boardogctors’ report, notes the expiry
of the term of office as a director of Credit Agiie SA, a French corporatiosdciété anonyme
whose registered office is at 12, Place des Etais;92120 Montrouge, France and which is
registered on the Nanterre Trade and Companiesteginder number 784 608 416.

It decides to renew this term of office for a het period of six years, expiring in 2021 at the
close of the Stockholders’ Meeting called to apprdive financial statements for the year ending
December 31, 2020.

NINTH RESOLUTION
(Renewal of Credit Lyonnais’ term of office as eedior)

TheStockholders’ Meeting, having reviewed the Boardogctors’ report, notes the expiry
of the term of office as a director of Crédit Lyas a French corporatioedciété anonymeavhose
registered office is at 18, Rue de la Républiq@d0& Lyon, France and which is registered on the
Lyon Trade and Companies Register under numbeb094741.

It decides to renew this term of office for a het period of six years, expiring in 2021 at the
close of the Stockholders’ Meeting called to apprdive financial statements for the year ending
December 31, 2020.

TENTH RESOLUTION
(Renewal of Société Générale’s term of office dsextor)

TheStockholders’ Meeting, having reviewed the Boardogctors’ report, notes the expiry
of the term of office as a director of Société Géteé a French corporatioadciété anonymevhose
registered office is at 29, Boulevard Haussmanf00%3aris, France and which is registered on the
Paris Trade and Companies Register under numbetZ5222.

It decides to renew this term of office for a het period of six years, expiring in 2021 at the
close of the Stockholders’ Meeting called to apprdive financial statements for the year ending
December 31, 2020.

ELEVENTH RESOLUTION
(Renewal of Auditeurs & Conseils Associés SA’s tdraffice as independent auditor)

TheStockholders’ Meeting, having reviewed the Boardwogctors’ report, notes the expiry
of the term of office as independent auditor of duelit firm Auditeurs & Conseils Associés SA -
Nexia International represented by Olivier LELONKBe firm’s address is 31, Rue Henri Rochefort,
75017 Paris, France.

It decides to renew this term of office for a het period of six years, expiring in 2021 at the
close of the Stockholders’ Meeting called to apprdive financial statements for the year ending
December 31, 2020. Auditeurs & Conseils Associés -SAlexia International are henceforth
represented by Laurent CAZEBONNE.
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TWELFTH RESOLUTION
(Renewal of KPMG SA's term of office as independaditor)

TheStockholders’ Meeting, having reviewed the Boardwogctors’ report, notes the expiry
of the term of office as independent auditor of #uglit firm KPMG SA, represented by Marie-
Christine JOLYS. The firm’s address is 1, coursriwgl 92923 Paris La Défense Cedex, France.

It decides to renew this term of office, withoutdlging the representative, for a further periosdiof
years, expiring in 2021 at the close of the Stotkdrs’ Meeting called to approve the financial
statements for the year ending December 31, 2020.

THIRTEENTH RESOLUTION
(Appointment of Pimpaneau & Associés as alternadependent auditor to Auditeurs & Conseils
Associés SA)

TheStockholders’ Meeting, having reviewed the Boardogctors’ report, notes the expiry
of the term of office as alternate independenttaundif Auditeurs & Conseils Associés SA — Nexia
International represented by Olivier JURAMIE. Thret's address is 31, Rue Henri Rochefort, 75017
Paris, France

It decides to appoint the audit firm Pimpaneau gséciés SA - Nexia International, whose
address is 31, Rue Henri Rochefort, 75017 Par@nde, represented by Olivier JURAMIE, as
alternate auditor to Auditeurs & Conseils Asso@és— Nexia International for a period of six years,
expiring in 2021 at the close of the Stockhold@étseting called to approve the financial statements
for the year ending December 31, 2020.

FOURTEENTH RESOLUTION
(Appointment of KPMG Audit FS | as alternate indegent auditor to KPMG SA)

TheStockholders’ Meeting, having reviewed the Boardogctors’ report, notes the expiry
of the term of office as alternate independent tandif KPMG SA, whose address is 3, Cours du
Triangle, 92939 Paris La Défense Cedex, Franceesepted by Isabelle GOALEC.

It decides to appoint the audit firm KPMG Audit ESvhose address is 3, Cours du Triangle,
92939 Paris La Défense Cedex, France, represegtéshbelle GOALEC, as alternate auditor to
KPMG SA for a period of six years, expiring in 20&1Ithe close of the Stockholders’ Meeting called
to approve the financial statements for the yedmgnDecember 31, 2020.

FIFTEENTH RESOLUTION
(Formalities and powers)

The Stockholders’ Meeting confers on the bearex adpy or excerpt of these minutes full
powers to carry out all legal and regulatory foritres.
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CAISSE DE REFINANCEMENT DE L'HABITAT

Five-year financial summary

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Capital stock at year end:
. Capital stock (in EUR) 199,927,500 299,702,043599,7202,043.25| 299,807,237.7p 539,994,737
. Number of common stock units in issue 13,110,00019,652,593 19,652,593 19,659,491 35,409,491
. Number of non-voting preferred stock units
in issue 0 0 0 0 0
. Maximum number of stock units to be
created through conversion of bonds or
exercise of subscription rights 0 0 0 0
Business and earning(EUR thousands)
. Total revenues (excluding taxes) 1,738,8B7 18785, 2,085,466 2,108,053 1,927,447
. Income before tax, employee profit-sharing, 229 1,672 2,931 1,130 1,047
depreciation, amortization and provisions
. Corporate income tax 64 570 981 449 326
. Employee profit-sharing 0 0 0 0 0
. Income after tax, employee profit-sharipg, 114 979 1,764 632 545
depreciation, amortization and provisions
. Dividend distributed 0 983 1,769 0 0
Earnings per stock unit(in EURY):
. Income after tax and employee profit-shar|ng 0.01 0.06 0.10 0.03 0.02
but before depreciation, amortization and
provisions
. Income after tax, employee profit-sharing, 0.01 0.05 0.09 0.03 0.02
depreciation, amortization and provisions
. Net dividend per stock unit 0.0 0.05 0.09 0.00 .000
Staff:
. Average number of employees during yea 9 10 10 10 9.4
)
. Payroll expense 693 768 798 816 817
(EUR thousands)
. Social security and other benefits 335 361 376 389 391
(EUR thousands)

(1) Including paid corporate officers.
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REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ON INTERNAL CONTROL AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Stockholders,

In accordance with legal requirements and in myacdp as Chairman of the Board of
Directors of CRH — Caisse de Refinancement de litdgd am pleased to present to you this report
as approved by the Board of Directors at its Fatyrid, 2015 meeting.

This report concerns information related to Boartmhership, conditions for preparing and
organizing the work of the Board of Directors, mmi& control procedures and risk management
within the Company, corporate governance, anddheg of stockholder participation at Company
Stockholders’ Meetings in 2014.

1. INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES

The aim of the internal controls implemented by @wmnpany is to meet the internal control
and compliance obligations for credit instituticsentained in Regulation no. 97-02 of the CRBF
(French Banking and Financial Regulatory Committ@emité de la Réglementation Bancaire et
Financiérg. This regulation has now been repealed, but gihenDecree of November 3, 2014,
which came into force very recently, those insiitag to which it applies may, for the last time in
respect of the fiscal year 2014, produce their itefos the banking authorities in accordance with
this regulation. This report refers also to sagliation.

Pursuant to the provisions of this regulation, cames must submit a report on internal
control, compliance, and the measurement and maomgtof risks at least once a year to the Board
of Directors.

1.1. INTERNAL CONTROL PARTICIPANTS

The system of internal control has been adaptetketet the particular needs of the Company,
the main characteristics of which are its degregpetialization and the transparency and secufrity o
its operations. Its organizational structure i® adluenced by the limited number of employees. Fo
that reason, the Chairman and Chief Executive &ffand the General Secretary have responsibility
for monitoring the consistency and effectivenesthefinternal control system.

In addition, an audit committee (set up by the BazrDirectors in 2009) meets several times
a year.

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer reportgutarly to the Board of Directors on
internal control and risk monitoring activities areults.

Internal control is enhanced by audit assignmeatsiad out by the inspection and audit
departments of CRH’s credit institution stockho&jeas specified in Article 9 of the internal rules
and regulations.

In order to comply with these provisions, Créditriégle’s General Inspection department
audited CRH, at my request. The findings of thidiewere submitted in January 2010.
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In order to accelerate the implementation of impobformalization of the controls plan and
the permanent control plan, in 2010 CRH appointed&is to act for it in this matter.

Finally, CRH is considered a “significant” Europeeanedit institution in view of the size of
its balance sheet. As a result, it was subjechéoHuropean procedure referred to as the “Assets
Quality Review” (AQR) and to stress testing. It vedso subject to on-site inspections in the fiedf h
of 2014, commissioned by the European Central Bamk carried out by the French Banking
Regulator, the ACPRAUtorité de Contrdle Prudentiel et de Résolutidrie results of this procedure
are referred to in the Board of Directors’ reparthe Stockholders’ Meeting. CRH is likely to be
once again controlled by the ECB before the sunoh2015, in connection with its direct supervision
under which CRH is henceforth placed.

1.2. ORGANIZATION OF INTERNAL CONTROL WITH REGARD T O THE PREPARATION OF
FINANCIAL AND ACCOUNTING INFORMATION

The Company’s General Management is responsiblth@éopreparation and integrity of the
financial statements presented to you. These finhrstatements have been prepared and are
presented in accordance with generally accepteabatiog principles and the regulations applicable
to French credit institutions. The financial infation presented elsewhere in the annual repant is i
accordance with the financial statements.

The Company maintains a system of internal comroVviding it with reasonable assurance
as to the reliability of its financial informatiothe protection of its assets and the compliandésof
operations, commitments and internal procedure$ wit prevailing regulations, within the
framework of the obligations set out in Regulatiom 97-02 of the CRBF (French Banking and
Financial Regulatory Committee).

In practical terms, the internal control systefndsed on regularly-updated written procedures
and an organizational structure that strictly sefgs duties and responsibilities.

The Company’s General Management considers thaetfi@eancial statements present
accurately the financial position of the Compahy, tesults of its operations and its cash flows.

1.3. RISK MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES

By way of background, note that beyond General Maneent’'s control functions, Article L.
313-49 of the French Monetary and Financial Cddedge Monétaire et Financigprovides for a
specific legal control of CRH’s operations by trenking authority.

In accordance with the regulations, a risk mapiag been established and is periodically
reviewed. The main risks are described in Chaptéitidis registration document, to which it is ugef
to refer. It should be noted that CRH does notcldnat the description is exhaustive.

Identification of operational risks is regularlyugit by General Management, and the
business continuity plan must, in principle, engheedurability of operational procedures during an
after any interruption of activities. By way of ramder, this risk was substantially reduced in 2009
by the implementation of the Euroclear direct paytypeocedure via the Banque de France in respect
of the amounts required to service the debt.

In order to improve operational risk managementonnection with its IT system, CRH
decided to change its service provider in 2013 cWiflirther improved the security of this system.
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As CRH'’s only objective is to lend all the proceedsts borrowings, credit risk is the most
important structural risk. This risk concerns omedit institutions, which are now under the
supervision of the ECB. It is covered by a speqfedge of refinanced loans in accordance with the
requirements of Articles L. 313-42 through L. 318-¢f the French Monetary and Financial Code.
This pledge in particular is the subject of therafventioned specific legal review.

CRH also regularly audits borrowing banks usingaat of auditors dedicated to this task.

The procedures in place within this team have axipal objectives the monitoring of the
condition of CRH's receivables and an evaluatiorthe level to which they are covered, using
controls conducted on a sample basis and the eationnof monthly electronic statements of
duplicate lists of pledged receivables.

A significant risk and one which CRH raised witle thuthorities more than five years ago is
that of regulatory changes designed for the magpodit and investment banks and which are
therefore poorly adapted to the specific natur€BH’s business. Thus, the new CRR regulation
now implemented is severely hindering CRH’s operati with the result that CRH has not granted
any loans since June 2013. Nevertheless, its mtenfes stipulate the following:

- A comprehensive report on CRH’s loans is regulprbvided to the Board of Directors.

- Limits on loans granted by CRH are set by Genklahagement in accordance with the
credit policy and rules established by the Board.

- These limits take into account in particular hgtitution’s rating and the characteristics of
outstanding home-purchase loans eligible for refnag.

The general economics of the CRH mechanism are thaththe profitability of credit
transactions is, by its nature, always zero bec&iRl borrows for the account of French credit
institutions and provides them with the resouregsed without charging a margin.

CRH is normally well insulated from market risk$i3 subject is discussed in sections 3.1.2
through 3.1.5 of this document.

In addition, the provisions of Article 8.3 of itsternal rules and regulations allow CRH, if
necessary and under certain conditions, to dralines of credit from its stockholders.

Finally, the Board of Directors has set at EUR 00,@he materiality threshold for the
purposes of fraud alert defined in Articlete¥ of Regulation no. 97-02 of the CRBF (French Bagkin
and Financial Regulatory Committee).

These procedures are likely to be revised owintihp¢amplementation of the new European
Capital Requirements Regulation which has numergpsrcussions for CRH’s operation.

* The regulatory risk is dealt with in paragraph.3.2.

23



2. MEMBERSHIP AND CONDITIONS FOR PREPARING AND ORGA NIZING THE
WORK OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (see provisions of Title 1l of the Company By-
laws)

CRH stock is not publicly traded and in accordawaé the By-laws is allocated annually
between borrowers pro rata to the loans outstanding

The Board represents the stockholders, and its raeship therefore comprises most of the
main players in the French residential mortgageketar

2.1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEMBERSHIP (see Chapter 9 6this document).

- Henry RAYMOND (1) Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

- Banque Fédérative du Crédit Mutue Director
represented by Jean-Frangois TAURAND

- BNP Paribas Director
represented by Valérie BRUNERIE

- BPCE Director
represented by Roland CHARBONNEL

- Caisse Centrale du Crédit Mutue Director
represented by Sophie OLIVIER

- Crédit Agricole SA Director
represented by Nadine FEDON

- Crédit Lyonnais Director
represented by Christian LARRICQ-FOURCADE

- GE Money Bank Director

represented by Francois KLIBER

- Société Géneérale Director
represented by Vincent ROBILLARD

These directors are appointed for a six-year pgged pages 83 to 84).

(1) As explained below, in accordance with the newolean regulations, the functions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer must be sdpdral’ he Board of Directors has already (at the
end of 2013) taken the decision to separate thesaibns when Henry RAYMOND's term of office
expires, i.e. at the end of this Meeting.
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2.2. CONDITIONS FOR PREPARING AND ORGANIZING THE WO RK OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

The Board is a collegial body that deliberates dnmatters concerning the life of the
Company and, in particular, on matters of strategy.

Internal rules covering the Board’s operations havebeen established.

2.3. WORK OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors met six times in 2014. Mitren half of the directors usually attended
or were represented.

The main business of the Board during the yeauded:
- discussing and approving the results and the @omfinancial statements for fiscal year
2013, examining quarterly financial statements aigtussing and approving the semi-annual

financial statements;

- reviewing the annual report on the conditionexdrcise of internal controls and of various
discussions related to internal controls;

- the periodic examination of internal control ammnpliance activities and results;

- examining the findings of the audit committee;

- setting the Chairman and Chief Executive Offisedmpensation;

- determining the terms of the capital increasei@dout in June;

- reviewing the issues relating to the implementatiof the new European Capital
Requirements Regulation and to the fact that CRitisided in the list of significant European ctedi
institutions;

- monitoring the stress testing carried out on CRH;

- examining the outcome of audits by the audit ersghection department of portfolios of
receivables pledged to CRH at December 31, 2014.

2.4. COMPENSATION COMMITTEE (see Section 9.1.3. opage 84 of this document)

The Board has set up a compensation committeg.cibmposed of three directors who are
senior executives but not corporate officers of panies holding stock in CRH. Its role is to make
recommendations to the Board concerning the conapiensof the Chairman of the Board of
Directors and of the Chief Executive Officer, appoients that are currently fulfilled by the same
individual. This committee meets once a year.
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2.5. RISK COMMITTEE
In accordance with the provisions of Paragraph gefinternal rules and regulations (see
Appendix 6 of this document), the Board of Direstor General Management can convene a risk

committee, which has an advisory role. The BoarDioéctors designates its members from among
stockholders or their representatives and estasifiie rules governing its operations.

2.6. AUDIT COMMITTEE (see Section 9.1.4. on page 8af this document)

The audit committee, which consists of three membelected from the Company’s directors,
met on January 30, 2014 and July 9, 2014.

The main business of the audit committee at thesstings included:

- reviewing CRH'’s operations, results and finangiasition at December 31, 2013 and the
financial statements for the half year ended Juh&G14;

- recording completion of the capital increaseiedrout in June 2014;
- listening to CRH’s management and statutory awsijt
- reviewing the results of the audit of the poiitielof receivables pledged in favor of CRH;

- reviewing the annual report on the terms and itmmd governing the performance of
internal controls;

- reviewing the financial information;

- reviewing the issues relating to the implementatiof the new European Capital
Requirements Regulation and to the fact that CRitisided in the list of significant European ctedi
institutions.

3. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Most principles of corporate governance are novhenead in the French Commercial Code
or in the General Regulations of the French saeariegulatorAutorité des Marchés Financieos
AMF), to which the Company is subject.

In practice, the Company takes into account themagendations of the AFEP/MEDEF (the
French Association of Private Businesses/FrenchnBas Confederation) Code of October 2008

related to corporate governance, which is availahlMEDEF’s website (www.medef.com).

However, it is specified that these principles emmbmmendations are applicable only to the
extent that they can be implemented in a relevantmar.

1. CRH is a market institution whose capital stbelongs to French banks.
2. The stock units comprising CRH'’s capital stook i@ot quoted on any stock exchange.

3. The associated voting rights are diluted in otdanaintain CRH’s independence.
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4. CRH does not charge an interest margin on tciioss.

5. The Chairman’s compensation cannot be continger®RH’s results due to the special
characteristics of CRH’s structure. His compensatiomprises only salary and is established by the
Board of Directors on the recommendation of the pensation committee. The amount is clearly
indicated in this document. The Chairman is nogilele for either a “golden parachute,” or an
additional complementary retirement plan, or stopkons.

6. On December 18, 2009, the Chairman was appo@teéf Executive Officer of the Société
de Financement de I'Economie Francaise (SFEF)Jamofary 1, 2010. His appointment was renewed
by a decision of SFEF’s Board of Directors on Deoenil1, 2012 and by the decree of the Minister
for the Economy and Finance dated December 18,. Zl®wing this renewal, his term of office at
SFEF will end at the close of the Meeting calledapprove the 2014 financial statements. His
chairmanship at CRH will end on the same date.

7. As explained in the footnote to Section 2.1 a&)qwrsuant to the new European rules
governing the separation of the offices of Chairraad the Chief Executive Officer, the ACPR, in a
letter dated September 10, 2013, requested thae thiices be separated at CRH. In light of the
nature of the Company and the profound regulattignges underway, the Board of Directors
unanimously decided, on October 22, 2013, to rdqined the combined offices be temporarily
maintained until the end of the term of office of. NRAYMOND, i.e. until the Meeting called to
approve the 2014 financial statements. Such requaesstiuly made in a letter dated October 23, 2013.
Furthermore, the Board had already decided, asdhege meeting, to separate these offices after the
end of this term of office, i.e. at the end of thlseting.

8. Other directors receive no compensation of ang fom CRH and are executive officers
of stockholder companies. Valérie BRUNERIE, Rol&adHARBONNEL, Nadine FEDON and
Vincent ROBILLARD, who represent BNP Paribas, BPCE&dit Agricole SA and Société Générale
respectively on the Board of CRH, are directorSSBEF in their personal capacities. The service
contract between CRH and SFEF expired on Decenhet(3.4.

4. TERMS FOR STOCKHOLDER PARTICIPATION AT COMBINED STOCKHOLDERS’
MEETINGS (Article 21 of the By-laws)

These are summarized in Article 21 of the By-lagee(Appendix 5 of this document).

Henry RAYMOND
Chairman of the Board of Directors
(until March 17,2015)
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REPORT ON LABOR, SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL TRANSPARE NCY

Article 225 of Law no. 2010-788 of July 12, 201(hcerning the national commitment to the
environment enhanced the content of the informatiiobhe included in the management report by
promulgating obligations of transparency on lalsocial and environmental matters.

Despite the modest means at its disposal and #wfispnature of its business, in an effort to
meet the demands of certain investors, in thelfigear 2011, CRH had already compiled its first
report on Social and Environmental Transparency.

First, we reiterate certain key principles:
As a responsible employer, CRH adheres to theviiaig principles:

- respect for human rights,

- freedom of association and the right to collechaegaining,
- support for employees over the long term,

- promotion of equal opportunities.

Being solely financial, CRH'’s business has a lichitlrect impact on the environment.
In order to ensure respect for the environment, GBéks to limit as far as possible:

- use of paper,
- polluting forms of transport,
- consumption of heat and electricity.

Endeavoring to comply with the rules, CRH has nd&ean fined or found guilty in respect of
either social or environmental matters.

Methodological note on CSR reporting

CRH’s approach to CSR reporting is based on Aditle225-102-1, R. 225-104 and R. 225-105-2
of the French Commercial Code.

1 Reporting period

Information gathered covers the period from Jandary December 31 of each year, regardless of
the type of data gathered. This information is reggbannually.

2 Scope

The CSR reporting scope is intended to be repraseatof the Group’s activities. It is determined
according to the following principles: the repogiscope covers CRH only.

The reporting scope for fiscal year 2014 compradesf CRH's activities.
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3 Choice of indicators

Indicators are chosen with regards to the laborrenmental and social impacts of the activities of
Group companies and the risks associated withss®lated to its business activities.

4 Consolidation and internal control

Data is gathered centrally from monitoring carreed within the administration department. Data is
checked and validated by the contributors in chafggthering information and then by the General
Secretariat and General Management.

5 External controls

Pursuant to the regulatory requirements of Artk2& of the Grenelle 2 law and its implementing
decree dated April 24, 2012, CRH has asked onts afdependent auditors to provide, from 2013
onwards, a report including a statement on thegsegjon of the information to be included in the
management report and a reasoned opinion on theaagcof the published information.

Indicators for Law no. 2010-
788 on the national

commitment to the 2014 data

environment

1. Labor information:

a) Employment:

Total headcount and In 2014, total headcount fell due to the retiremeitone
breakdown of employees by employee. There were eight employees, all beinggres on
gender and region. permanent contracts.

There were three female employees.

The 40-49 and 50-59 age brackets represented 4%P/@3%h
respectively of the total headcount and the 30+80aver 60 age
brackets each accounted for 11%.

All jobs are located at the head office in Parisa(i€e).

New recruits and During the year, no new staff were hired underegitemporary

redundancies. or permanent contracts, nor were there any redwnemror
voluntary departures: only one employee left thengany, and
that was due to retirement.

Compensation. The goal of CRH’'s compensation pding any updates thereto
is to ensure a fair balance between the variousidhehl pay
packages according to merit and responsibilitigtee Tompany
does not pay any variable compensation.

b) Organization of working

time.
The number of hours worked per annum by a fulketemployee
was 1,603.60 hours, unchanged compared with 201B. A
employees work full time with personalized workimgurs.

Absenteeism. In 2014, the absenteeism rate fek @wyain, to 1.29% versus
2.24% in 2013. 100% of absenteeism was due tcsilne

c) Staff relations:
Organization of staff dialogue. Given the numberst#ff, there is no organized staff dialogue
within the Company.
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Indicators for Law no. 2010-
788 on the national

commitment to the 2014 data

environment

Review of collective The agreement on arrangements for the reductiowarking

agreements. hours signed on February 7, 2002 is still in force.
Employees are covered by the collective agreenmerfirfancial
companies.

Staff welfare. Given the number of staff, theraasworks council.

The Company pays in full all contributions for ditwhal health
coverage as well as collective coverage for deadhdependency.
The Company uses a staff canteen for which it gR 5.91 per
meal taken by each of its employees.

For employees seeking a long-service award and nfavi
completed 20 years of service in the Company, thragany pays
a bonus of one month’s basic salary (excludingaségpibonus
and thirteenth month) for the month of promotioanijary or
July).

d) Health and safety:

Health and safety conditions.  Anxious to ensure $loeial welfare of its employees, as
mentioned above, the Company has taken out additioealth
coverage as well as collective coverage for deadhdependency.
The Company uses a multi-employer occupationakihearvice.
The Company produced a single assessment docuroent f
occupational risks.

Agreements signed with tradé€siven the number of staff, there is no collectiadaining on
unions and staff representativevorkplace health and safety.

bodies on workplace health

and safety.

Frequency and seriousness ofin 2014, there were no occupational accidents enGompany.
occupational accidents and  Similarly, no employees suffered any occupatiolaésses.
recognition of occupational

illnesses.
Compliance with the The Company complies with the laws and regulatemsicable
provisions of the ILO’s to France as a signatory to the ILO’s eight keyvemtions.
fundamental conventions.
e) Training:
Total number of training As a Company with less than ten employees, CRHcgzates in
hours. the financing of employees’ professional training paying
Agefos PME a contribution of 0.55% of its total pall/
CRH’s employees did not make use of any trainirglement in
2014.
Specific professional training The Company has not implemented any specific psaieal
programs for employees. training programs for employees.
f) Diversity and equal
opportunities:
Policy implemented and For positions of the same level of responsibilitgre is very little
measures taken to: difference between the average compensation ofanérnvomen.
- promote equality between The Company reiterates its keenness to complythehegal and
men and women; regulatory provisions encouraging professional payg equality

between men and women for similar jobs in termfsirg as well
as career development.
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Indicators for Law no. 2010-

788 on the national
commitment to the
environment

2014 data

- encourage the employmenThe Company guarantees equal treatment for indasdwith
and integration of disabledsimilar qualifications and length of service witkegard to

individuals;

- fight against
discrimination and
promote diversity.

promotion opportunities, career progression andessgcto
professional training.

On request, any member of staff can meet with tmg@any’s
management in order to review any problems thaldcarise in
assessing this equality of treatment. A reasoneghorese is
provided within one month.

Having less than 20 employees, CRH is not subjecthe
requirement to employ and integrate disabled people

The Company refrains from all forms of discrimiwati and
promotes diversity whenever it can.

2. Environmental information:

a) General policy on
environmental matters:
The Company’s policy for
taking into account
environmental issues and,

In accordance with the arrangements introducedriglé 225 of
Grenelle 2 law and set out in the decree of May203,3, CRH
has had its labor, social and environmental dat2@d4 audited

where applicable, assessmentpy an independent third-party body.
and certification approaches |n addition, Management encourages its employeasapt

on environmental matters.

environmentally-aware behavior within the Company.

Training and informing
employees on matters
concerning environmental
protection.

No doubt due to the limited number of employeeg)legees have
readily complied with environmental issues withthe Company
having to implement initiatives to heighten awasmef such
matters.

Amount of provisions and
guarantees for risks on
environmental matters.

Not relevant in terms of direct impacts given tregune of the
Company’s business.

b) Pollution and waste
management:

Prevention of production,
recycling and elimination of
waste.

As a financial sector company, the main raw matedasumed is
paper. Two initiatives have been implemented tat lie volume
used:

- widespread use of both sides of the paper,

- production of major publications in paperless form.
Employees have implemented an ongoing initiativesglective
sorting to facilitate the recycling of water bogtlemagazines,
newspapers and small boxes.

Toner cartridges are returned to the supplier.

Obsolete office equipment is taken to the wastpadial site.

Preventing, reducing and

redressing emissions into the

air, water and soil seriously
affecting the environment.

Given the nature of its business, the Company doegmit any
greenhouse gases other than.@@d creates no polluting impact
in the water or solil. Its premises are not air-ctonled.

The Company has not carried out a carbon assessitieat
Company promotes the use of public transport bathdme/work
travel and business trips for its employees.
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Indicators for Law no. 2010-
788 on the national
commitment to the
environment

2014 data

Taking into account noise Not relevant in terms of direct impacts given tregune of the
pollution and, where Company’s business.

applicable, any other form of

pollution specific to an

activity.

c) Sustainable use of

resources:

Water consumption Due to the absence of separater weeters, we are unable to
ascertain the Company’s water usage. However, givemature
of its business and its small workforce, water comgtion is
limited.

Consumption of raw Paper is the main raw material used in the CompEmg.majority

materials. of the paper used has been awarded the Europeamn’sni
Ecolabel. Approximately 90,000 sheets were us&Diil.

Energy consumption Due to the absence of sepamterpmeters, we are unable to
ascertain the Company’s energy usage. Howevemghenature
of its business and its small workforce, energyscomption is
limited.

Use of soils. Not relevant in terms of direct imigagiven the nature of the

Company’s business.

d) Contribution to changes in
behavior and the fight against
global warming:

Greenhouse gas emissions. Not relevant in terndire€t impacts given the nature of the
Company’s business.
Taking into account the Not relevant in terms of direct impacts given tregune of the

impacts of climate change.  Company’s business.

e) Protection of biodiversity

The Company does not own, rent or manage any isitesnear
any protected areas or zones rich in biodiversiiiside these
protected areas.

3. Social information:

a) Territorial, economic and Not relevant in terms of direct impacts given tregune of the
social impact of the business. Company’s business.

b) Relations with The Company’s By-laws provide for dilution of thetwng rights
stakeholders. attached to the stock units in order to preses/mdependence in
relation to the stockholders.
Furthermore, there are no conflicts of interest hwibther
stakeholders.
The Company was not involved in any sponsorshijvities in

2014.
c) Sub-contracting and Recourse to sub-contracting is restricted to a famting,
suppliers and social and envelope stuffing, archiving, cleaning and mainteea tasks

environmental responsibility entrusted to companies exercising their businegsance. Non-
in relations with such parties. compliance with social regulations is covered byraach of
contract clause.

d) Fair practices: No incidents of corruption have ever been iderdifi@thin the
- prevention of corruption; Company.
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Indicators for Law no. 2010-
788 on the national
commitment to the
environment

2014 data

- measures promoting the
health and safety of
consumers.

Keen to protect its reputation from any tradingfafors by its
employees when controlling its guarantees at bamgw
establishments, the Company has adopted goodg#getnciples
for on-site controls.

More generally, as a credit institution, the Compamas
implemented all legislative and regulatory prowsaoncerning
the fight against money laundering and the finagpahterrorism,
notably concerning staff training.

The Company has appointed two TRACFIN corresporsdent
The Company’s business has no direct impact orndladth and
safety of consumers,

e) Actions promoting human
rights.

The Company advocates respect for human rights.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014

To the Stockholders,

In accordance with the terms of our appointmenydayr Stockholders’ Meeting, we hereby
report to you, for the year ended December 31, 2004

e the audit of the accompanying financial statemeh@aisse de Refinancement de
I'Habitat SA,

e the basis of our opinion;
e the specific verifications and information requgitgy law.

These financial statements have been approved éodiard of Directors. Our role is to
express an opinion on the financial statementscbhaseur audit.

1 OPINION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We performed our audit in accordance with profassistandards applicable in France. Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet aadas to obtain reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from any materiaktatement. An audit involves the verification, @sin
sampling or other methods of testing, of evidenggpsrting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. It also involves an assessoféhe accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as an evalwdtthe overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that our audit procedu@gage a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed
below.

In our opinion, the financial statements presemtua and fair view of the Company’s financial
position and its assets and liabilities at Decen3i¢2014 and of the results of its operationgtier
year then ended in accordance with accounting iptesgenerally accepted in France.

2 THE BASIS FOR OUR OPINION

In compliance with the provisions of Article L. 883of the French Commercial Code
regarding the basis of our opinion, we hereby mfojou that our assessments focused on the
appropriateness of the accounting principles agpided on the reasonableness of significant
estimates used for the preparation of the finansialements, in particular as regards securities
transactions (see Note 2-C of the notes to thexfilsh statements).

The assessments we made of these items form p#re dfamework of our audit approach to the
financial statements as a whole and therefore ibutéd to the opinion expressed in the first part o
this report.
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SPECIFIC VERIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION

We also performed the specific verifications regdiby law, in accordance with professional
standards applicable in France.

We have no comments to make regarding the accumagdyconsistency with the financial
statements of the information provided in the managnt report of the Board of Directors and in the
documents issued to the stockholders with respeittet Company’s financial position and financial
statements.

As regards the information provided in accordanith the provisions of Article L. 225-102-
1 of the French Commercial Code on the compensaiaich and benefits awarded to the corporate
officers as well as commitments given in their fawse have verified that it is consistent with the
financial statements or the data used to prepadefisancial statements and, where relevant, with
the information obtained by your Company from tlempanies controlling your Company or
controlled by it. On the basis of this work we al®e to affirm the accuracy and reliability of such
information.

Paris la Défense and Paris, March 3, 2015

The Independent Auditors

KPMG Audit AUDITEURS & CONSEILS ASSOCIES SA
A division of KPMG SA Member of Nexia International
Represented by Represented by
Marie-Christine JOLYS Olivier LELONG
Partner Partner
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SPECIAL REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
ON THE REGULATED AGREEMENTS AND COMMITMENTS

Stockholders’ Meeting called to approve the finanal statements
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014

To the Stockholders,

In our capacity as independent auditors of yourmamy, we present to you our report on the
regulated agreements and commitments.

Our role is to inform you, on the basis of the mfiation provided to us, of the key features,
terms and conditions of the agreements and commtsra which we have been informed or of
which we have become aware during the performaha@iiowork. It is not our responsibility to
express an opinion on the usefulness and advigabflisuch agreements and commitments or to
ascertain whether any other agreements or commismeqst. It is your duty, pursuant to the
provisions of Article R. 225-31 of the French Comoi@ Code, to assess the interest of such
agreements and commitments with a view to theirag.

In addition, it is our responsibility, where relexato provide you with the information
prescribed by Article R. 225-31 of the French Comuia¢ Code relating to the execution, during the
year under review, of the agreements and commisnalneady approved by the Stockholders’
Meeting.

We performed the due diligence procedures that @eneéd necessary to comply with the
professional standards of the French nationaltuietof independent auditorS¢mpagnie Nationale
des Commissaires aux Comptesrelation to this assignment. Those proceduresived verifying
the consistency of information provided to us vétlurce documentation.

1. Agreements and commitments submitted for approvay the Stockholders’ Meeting

Agreements and commitments authorized during the ya& under review

We inform you that we have not been advised ofagrgements or commitments authorized
during the year under review to be submitted toSheckholders’ Meeting for approval under the
provisions of Article L. 225-38 of the French Conmmal Code.

2. Agreements and commitments already approved byé Stockholders’ Meeting

Agreements and commitments approved during earliefiscal years and which remained in
force during the year under review

In accordance with Article R. 225-30 of the Freieimmercial Code, we have been informed

of the following agreements and commitments whiakehalready been approved by Stockholders’
Meetings in previous fiscal years and which remaiimeforce during the year under review.
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» Agreement with the Société de Financement de I'Ecomie Francaise (SFEF)

Under the terms of this agreement, your Compangesgio make available to the Société de
Financement de I'Economie Francaise (SFEF) theniteslhand human resources needed to monitor
and control its activities.

Your Company recognized income totaling EUR 192,880€luding taxes in respect of this
agreement.

» Corporate officer liability insurance contract taken out with Chubb Insurance Company of
Europe S.A.

This contract covers liability for damages thabgoorate officer of your Company would be
required to pay as a result of a claim againstfeinmisconduct or negligence. The maximum cover
under this contract is EUR 3,000,000.

Your Company recognized as an expense the net bpramium in respect of this contract
of EUR 4,948.60.

Paris La Défense and Paris, March 3, 2015

The Independent Auditors

KPMG Audit AUDITEURS & CONSEILS ASSOCIES SA
A division of KPMG SA Member of Nexia International
Represented by Represented by
Marie-Christine JOLYS Olivier LELONG
Partner Partner
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
(PREPARED IN APPLICATION OF ARTICLE L. 225-235 OF T HE FRENCH
COMMERCIAL CODE) ON THE REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN OF T HE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY CAISSE DE REFINANCEMENT DE L'HABITAT

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014

To the stockholders,

In our capacity as independent auditors of the GomCaisse de Refinancement de I'Habitat
and in application of the provisions of Article225-235 of the French Commercial Code, we present
our report on the report prepared by the Chairnigmar Company for the year ended December 31,
2014 in accordance with the requirements of Articl@25-37 of the French Commercial Code.

It is the Chairman’s responsibility to prepare antdmit a report for the Board of Directors’
approval on the internal control and risk managemescedures in place at the Company and which
provides the other information required by Artitle225-37 of the French Commercial Code on, in
particular, its corporate governance procedures.

Our responsibility is:

e to provide you with comments on the informatiomtained in the Chairman’s report on
internal control and risk management procedureding to the preparation and processing
of accounting and financial information, and

e to attest that the report includes all other infation required under Article L. 225-37 of
the French Commercial Code, although it is notregponsibility to verify the accuracy of
this other information.

We conducted our work in accordance with profesdi@tandards generally accepted in
France.

1. Information about the internal control and risk management procedures relating to
the preparation and processing of accounting andriancial information

The relevant professional standards require thadlareand perform our work so as to be able
to assess whether the information concerning ttexrial control and risk management procedures
relating to the preparation and processing of acttiog and financial information contained in the
Chairman’s report is presented fairly. Such worksists in particular of:

« familiarizing ourselves with the internal controldarisk management procedures relating to
the preparation and processing of accounting aman@ial information supporting the
information presented in the Chairman’s report af as the existing documentation;

« familiarizing ourselves with the work supportingthreparation of this information and the
existing documentation;
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« determining whether any major deficiencies in titerinal control procedures relating to the
preparation and processing of accounting and fiahimformation that we discovered when
carrying out our audit work have been appropriatibglosed in the Chairman’s report.

Based on our work, we have no comments to makehenirfformation concerning the
Company’s internal control and risk management gulaces relating to the preparation and
processing of accounting and financial informat@s contained in the report of the Chairman of the
Board of Directors, prepared in accordance withgravisions of Article L. 225-37 of the French
Commercial Code.

2. Other information

We attest that the report of the Chairman of therBoof Directors includes the other
information required under Article L. 225-37 of theench Commercial Code.

Paris La Défense and Paris, March 3, 2015

The Independent Auditors

KPMG Audit AUDITEURS & CONSEILS ASSOCIES SA
A division of KPMG SA Member of Nexia International
Represented by Represented by
Marie-Christine JOLYS Olivier LELONG
Partner Partner
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR,
THE DESIGNATED INDEPENDENT THIRD-PARTY BODY,
ON THE LABOR, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL INFORMATION
CONTAINED IN THE MANAGEMENT REPORT

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014

To the Stockholders,

In our capacity as independent auditors (the daseghindependent third-party body) of
Caisse de Refinancement de I'Habitat, accredite€ ©®RAC under number 3-1049ve hereby
present our report on the labor, environmentalsmoahl information for the year ended December 31,
2014 disclosed in the management report (herendtiie “CSR Information”) pursuant to the
requirements of Article L. 225-102-1 of the Frer@bmmercial Code.

Management’s responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for prepaanganagement report including the CSR
Information as required by Article R. 225-105-1tbé French Commercial Code, drawn up in
accordance with the guidelines used by the Comfaereinafter the “Guidelines”), a summary of
which appears in the management report and isadblaibn request from the Company's registered
office.

Independence and quality control

Our independence is defined by regulations, oufepsional code of ethics and Article L.
822-11 of the French Commercial Code. In additwa have established a system of quality control
including documented policies and procedures tourensompliance with rules of conduct,
professional standards and applicable legal andatygy requirements.

Independent auditor’s responsibility

Our role, based on our work, is to:

- certify that the required CSR Information is gnesin the management report or, if not, that
an appropriate explanation is given in accordanitie thie third paragraph of Article R. 225-105 of
the French Commercial Code (attestation of presentation of CSR Information);

- draw a conclusion expressing limited assuranc® ashether the CSR Information, as a
whole, has been provided, in all material aspéat&;cordance with the Guidelines (reasoned opinion
on the accuracy of the CSR Information).

Our work, which took approximately one week to céetgy was carried out by a team of five
employees during December 2014 and January 2018allé¢el upon our CSR experts to assist us in
the performance of our work.

We conducted the work described below in accordamitle the professional standards
applicable in France, with the French decree dstayg 13, 2013 laying down the terms under which
independent third-party bodies perform their auditgl with international standard ISAE 3800
regarding the reasoned opinion on the accuracys® dformation.

1 The scope of which is available on thew.cofrac.frwebsite
2|SAE 3000 — Assurance engagements other thansaardieviews of historical financial information
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1. Attestation of presentation of CSR Information

We examined, based on interviews with the headshefdepartments concerned, the
presentation of guidelines for sustainable devekmnbased on the labor and environmental
consequences of the Company’s activities and itsas@ommitments and, where appropriate,
activities or programs arising therefrom;

We compared the CSR Information provided in the agament report against the list set out
in Article R. 225-105-1 of the French Commerciad€p

- Where certain information was not provided, wefiedithat an appropriate explanation was
given in accordance with paragraph 3 of Article2R5-105 of the French Commercial Code;

Based on this work and bearing in mind the limitasi referred to above, we certify that the
required CSR Information has been provided in theagement report.

2. Reasoned opinion on the accuracy of CSR information

Nature and scope of our work

We conducted interviews with the persons respoaddi preparing the CSR Information in
the departments in charge of information gathepreresses and, where relevant, responsible for
internal control and risk management proceduresyder to:

- assess the suitability of the Guidelines in terrhgetevance, completeness, reliability,
neutrality and clarity, taking into consideratiavhere applicable, best industry practice;

- verify that the Company has established a proa@ssollecting, compiling, processing and
checking the Information to ensure that it is cosbgland consistent, and review internal
control and risk management procedures relatingagreparation of CSR Information.

We determined the nature and scope of our testscanttols in light of the nature and
importance of CSR Information with regard to thereltteristics of the Company, the labor and
environmental issues associated with its activitisgolicies in the area of sustainable develapme
and best industry practice.

Regarding the CSR Information that we considerdaktthe most importaht

- we consulted the documentary sources and condirdagliews to corroborate qualitative
information (organization, policies, initiativesye applied analytical procedures to the quantiativ
information and verified, based on sampling techeg] the calculations and we verified its
consistency and compatibility with the other information contained in the management report;

- we conducted interviews to verify that the procedurere correctly applied and to identify
any omissions and we performed detailed tests @simgpling techniques, consisting of verifying the
calculations made and reconciling the data with ghpporting documents. The sample selected
represented 100% of the workforce and 100% of tlantitative environmental information.

3 Labor indicators: Headcount at end of period, Bdeskn of workforce by age bracket, Female employNespber of
departures, Number of recruitments, Number of ainwoekdays per employee, Absenteeism, Number afitrg
hours, Percentage of payroll spent on training.ifenmental indicators: Paper consumption.
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We assessed the consistency of the other CSR lafmmmbased on our knowledge of the
Company.

Finally, we assessed the appropriateness of thiaredmons provided, if applicable, for any
information fully or partially omitted.

We believe that the sampling techniques and sasipds that we have selected based on our
professional judgment allow us to formulate an apirwith alimited level of assurance; a greater
level of assurance would have required a more siktenaudit. Owing to the use of sampling
techniques and other limitations inherent in thectioning of any information and internal control
system, the possibility that a material misstateamerihe CSR Information may not be detected
cannot be completely eliminated.

Conclusion

Based on our work, we did not identify any matenasstatements that would cause us to
believe that the CSR Information, taken as a whsl@pt fairly presented, in accordance with the
Guidelines.

Paris La Défense, March 3, 2015

KPMG Audit
A division of KPMG SA

Philippe ARNAUD Marie-Christine JOLYS
Partner Partner
Department of Climate Change & Sustainable
Development
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CHAPTER 1

RESPONSIBILITIES

1.1. PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR THE REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

Henry RAYMOND, Chairman and Chief Executive OffiadrCRH.

1.2.STATEMENT OF THE PERSON RESPONSIBLE

| certify, after having taken all reasonable stépsensure that this is the case, that the
information contained in this registration documiento the best of my knowledge, accurate and that
there have been no omissions which would affecirifsort.

| certify that, to the best of my knowledge, theahcial statements have been prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standardsgawel a true and fair view of the financial
position, assets and liabilities and net incomahef Company and that the management report
included on page 7 gives an accurate overview@btlsiness, results and financial position of the
Company as well as a description of the main rasid uncertainties it faces.

| have obtained a post-audit report from the irohejent auditors in which they indicate that
they have examined the information on the finarmoalition and the financial statements as presented
in this document and that they have read the erggestration document.

Paris,March 26, 2015

Director - Chief Executive Officer
Henry RAYMOND
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CHAPTER 2

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

2.1. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

2.1.1. Independent auditors

1)

2)

AUDITEURS & CONSEILS ASSOCIES SA
NEXIA Internationa
Member of the Paris regional institute of independriditors

Address: 31 rue Henri Rochefort, 75017 Paris

Represented by: Laurent CAZEBONNE

Dates of appointment: Initially appointed on April 16, 1991, renewed oraidh 4
1997, March 4, 2003, March 3, 2009 and March 17520

Term of office: The present spear term expires in 2021, at the end o

Stockholders’ Regular Meeting called to approve
financial statements for the year ending Decembk

2020.

KPMG SA

Member of the Versailles regional institute ofepéndent auditors

Address: 1 cours Valmy
92923 Paris La Défense Cedex

Represented by: Marie-Christine JOLYS

Dates of appointment: Initially appointed on Adré, 1991, renewed on March
4, 1997, March 4, 2003, March 3, 2009 and March 17,
2015.

Term of office: The present six-year term expire2021, at the end of the

Stockholders’ Regular Meeting called to approve
financial statements for the year ending Decembk
2020.

2.1.2. Alternate independent auditors

1) PIMPANEAU & ASSOCIES SA

Alternate independent auditor for AUDITEURS & CONEE& ASSOCIES SA
Member of the Paris regional institute of independriditors

Address: 31 rue Henri Rochefort, 75017 PARIS

Represented by: Olivier JURAMIE

Date of appointment: Appointed on March 17, 2015.

Term of office: The present six-year term expire2021,at the end of tt

Stockholders’ Regular Meeting called to approve
financial statements for the year ending Decemlig
2020.
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2) KPMG AUDIT FS |

Alternate independent auditor for KPMG SA
Member of the Versailles regional institute ofépéndent auditors
3 cours du Triangle
92939 Paris La Défense Cedex
Appointed on March 17, 2015.
Isabelle GOALEC
The present spear term expires in 2021, at the end o
Stockholders’ Regular Meeting called to approve
financial statements for the year ending Decemlig

Address:

Date of appointment
Represented by:
Term of office:

2.1.3. Fees paid to the independent auditors and méers of their organizations in respect of

2020.

the fiscal years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

(EUR thousands)

Auditeurs & Conseils Associés

KPMG Audit — DivisiohKPMG SA

Amount * % Amount * %
Dec. 31,| Dec. 31,| Dec. 31,| Dec. 31, Dec. 31,| Dec. 31, Dec. 31, | Dec. 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Audit
- Statutory audit,

certification, review of

individual and

consolidated financial

statements 30 30 88 97 30 30 75 75
- Certification of the report

on labor, social and

environmental

transparency 0 0 0 0 8 10 20 25
- Audit-related services 4 1 12 3 2 0 5 0
Other services N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

* Amounts include all taxes, charges and outlays

2.2. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS RESIGNING OR REMOVED

Not applicable.
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CHAPTER 3
RISK FACTORS
(AMF interpretation no. 2 on the preparation of regstration documents)

CRH believes that the risk factors discussed belowaould potentially affect its ability to
meet its obligations on issued bonds. Most of thetgctors are linked to events that may or may
not occur. CRH makes no claim that the risk factordisted below are exhaustive. CRH is not in
a position to express an opinion as to the probality of occurrence of these events. Potential
investors should also read the other detailed infonation in the related prospectus and reach
their own conclusions prior to making an investmentecision.

3.1. ISSUER RISK FACTORS:

Since CRH'’s sole purpose is to refinance homehase loans granted by credit institutions,
to the issuer’s knowledge, credit risk and reguiatesk are the most significant risks.

CREDIT RISK

3.1.1. Credit risk

An institution’s credit risk results from the untanty as to the ability or intention of its
counterparties to fulfill their obligations towardslt is the main subject of the stress testipglied
to CRH.

CRH's risk exposure relates to only a limited numbkecredit institutions, the majority of
which are now under the direct supervision of tilBEThese exposures correspond mainly to loans
guaranteed in connection with refinancing operatiamd, on an ancillary basis, stockholders’ equity
investment operations.

The loans corresponding to refinancing operatiamsrapresented by mortgage notes, are
guaranteed for at least 125% of their nominal amhbyra specific pledge of receivables governed
by the provisions of Articles L. 313-42 to L. 319-df the French Monetary and Financial Code and
relating solely to home-purchase loans in France.

In the event of an institution defaulting, thesatory provisions enable CRH to
automatically become the owner of the loan porfpledged by that institution, notwithstanding any
provisions to the contrary.

In connection with the coming into force of Regidat(EU) no. 575/2013 on January 1, 2014,
CRH appointed recognized external valuation exgertarry out an external credit assessment of
the mortgage notes. As at December 31, 2014, tmenadvalue of the notes thus rated came to more
than 90% of the outstanding notes, all the ratoagsesponding to credit quality step 1.
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a) Breakdown of commitments

(EUR thousands)

Dec. 31, 2013 Dec. 31, 2014
Exposures to credit risk Balance | Doubtfu | Balance | Doubtfu
sheet | rate sheet | rate
Mortgage notes 52,628,334 0% 48,514,374 0%
Negotiable debt instruments 60,310 0% 60,123 0%
Demand deposits, term deposits 444,728 0% 506,312 % O
Other receivables (recharges, etc.) 0 0% 0 0%
Total exposures to credit institutions 53,133,372 % 49,080,809 0%
Exposures to the central bank 1 0% 1 0%
Exposures to the public sector 68 0% 42 0%
Other exposures 63 0% 60 0%
Total exposures to credit risk 53,133,504 0% 49,0812 0%
Equity holdings, other long-term securities,
flxed assets and prepayments and accrued 197 167
income
Total assets 53,133,701 49,081,079

As regards off-balance sheet commitments, there wercommitments given at the year

end.
(EUR thousands)
Geographic breakdown of exposures Dec. 31, 2013 Dec. 31, 2014
Balance sheet % Balance sheet %
France 53,133,504 100 49,080,912 100

A breakdown of outstanding loans between the mamolwing institutions is provided in
Section 5.2.2 of Chapter 5, page 71.

A breakdown of mortgage notes, negotiable debtunstnts and term deposits by residual
maturity is provided in Chapter 11, Note 4 to timauhcial statements, on page 101.

b) Transaction selection process

Each borrower must be subject to prior approvdhleyBoard of Directors. Such authorization
may be subject to specific terms and conditions.

Rules concerning the granting of loans have beawrmup by the Board of Directors:

« Lending decisions must take into account the mstih’'s rating (determined by the level of
its equity, its profitability, stockholder structuand credit rating) and the characteristics of
the loan portfolio due to be refinanced.

« The amount of the loan is limited to a level sug#t the institution should be able to cover
the loan granted without difficulty until its finahaturity, assuming no further new lending
and an average annual early repayment rate.

« To avoid an excessive concentration of CRH’s commaiits with a single institution, and

despite the effective pledging of a cover pool,pheportion of CRH’s total lending that may
be made to any one institution is capped at 40%.
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« The following are also regularly monitored:

- CRH’'s new loans as a percentage of the borrovirsgjitution’s annual new
borrowing,

- CRH’s loans as a percentage of the total as$dtedoorrowing institution and of
the amount of its stockholders’ equity,

- CRH’s loans to the borrowing institution as agegitage of the amounts reported by
the latter to the ACPR,

- the ratio of liabilities covered (including CRHdns) to the total assets of the
borrowing institutions.

- The actual decision as to whether or not to lenantanstitution is taken by CRH’s General
Management.

c) Credit risk mitigation mechanism

The aim of pledging home-purchase loans in Franpeto at least 125% of the nominal
amount of the mortgage notes if the loans provakedollateral are fixed-rate loans and 150% if the
loans provided as collateral are variable-rate dpanto enable CRH to fully protect itself against
credit risk.

These loans must themselves be secured by adsistential mortgage or charge over real
estate offering an equivalent guarantee, or a gtegagiven by a credit institution or insurance
company with capital stock in excess of EUR 12iomnllwhich is not included in the consolidation
scope of the institution to which the CRH loanrarged.

The criteria for selecting loans provided as celiaktare governed by the provisions applicable
to SCF Gociétés de Crédit FoncieFrench mortgage loan companies compliant withcifipe
regulations), unless more stringent provisions hiagen defined by CRH. Thus, for each loan,
restrictions have been introduced concerning resighaturity, which must be less than 25 years, and
amount, which must not exceed EUR 1 million.

The provisions of Article L. 313-49 of the Frencloidetary and Financial Code provide for a
specific check by the ACPR. At the same time, CRId&pection Department carries out its own
verifications. If ineligible loans are detectede tamount of the pledged loans portfolio must be
increased accordingly.

(EUR billions)
Mortgage Amount of cover Overcollateralization
notes pool rate
Year (balance

sheet Gross Net * Gross Net *
value)

2013 51.6 73.9 68.2 43% 32%

2014 47.8 68.6 63.0 44% 32%

* Estimated amount of cover pool excluding inellgilbans
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d) Use of credit derivatives

CRH does not use credit derivatives.

e) Investment of stockholders

" equity

CRH'’s stockholders’ equity was originally investaddemand deposits with an interest rate
close to the daily money market rate. However, @iva investment management approach is now
adopted, albeit a very conservative one, as showhreianalysis tables below (which exclude accrued

1%

interest):
(EUR thousands)
Breakdown by type of investment Dec. 31, 2013 Dec. 31, 2014
y yp Balance sheet % Balance sheet %
Demand deposits 59,550 11.83 57,652 10.20
Term deposits 384,040 76.26 447,722 79.19
Negotiable debt instruments 60,000 11.91 60,000 10.61
Total 503,590, 100.00 565,374/ 100.00
Breakdown Dec. 31, 2013 Dec. 31, 2014
by . .
counterparty Number | Highest | Lowest | Average | Number | Highest | Lowest | Average
Credit 5 25.02% | 2.29% | 23.949 5 25.13%  2.05%  24.0
institutions
Breakdown by external rating at December 31, 2014
Standard & Poor’s Moody’s Fitch Ratings
ST | LT | ST | LT ST | LT | ST | LT | ST | LT ST | LT [ST| LT
a1 | ar a1 a| M 1 [aa3| p1 | A1 | P1 | Az | VA F1 | A+ |F1| A N/A
23.75% | 74.20% | 2.05% | 25.10% 23.75% 49.10% 2.05% 48.85% 49.10% | 2.05%
(EUR thousands)
Initial term of investments excluding demand Dec. 31, 2013 Dec. 31, 2014
deposits and accrued interest
Three months or less 10,229 7,069
Three to six months 3,811 13,811
Six months to one year 40,000 41,842
One to two years 20,000 10,000
Two to three years 290,000 345,000
Over three years 80,000 90,000
Total 444,040 507,722
Fixed rate/variable rate breakdown Dec. 31, 2013 @e31, 2014
Fixed rate 20% 16%
Variable rate* 80% 84%
Total 100% 100%

* EONIA or 3-month Euribor only

Average annual yield

2013 1.13%

2014: 0.79%
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MARKET RISK

3.1.2. Interest rate risk

In accordance with its By-laws and internal ruled segulations, CRH borrowings and loans
are perfectly matched in terms of interest ratetanah. In addition, CRH requires that portfolios of
pledged receivables that may therefore becomeafsepty in the event of borrower default also have
the same interest rates and maturities as thedelaans.

Furthermore, the minimum loan coverage of 125%asanl by CRH on its borrowers shields
the Company to a large extent from any residuaké@st rate risk.

CRH has no market activities and its By-laws, whiere amended in August 1999, forbid it
from carrying out any activity that is not in straccordance with its sole corporate purpose.

CRH’s income corresponds to a balance between edscdrom the investment of
stockholders’ equity on the money market on one aind general and administrative expenses and
interest on subordinated loans extended by stodkn®lon the other. A decrease in money market
rates leads directly to a decrease in income atelwarsa.

(EUR thousands)
As at 12/31/2014 Impact on
pre-tax income
Impact of a 1% increase in interest rates + 4,690
Impact of a 1% decrease in interest rates - 339

However, the current conditions under which CRIdrapes do not expose it to interest rate
risk on its refinancing activities.

(EUR thousands)

Included in assets: | |, jeq in liabilities: | Net exposure
mortgage
. bonds before coverage
Residual notes (b) © = (@) — (b)
maturity at €))
Dec. 31, 2014 . Variable | _. Variable | Fixed | Variable
Fixed rate Fixed rate
rate rate rate rate

One year or less 6,215,573 0 6,215,573 0 0 0
One to two years 2,802,961 0 2,802,961 0 0 0
Two to five years 15,338,766 0| 15,338,766 0 0 0
Over five years 23,134,660 0] 23,134,660 0 0 0
Total 47,491,960 0| 47,491,960 0 0 0
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3.1.3. Foreign exchange risk

CRH generally has no activity in foreign currencielwever, since 2010, it has issued
borrowings in Swiss francs (CHF) as well as in suiidis type of transaction does not expose CRH
to any foreign exchange risk since it borrows inFCknds in CHF and receives, in the cover pool
of loans it grants, loans in CHF.

(EUR thousands)
Included in included in Foreign Net position
assets liabilities: currency before
At Dec. 31, 2014 mortgage . coverage
bonds commitments
notes (b) (©) (d) =(a)—(b)
(a) +/- (c)
EUR 45,549,945 45,549,945 0 0
CHF 1,942,018 1,942,015 0 0
Total 47,491,960 47,491,960 0 0
Impact on
Fiscal year 2014 pre-tax income
10% increase 10% decrease
CHF 0 0

3.1.4. Equity risk

CRH’s By-laws prohibit it from buying equities. Siarly, CRH does not buy or sell on the
credit derivatives market.

3.1.5.Liquidity risk

Under normal circumstances, due to its sole agtiaiid the perfect matching in terms of
maturity, interest rate and currency of the morégagtes on the assets side of its balance sheet and
the bonds on the liabilities side, CRH is not exgabt liquidity risk.

In the event of borrower default on maturity ofcan, the provisions of the Company’s
internal rules and regulations and its By-laws,alihivere amended to this effect in 1995 and 1999,
enable CRH to call on its stockholders for cashaades equivalent to the amounts required for its
operations. Such cash advances may not exceed 8% tuftal loans outstanding.

If the amounts necessary for its operations extaedimit, which would only happen if, in
the medium term, one or two of the major Frenclrdwing banks defaulted, the Governor of the
Banque de France, who is also the Chairman of fR€R\ could, pursuant to Article L. 511-42 of
the French Monetary and Financial Code, call orother stockholder banks to pay the shortfall. The
stockholders are, in any event, required to couteitbto CRH the equity required under the banking
regulations.

The table providing a breakdown of mortgage noteskands by residual maturity, included
in Chapter 11, Note 4 to the 2014 financial stateimen page 101, illustrates this perfect matching.
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CRH, in its capacity as a credit institution, i®@at to the LCR reporting requirements of the
ACPR and will soon be subject to those of the EeappCentral Bank

In this regard, the provisions of Article 425-1 Bfegulation (EU) no. 575/2013 of
June 26, 2013 give CRH exemption from the 75% cagagh outflows corresponding to the servicing
of its bonds, with cash inflows corresponding te thortgage notes.

Normally:

- funds corresponding to interest payments on ewoxigage notes are received on the interest
due date of the euro bonds with the same matunidyirasterest rate,

- funds corresponding to interest payments on Sfrase mortgage notes are received on the
business day preceding the interest due date obwiss franc bonds with the same maturity and
interest rate,

- funds corresponding to the final maturities afceand Swiss franc mortgage notes (principal
and interest) are received five business days bé¢f@ due date for repayment of the euro bonds and
Swiss franc bonds with the same maturity and istenae,

- funds received before maturity are deposited withcentral bank or used in collateralized
resale agreements of French government securgigdimg maturity,

- in addition, CRH usually maintains approximat&@y R 60 million of readily available
liquidity to enable it to meet ad-hoc liquidity t@gements, notably intra-day requirements.

It is specified that CRH’s bond issue agreementsataontain any default provisions, early
repayment provisions or covenants.

INDUSTRIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL RISKS

3.1.6.Industrial and environmental risks

Not applicable.

LEGAL RISKS

3.1.7. Legal risks
3.1.7. 1. Overall legal risks

CRH operates in such a manner that it is not expésentellectual property or product
marketing risks.

The legal risk associated with CRH'’s operationsihahe past been widely audited internally

by the risk committee and the rating agencies,isstll subject to regular review by CRH with the
assistance of eminent legal experts.
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At CRH’'S request, specific provisions were addedhe French Savings and Financial
Security Law fa loi Epargne et Sécurité Financidref June 25, 1999 to eliminate any uncertainty
as to CRH's ownership rights over receivables pieldigp the event a borrower files for protection
from creditors.

Furthermore, the validity of the surety granted®H by borrowing institutions is regularly
verified through controls carried out on a tesiday the CRH audit and inspection department.

In order to avoid any conflict of laws, CRH doed accept otherwise eligible loans extended
in other European Union countries.

3.1.7. 2. Regulatory risks

The implementation of the new European Capital Reqents Regulation, which came into
force on January 1, 2014, has hindered CRH's apesat

Indeed, these measures mainly concern deposivestiment banks and are therefore poorly
adapted to the specific nature of CRH. In particulzey are not appropriate for the specific feagur
of the French home financing market, which maimnprises five or six banking groups. CRH raised
these issues with the authorities at the beginoing011 and initiated a dialogue with the French
Treasury Department and the ACPR.

Nevertheless, CRH’s regulatory status should rietcafts ability to meet its obligations on
issued bonds:

- Debt servicing is economically ensured by CRHisrbwing banks and CRH does not take
any margin on its operations.

- The bonds issued retain their European covered btatus.
In view of the size of its balance sheet, CRH waduided in the list of significant credit

institutions under the direct supervision of theBE@& the beginning of November 2014. It was
subjected to the European Banking Authority’s stitesting process.

OPERATING RISKS

3.1.8.0perating Risks

Since its formation in 1985, CRH has never suffereg events giving rise to operating risks
and has never therefore recognized any operatsggo Its highly-specialized activity, which has
modest requirements in terms of technical and humsources, enables it to be extremely adaptable
to all types of unforeseen circumstances or evéitsilarly, CRH benefits from the infrastructure
put in place by its counterparties, being mostlyankrench credit institutions.

In 2009, CRH introduced a new procedure for semgdis debt, using the services of Banque
de France and Euroclear. This procedure greatlycestioperating risks by automating the settlement
of amounts due to bondholders, thereby enabling @Rbicus fully on monitoring the timely receipt
of amounts due from borrowers.
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As indicated in the Chairman’s report on internahtcol, CRH recently moved to a new
service provider to further strengthen its security

INTERNAL CONTROL

3.2. INTERNAL CONTROL: (see page 21 for the report of the Chairman of the Board of
Directors on internal control and corporate governance)

In accordance with Regulation no. 97-02 of the CRBFench Banking and Financial
Regulatory Committee) a report on CRH’s internadtonl system is regularly submitted to the Board
of Directors.

Internal control is also the responsibility of @ngdit committee. The audit committee’s terms
of reference are to assist the Board of Directorensuring the quality of CRH’s internal control
system and the accuracy of the financial informmapoovided to stockholders.

The internal control system is tailored to CRH’stjgallar circumstances:

- above all else, it is important to highlight tinensparency of CRH’s transactions giving rise
to the preparation of a prospectus and which arevsarized in this document;

- its transactions are limited strictly to its corate purpose;

- its transactions are codified by its internalesuband regulations, which are approved by
stockholders and published in this document;

- it has neither foreign activities nor any subeiahs;

- because it has a small number of employees, negulity for monitoring the consistency
and effectiveness of the internal control systesa With General Management.

In addition, CRH'’s internal rules and regulatioeguire CRH’s departments to be audited
regularly by the audit and inspection departmehtsstockholders.
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CHAPTER 4

INFORMATION ABOUT THE ISSUER

4.1. HISTORICAL INFORMATION, RECENT DEVELOPMENTS, A PPLICABLE LAW
4.1.1. Corporate name

Since August 10, 1999 the Company’s corporate naaee been “C.R.H. — Caisse de
Refinancement de I'Habitat.” Previously, the cogier name was “Caisse de Refinancement
Hypothécaire.”

The Company is usually referred to as “CRH,” a¢radrk registered with INPI, the French
trademarks and patents office, on February 23, 1@8@r no. 99777102, renewed on September 29,
2008.

4.1.2. Corporate registration

In Paris, under number: 333 614 980 — A.P.E.: 64927

4.1.3. Date of formation and duration

The Company is established for a period of 99 ybagnning on October 8, 1985.

4.1.4. Registered office — Legal form — Applicableaw — Other provisions of the By-laws
— General information concerning the Company’s capal stock

4.1.4.1. Registered office

CRH's registered office is located at 35 rue LatBné&5008 Paris, France.
Telephone: + 33 (0)1 42 89 49 10 — Fax: + 33 (®Bg 29 67 - Website: http://www.crh-
bonds.com — e-mail address: crh@crh-bonds.com.

4.1.4.2. Legal form

Caisse de Refinancement de I'Habitat (CRH), a Freawrporation gociété anonymeis a
specialized credit institution. Upon its formatidgnwas licensed to operate as a specialized fiahnc
company gociété financiére spécialisgby virtue of the decision taken on September1B&5 by
the French Credit Institutions Committe@omité des Etablissements de CrgditRH opted not to
adopt the new status of financing compasyc(été de financemgrdvailable to institutions that do
not wish to be entirely governed by the regulatioaynework for European credit institutions that
came into force on January 1, 2014.

CRH is governed by the provisions of Articles LO2ILto L. 228-4 of the French Commercial
Code and Articles L. 511-4t seqof the French Monetary and Financial Code.

Under the government-led mortgage market reforrRHGeceived authorization under

Article 13 of Law no. 85-695 of July 11, 1985 itetter dated September 17, 1985 from the French
Ministry of the Economy, Finance and the Budget.
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Its By-laws are in compliance with the provisioristee New Economic Regulations Latoi(
NRE) on the separation of the offices of Chairman @hdef Executive Officer (see Articles 15, 16
and 17 of the appended By-laws). The March 4, Bx¥8d of Directors’ meeting decided to separate
such offices.

However, the right to appoint two separate indiaiduo the offices of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer is not currently used. The Mafi@) 2007 Board of Directors’ meeting appointed
a single individual to the offices of Chairman altief Executive Officer.

However, the ACPR, in a letter dated Septembe2Q03, requested that these offices in fact
be separated pursuant to the new provisions otiwme2013/36/EU of the European Parliament and
Council governing the separation of the office€bairman and the Chief Executive Officer. In light
of the nature of the Company and the profound etguy changes underway, on October 22, 2013,
the Board of Directors unanimously decided to rsglat the combined offices be temporarily
maintained until the end of the term of office of. NRAYMOND, i.e. until the Meeting called to
approve the 2014 financial statements. The Boasdcalraady decided to separate these offices after
the end of this term of office.

As regards corporate governance, the authoritiese haso requested that the senior
management functions be exercised by a Chief Exec@fficer and a Deputy Chief Executive
Officer or, where relevant, Deputy General Managén sufficient powers to effectively manage the
institution. The Chairman of the Board of Direct@$0 longer authorized to exercise this function.
These governance procedures will be implementdy iea2015.

4.1.4.3. Legislation and regulations
A) The laws and regulations applicable to CRH’s transetions are as follows:

- Article 13 of Law no. 85-695 of July 11, 1985, aagplemented by Article 36 of Law no.
2006-872 of July 13, 2006 (see Appendix 1);

- Articles L. 313-42 to L. 313-49 of the French Maary and Financial Code codifying the
provisions of Article 16 of Law no. 69-1263 of Dedger 31, 1969, as amended by Articles 12 and
13 of Law no. 85-695 of July 11, 1985, by Articl&€3lof Law no. 99-532 of June 25, 1999 and by
Article 16 of Decree no. 2008-556 of June 13, 2(¥a& Appendix 2);

- Article L. 513-3 paragraph | concerning SGGo¢iétés de Crédit Foncidfrench mortgage
loan companies compliant with specific regulatiofz®e Appendix 2);

- Article R. 214-21 of the French Monetary and Ficial Code (see Appendix 3);

- Articles R. 313-20 to R. 313-25 of the French Mtamy and Financial Code (see
Appendix 3);

- The Decree of February 17, 2014 amending the d2eof December 23, 2013 on the
application of Article 493 (3) of Regulation (EUp.n575/2013 of the European Parliament and of
the Council of June 26, 2013 on prudential requeets for credit institutions and investment firms
(see Appendix 3);

- Regulation no. 99-10 of the French Banking anthfcial Regulatory Committee on the

valuation of the financed assets to be taken iotoant in determining the portion of a loan thayma
be collateralized (see Appendix 4);
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- Regulation (EU) no. 575/13 of the European Pawdiat and Council of June 26, 2013,
hereinafter referred to as CRR;

- Directive 2013/36/EU of the European Parliamerdt @ouncil of June 26, 2013.
B) CRH'’s position with regard to banking regulations

In December 2000, the French Banking AuthoriBoihmission Bancaijeaudited CRH’s
regulatory compliance with capital adequacy raf@®BF Regulation no. 91-05) and control of
major risks (CRBF Regulation no. 93-05).

The French Banking Authority then confirmed thatHC&pre-existing asset ratios complied
with these regulations:

- for the purposes of Regulation no. 91-05, it dateed that promissory notes included in
CRH’s assets that comply with Article 16 of the LafADecember 31, 1969 (Articles L. 313-42 to L.
313-49 of the French Monetary and Financial Cotelkl be subject to the same legal requirements
as preferred securities issued by an SCF (Frenaltgage loan company compliant with specific
regulations). In calculating CRH’s capital adequeatyo, they should be weighted at 10%;

- for the purposes of Regulation no. 93-05, it reocended that, pending adoption of
regulatory amendments implementing the DirectivdDetember 21, 1992, which fully exempts
covered bonds and equivalent securities from thtdtions applicable to major risks, CRH’s
regulatory compliance should be assessed with degathe beneficiaries of the loans it refinances,
as opposed to the issuers of the promissory nbteslds. The French Banking Authority took the
view that CRH was therefore in compliance with tgulations governing major risks.

At the beginning of 2011, ahead of the implemeatatof the new European banking
regulations, CRH alerted the authorities to thedneeensure that its specific nature be reflected i
said regulations in the same way as the charatitsridf certain foreign institutions were likelylbe.

However, these new European regulations, which datodorce on January 1, 2014, were
specifically designed for deposit and investmemikisaThe new regulations, applied directly without
national transposition, are therefore poorly addptethe specific features of different European
institutions.

In view of the size of its balance sheet, CRH & @osignificant European credit institution.

Examining CRH'’s situation on December 23, 2013 biberd of the ACPR decided to ask CRH
to maintain a Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) ratiol®6. This request was confirmed in a letter
dated February 18, 2014 (see 4.1.5. below). Itnloas been complied with as a result of the capital
increase carried out in June 2014 (see 4.1.4.5Welthis requirement is expected to be confirmed
by the European banking authorities during the €rearter of 2015.

The authorities also decided to maintain the ppiecof treating promissory notes held by
CRH in the same way as legal covered bonds (Dexfrdee Minister for the Economy and Finance
dated February 17, 2014 published in the officwalrpal of February 26, 2014 and ACPR letter of
February 18, 2014), without prejudice to the intetation that could be made by the European
banking authorities in their efforts to obtain ceryence.

In order to limit its regulatory capital requireme@RH has asked for these notes to be rated.
Those issued by three institutions were not ratédeaember 31, 2014.
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On May 2, 2014, all the notes which CRH asked toabed received a rating corresponding
to credit quality step 1. As a result, the ACPR wasked to confirm the weighting of these notes at
10% in accordance with the provisions of Article91l® the CRR. The ACPR was also asked to
confirm the application of the provisions of the RRArticle 496-3) enabling the weighting for the
other notes to be maintained at 10% for 2014. CREkived the relevant confirmations on
May 22, 2014.

As regards the treatment of the notes in the catlicul of the major risks base:

- the notes issued before December 31, 2013 adededt from the major risks base in
accordance with the aforementioned ministerial ekcr

- any promissory notes issued in the future, inoed@nce with the legal covered bond
provisions, are expected to be given a weightin08 subject to their actual weighting remaining
in the credit quality step 1.

C) Prudential recognition waiver for CRH bonds heldby European credit institutions

With respect to CRH’s liabilities, the French BamgkiAuthority also determined in December
2000 that, inasmuch as holders of CRH bonds ergoyreference over CRH'’s unsecured creditors,
these bonds should continue to be weighted at 20&ebcredit institutions which hold them and not
at 10% like the preferred securities issued by@R &rench mortgage loan company compliant with
specific regulations).

Subsequently, Article 36 of Law no. 2006-872 ofyJLB, 2006 awarded preferential status to
the bearers of CRH bonds. In accordance with tbeigions of Article 13 of Law no. 85-695 of July
11, 1985, as amended by said Article 36, the ansoont/alues received in return for promissory
notes held by CRH are now allocated, with prefeeegmed under all circumstances, to servicing the
debt, i.e. the payment of the interest and prin@pats bonds. This legislation also specifies tha
provisions of Book VI of the French Commercial Camte distressed companies, as well as those
concerning all legal or amicable proceedings fdedthe basis of foreign laws, do not constitute an
obstacle to the exercise of this preferential clditms legislation took immediate effect and applie
to all bonds issued previous and subsequent thaheof July 13, 2006, with the preferential status
legally established as a right in the absenceeattribution of a State guarantee.

In a letter sent to the Delegate General of the A8Bctober 31, 2006, the French Banking
Authority indicated that CRH’s bonds are subjec tisk-adjusted weighting of 10%, as for covered
bonds, and indeed appear comparable to legal abvemeds as defined in Directive 2006/48/EC
(Text of the directive, Appendix 6, Part 1, Sect&®).

Under the CRR, all legal covered bonds that meeteéquirements of CRR Article 129 are

treated equally provided their rating correspods edit quality step 1. The treatment of CRH bonds
is therefore effectively unchanged at presentimrigard.
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D) Prudential recognition waiver for CRH bonds heldby European mutual funds

Decree no. 2000-664 granted a waiver to CRH'’s basdsovided under Article 4 of Decree
no. 89-623 of September 6, 1989, correspondinghéoprovisions of Article 52.4 of the 1985
European UCITS directive. This waiver allows a edlive investment undertaking to invest up to
25% of its assets in CRH securities (if the valtisexurities benefiting from this waiver does not
exceed 80% of its total assets). These provisioasadified in Article R. 214-21 of the French
Monetary and Financial Code (see Appendix 3).
4.1.4.4. Other provisions of the By-laws

A) Corporate purpose

CRH’s corporate purpose is to:

- refinance promissory notes signed or endorsedhbystockholders or establishments
committed to becoming stockholders according toptloeedures set forth in Articles 6 and 8 below
in order to collateralize the receivables descriimeArticle L. 313-42 of the French Monetary and
Financial Code and representimgme-purchase loans

- issue bonds and other securities with charatiezisomparable to the collateralized notes
in consideration for the mortgage notes acquired;

- in general, to enter into real estate and otheistietions relating to the purpose described
above or any similar or related purpose, or sudk hlsely to advance such purpose.

The Company may not hold an interest in or opesabeisiness unrelated to its corporate
purpose. In particular, it may not incur debt redated to this purpose except for subordinated debt
to strengthen its stockholders’ equity or in thergwof the default of the issuer of a promissoreno

B) Fiscal year

The Company's fiscal year begins on January 1 adgl @n December 31.

C) Distribution of net income provided in the By-lavs

See Article 24 of the By-laws in Appendix 5.

D) Convening of Stockholders’ Meetings

See Article 20 of the By-laws in Appendix 5.

E) Attendance and representation at Stockholders’ Metings

See Article 21 of the By-laws in Appendix 5.
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4.1.4.5. General information concerning the Comparig capital stock

A) Subscribed capital stock

The March 11, 2014 Combined Stockholders’ Meetiafpgated to the Board of Directors
the necessary powers to increase the capital ftockEUR 299,807,237.75 to a maximum amount
of EUR 599,999,995.50 during the next five yearsnie or more transactions.

At its meeting on April 29, 2014, the Board of [iters, having discussed the matter, decided
to carry out an initial capital increase in cadaling a maximum of EUR 240,187,500 to be paid up
partly through an offset against the subordinadeti$ granted to CRH by the stockholders and partly
in cash.

On June 17, 2014, the Board of Directors recognioedpletion of this capital increase.

Given the number of stock units actually subscrijlhed 15,750,000 new stock units, the
subscribed capital stock amounts to EUR 539,9947B3divided into 35,409,494 stock units of
EUR 15.25 each.

None of these stock units has been pledged.

CRH'’s stock is not listed on any stock exchange.

B) Authorized capital stock not subscribed

As of December 31, 2014, the authorized capitatkstmot subscribed amounted to EUR
60,005,257.75.

C) Convertible bonds and other instruments grantingaccess to the capital stock

There are no convertible bonds or composite seesitihat could give their holders access to
the Company’s capital stock now or in the future.

D) Changes in capital structure
See the five-year financial summary on page 19.
E) Distribution of capital stock (excerpt from Article 6 — see Appendix 5)

Capital stock is reallocated at the beginning ahegear so as to ensure that each stockholder
holds a percentage equal to its percentage obthelbans refinanced by CRH.

F) Dividend policy

CRH stock is allocated to stockholders in accordamith the rules described in the previous
paragraph. Accordingly, there are no consideratrelaive to the distribution policy.

Dividends paid to stockholders are summarizedarfitte-year financial summary on page 19.

The dividend limitation period is five years.
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4.1.5. Recent developments specific to the issuetiwa material impact on the assessment of its
solvency

No recent event specific to CRH has had a matnijgact on the assessment of its solvency
since December 31, 2014.

4.2. BONDS
4.2.1. Issuance policy

CRH refinances credit institutions by issuing ban@&H's bond issues are governed by
Article 13 of Law no. 85-695 (see Appendix 1).

Since its creation, CRH has applied a policy offamlation” of its bonds to establish a large
pool of very liquid securities. In general, the kathat place these securities make a market éonth

With certain bond issues amounting to EUR 5 billi@RH’s loans are among the biggest
European residential mortgage-backed bond issues.

In 2014, no bonds were issued and CRH redeemedstandunting to EUR 4,095 million.
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CRH annual issuance amounts are summarized below:

Year Number of issues in thgg Nominal amount
year (EUR millions)
1985 (4" quarter) 2 551.87
1086 6 1,506.20 | %° goysegggigttgi‘:]aramee
1987 8 L78365 | ¢yr's.774.77 million
1988 9 1,933.05 ' ’
1988 1 152.45
1989 6 1,184.53
1990 8 1,219.59
1991 10 1,829.39
1992 8 1,387.29
1993 11 1,585.47
1994 1 91.47
1995 2 266.79
1996 2 525.95
1997 2 304.90
1998t 6 2,143.43
19991 12 3,055.00 212 issues
2000 9 2,553.00 without government
2001 9 1,384.00 guarantees totaling
2002 9 1,798.00 EUR 84,722.09 million
2003 8 1,802.00
2004 9 2,560.00
2005 10 3,050.00
2006 12 7,655.00
2007 14 8,325.00
2008 6 7,400.00
2009 15 5,050.00
20102 17 9,201.01
20113 14 12,132.57
20124 6 5,530.42
20135 5 2,534.83
2014 0 0
TOTAL 237 90,496.86 90,496.86
LIncluding the public exchange offer during the muof the year.
2Including the Swiss franc-denominated bond isswingt CHF 250 million (EUR 186.01 million) settled duly
21, 2010.
31Including the Swiss franc-denominated bond issutted®n:
- March 29, 2011: CHF 625 million (EUR 482.36 million)
- July 12, 2011: CHF 175 million (EUR 150.21 million)
4Including the Swiss franc-denominated bond issutieden:
- March 5, 2012: CHF 625 million (EUR 518.20 million)
- May 23, 2012: CHF 375 million (EUR 312.21 million)
SIncluding the Swiss franc-denominated bond issuiled®n:
- March 15, 2013: CHF 200 million (EUR 162.50 million)
- June 26, 2013: CHF 150 million (EUR 122.33 million)

Since the creation of CRH, repayments have totalgld 42,863.03 million, bringing the total

outstanding nominal amount to EUR 47,633.83 million
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4.2.2. Bond issues during the fiscal year

As indicated in 4.2.1. above, no bond issues waneed out during 2014.

4.2.3. CRH bond maturities at December 31, 2014

. Number | Nominal .
Bond Redemption ISIN code of unit Qutst_andlng Currency
date " (in millions)
securities| value
CRH 2.50% May 2015 May 7, 2015| FR0010892%52,050,000,000 1 1,050 EUR
CRH 1.50% September 2015 Sep. 21,2015 CH0114336255 50,000 5,000 250 CHF
CRH 4.10% October 2015 Oct. 25,2016  FR001013487%70,000,000 1 4,970 EUR
CRH 1.75% March 2016 Mar. 29, 201¢ CH0125062254 55,000 5,000 275 CHF
CRH 2.60% April 2016 Apr. 26, 2016] FR0010962610100,000,000 1 1,100 EUR
CRH 3.75% December 2014 Dec. 12,2016  FR001069f292 15,000 100,000, 1,500 EUR
CRH 3.50% April 2017 Apr. 25,2017| FR00102614@370,000,000 1 4,870 EUR
CRH 1.125% September 20{17Sep. 21, 2017 | CH0184777255 40,000 5,000 200 CHF
CRH 4.50% October 2017 Oct. 25, 201f  FR001059137815,000,000 1 2,415 EUR
CRH 4.00% April 2018 Apr. 25, 2018| FR0010345181040,000,000 1 4,040 EUR
CRH 1.625% March 2019 Mar. 5,2019 CH0148606079 55,000 5,000 275 CHF
CRH 5.00% April 2019 Apr. 8,2019 | FR0010744924905,000,000 1 2,905 EUR
CRH 1.375% October 2019 Oct. 25,201p  FR0011443985 750,000 1,000 750 EUR
CRH 3.75% February 2020 Feb. 19,2020 FR001085f5020,000,000 1 2,000 EUR
CRH 3.50% June 2020 Jun. 22,202p  FR001091(24®0,000,000 1 2,100 EUR
CRH 3.90% January 2021 Jan. 18,2041  FR001098pB800,000,000 1 1,900 EUR
CRH 2.50% March 2021 Mar. 29, 202] CHO0125062R62 105,000 5,000 525 CHF
CRH 3.60% September 2021 Sep. 13,2021  FR001110a9560,000,000 1 1,500 EUR
CRH 4.00% January 2022 Jan. 10,2032  FR001105[3060,000,000 1 2,100 EUR
CRH 1.875% May 2022 May 23,2024 CHO0184777p71 35,000 5,000 175 CHF
CRH 4.00% June 2022 Jun.17,202P  FR001117824%0,000,000 1 2,000 EUR
CRH 3.30% September 2022  Sep. 23,2022  FR001094%24510,000,000 1 2,200 EUR
CRH 4.30% February 2023 Feb. 24,2023 FR001101}2880,000,000 1 2,900 EUR
CRH 1.375% March 2023 Mar. 15, 2028  CH0204477290 40,000 5,000 200 CHF
CRH 3.90% October 2023 Oct. 20, 2028  FR00111330080,000,000 1 1,400 EUR
CRH 2.375% March 2024 Mar. 5, 2024  CH0148606{137 70,000 5,000 350 CHF
CRH 3.60% March 2024 Mar. 8, 2024]  FR001121315300,000,000 1 2,500 EUR
CRH 2.40 % January 2025 Jan. 17,2035  FR001138B3300,000,000 1 1,500 EUR
CRH 1.75 % June 2025 Jun. 26,2026  CH021293f244 30,000 5,000 150 CHF
45,700 EUR
Total

2,400 CHF




Since the outset, substantially all of CRH’s bohdse been issued at a fixed rate of interest.
In accordance with the By-laws, they are perfegttched in terms of interest rate and maturity to
CRH’s loans.

CRH'’s bonds have been rated Aaa and AAA by Moodyd Fitch Ratings since 1999. These
ratings were thus assigned well before the law tgcatheir bearers a preferential claim on the
mortgage notes held by CRH.

They have the dispensatory status set out in &rb@l.4 of the 1985 UCITS Directive.

They are regarded as “guaranteed” covered bordisfismed in European Directive no. 2006/48
EC and, as such, a 10% risk weighting is assigndénthe standardized approach for the calculation
of the capital adequacy ratio of the European banpkmstitutions that hold them and satisfy the
requirements of Article 129 of the CRR.

They are eligible for refinancing operations witle European Central Bank, which is currently
an attractive characteristic for some of their baye

4.2.4. Amount of trading volumes

In the absence of the amount of stock exchangenggarhnsactions, trading volume statistics
provided by Euroclear France are given below. Theyude only Euroclear France members’
transactions and therefore exclude Euroclear Bantk Glearstream transactions. They represent
trades, repos, or other transfers.

(EUR millions)

Initial Par value Par value Par value

Bond listing date ISIN code of trades of trades of trades

in 2012 in 2013 in 2014

CRH 2.50 % May 2015 May 7, 2016R0010892521 437.5 283.2 452.7
CRH 4.10 % October 2015 Nov. 22, 20BR0010134379 1,993.8 4,174.9 3,410.8
CRH 2.60 % April 2016 Nov. 17, 20[IBR0010962670 754.6 519.4 390.0
CRH 3.75 % December 2016 Dec. 12, 2(FRR0010697292 / 2,614.1 2,153.9
CRH 3.50 % April 2017 Dec. 21, 20BR0010261495 1,181.0 1,729.7 1,351.6
CRH 4.50 % October 2017 Mar. 10, 20B6&0010591578 909.5 777.4 828.3
CRH 4.00 % April 2018 Jun. 30, 20pBR0010345181 1,101.8 1,089.2 272.0
CRH 5.00 % April 2019 Apr. 8, 2009FR0010744904 1,154.4 1,031.7 589.9
CRH 1.375 % October 2019| Mar. 25, 20ER0011443985 / 358.6 101.0
CRH 3.75 % February 2020 | Feb. 19, 20ER0010857677 336.9 820.3 230.3
CRH 3.50 % June 2020 Jun. 22, 20ER0010910240 730.1 3325 329.3
CRH 3.90% January 2021 Jan. 18, 2pER0010989889 530.0 855.5 766.6
CRH 3.60% September 2021  Sep. 13, 4GFR0011108976 390.2 351.5 377.0
CRH 4.00 % January 2022 Jun. 8,2011 FR0011057306 07.84 594.3 2133
CRH 4.00% June 2022 Jan. 17, 20ER0011178944 4,215.4 893.6 1,484.9
CRH 3.30 % September 202P  Sep. 23, 46FR001094545] 1,499.9 1,330.6 460.3
CRH 4.30% February 2023 | Feb. 24, 20ER0011011188 718.9 825.2 646.4
CRH 3.90% October 2023 Oct. 20, 20ER0011133008 584.6 285.2 230.6
CRH 3.60% March 2024 Mar. 8, 201PR0011213453 4,922.8 1,398.9 560.5
CRH 2.40 % January 2025 Jan. 17, 2pAR0011388339 / 1,875.7 173.9
TOTAL 21,869.2 22,141.5 15,023.3




Even though it has become difficult today to sefgacat exchange transactions from these
amounts and total amounts are not always compafarteyear to year, these figures indicate that
CRH'’s bonds are among the most liquid on the Elapnm®vered bond market. This situation is no
doubt due to the size of CRH’s lines and its risknagement system.
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CHAPTER 5
BUSINESS OVERVIEW
5.1. CORE BUSINESS
5.1.1. Company formation and core business
5.1.1.1. Company formation

CRH was established in 1985 as an agency as pdheodfrench government’s mortgage
market reforms in order teefinance home-purchase loans granted by credit itisutions by
issuing bonds guaranteed by the French government.

5.1.1.2. Operations

Since 1988, the bonds it issues have not been meac by the French government as
provided under the 1985 law, but CRH still hasgble purpose of refinancing home-purchase loans
granted by stockholder credit institutions to finarassets located in France.

CRH thus brings resources to the French bankingsysomplementing those from deposits
and issues of covered or non-covered debt.

Based on this fact, it plays a particular roleimahcing housing in France by tapping into
stable, non-monetary resources at a lower cost.

Law no. 99-532 of June 25, 1999 establishing SCfen@h mortgage loan companies
compliant with specific regulations) buttressed #exurity of CRH and matched its scope of
operations and eligibility criteria to those of t&EF. This law eliminated the mortgage market and
thus gave birth to a wider market for refinancimgi$ing loans in which certain secured loans could
also be refinanced.

Accordingly, in order to affirm the anchoring o$ ibperations solely in the residential loan
refinancing market, in 1999 CRH adopted the compaiyme CRH — Caisse de Refinancement de
I'Habitat.

The structure of its guarantees, the significanteefinancing needs expressed by its
stockholders and the policy of systematic assimitabf bonds issued that CRH has followed have
allowed it to become an important issuer in theolgaan financial market with a total amount issued
since its founding (equal to the amount of its K)aaf EUR 90.4 billion, corresponding to 237
transactions. The French government chose CRH’shtoestablish the Société de Financement de
I'Economie Francaise (SFEF) on October 17, 2008iwe banking institutions easier access to the
financial markets.

5.1.1.3. Operating conditions
A) CRH'’s operations involve specific guarantees

Appendix 10 (page 175) of this report summarizesdifferent levels of security built into
CRH's refinancing operations.
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The refinancing loans granted by CRH are perfenotiyched by its bond issues, since it lends
all the capital raised on the financial marketsitsostockholders at the same interest rates and
maturities.

Principal and interest on such loans are secured $pecific pledge referred to in Articles
L. 313-42 to L. 313-49 of the French Monetary anthRcial Code which secures them up to at least
125% of their nominal value.

Said provisions provide that CRH may automaticédlgcome the owner of the pledged
portfolio in the event of borrower default, notvathnding any provisions to the contrary.

CRH has strengthened the reliability of this systsmsetting stricter internal rules, especially
by excluding loans with maturities of more thany2ars and RMBS from the cover pool pledged to
secure the loans.

B) Regulatory oversight

1. On January 1, 1988, the French Banking Authaviig charged with monitoring the legal
and regulatory compliance of refinancing operati@ecree of the French Minister for the Economy,
Finance and the Budget of December 15, 1987, wdubisequently became Article L. 313-49 of the
French Monetary and Financial Code).

2. Under the requirements currently in effect, baers are required to regularly provide lists
of the receivables pledged to CRH to enable itetafy that the collateral has in fact been plediped
the agreed amounts.

3. CRH also conducts audits of its borrowers orgular and as-needed basis to verify the
existence, legality and validity of pledged recéies through sampling.

Where receivables are found to be ineligible, thedwing institution is required to increase
the amount of pledged assets to make up for thefaloor failing this, to purchase an equivalent
amount of the corresponding bonds on the marketiatider them to CRH by way of repayment.

5.1.2. New activities

CRH’s activities are limited by its By-laws and tlegislation governing its operations.

Between January 1, 2010, and December 31, 2014, WddHesponsible for monitoring and
controlling the debt servicing and the managemétheguarantees of the Société de Financement
de I'Economie Francaise (SFEF) in conjunction \Biéimque de France and service providers already
involved in these activitiegSeeBanque de France press release dated Decembel0D8, énhd the
decrees dated December 22, 2009 and December 18, &fthe French Ministry of the Economy
and Finance authorizing Henry RAYMOND as Chief bkee Officer of SFEF).
5.1.3. Principal markets

CRH'’s sole purpose is to refinance home-purcheamaslextended by banks in France.

To do so, the Company issues mortgage bonds untieleAL3 of Law no. 85-695 of July 11,

1985 with covered bond status as defined in Artlde of the CRR. Its bonds are traded on NYSE
Euronext Paris undébligations fonciéres et titres assimilahles
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5.2. REFINANCING

Trends in the amount of loans granted and outstandig loans eligible for refinancing by
CRH, and the home-purchase loan refinancing and rdastate situation in France

5.2.1. Trends in the amount of new loans

The following table summarizes total lending by CB¥r the past three years.

(EUR billions)
Fiscal year 2012 2013 2014
New loans granted 5.5 2.5 0

5.2.2. Trends in outstanding loans

The table below demonstrates the trend in the namadue of CRH'’s total outstanding loans
since December 31, 2012.

(EUR millions)
Borrowing credit institutions Dgg.lgl, Dgg.lgl, At 28;‘31’ Dec. ? 1, 2014
(%)

Crédit Agricole SA 14,357 14,504 13,081 27.5
Banque Fédérative du Crédit Mutuel 12,369 11,529 10,869 22.8
Société Générale 6,607 6,677 6,677 14.0
Crédit Lyonnais 5,878 5,028 4,778 10.0
BNP Paribas 5,209 4,959 4,184 8.4
BPCE 3,168 3,408 3,022 6.3
Caisse Centrale du Crédit Mutuel 3,235 3,198 2,803 5.9
Crédit Mutuel Arkéa 2,010 1,560 1,364 2.9
Crédit du Nord 745 645 645 14
GE Money Bank 261 211 211 0.4
Other borrowers 60 10 0 0
Total 53,899 51,729 47,634 100.0

Generally, changes in these levels are generatetdnges in the total value of loans granted
and repayments made by the borrowers, eitheratriiaturity or by early repayment under the terms
of the agreement implemented in 1994, althougHatter type of repayment has not been used for

several years.
5.2.3. Outstanding loans eligible for CRH refinanaig

Pursuant to legislative amendments in 1999, stdisin the mortgage market are no longer
published.

As aresult, CRH has asked its stockholder crestitutions to submit copies of their quarterly
SURFI reports$ysteme Unifié de Reporting Financienified System of Financial Reporting) as a
basis for estimating their outstanding eligible lepurchase loans.
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The table below summarizes those outstandings:

As of September 30, 2014

Total outstanding loans
for all credit institutions

Outstanding loans of CRH stockholdey
credit institutions

EUR billions (1) EUR billions (2) % of total
Housing loans 1,147.9 782.8 68
Home-purchase loans 922.1 722.8 78

(1) Source: Banque de France, Bulletin no. 198urtfoquarter 2014 and Webstat statistics.
(2) Source: CRH estimates based on SURFI returogiged by stockholders and their publications.

Groups holding stock in CRH thus hold 78% of alif@purchase loans.

5.2.4. Refinancing of home-purchase loans grantedybmonetary financial institutions

(excluding Banque de France)

The following table presents some global figures:

As at September 30, 2014

(EUR billions
Application of funds by Monetary Sources of funds of Monetary Financial
Financial Institutions Institutions
Home-purchase loans to 922.1 | Regulated sources 589.7
households (not including Livret A and Livret Bleu
savings accounts)
Covered bonds 219.5
- of which CRH 51.8
Other applications 7,209.8 | Other sources 7,322.7
- of which, capital and reserves 518.2
- of which, non-regulated deposits
995.5
Total applications 8,131.9 | Total sources 8,131.9

Source:
Thisdocument is now drawn up on the basis of figurdsigied by the Banque de France (Banque de Frandleti for
the fourth quarter of 2014, no. 198 and Webstafs hot totally comparable with the document psiidid previoust
Following the transformation of the French bankiegulatory body, now the APCR (Autorité de Conti®tadentiel et
de Résolution) formerly the French Banking CommisgCommission bancaire), the report produced by #uthority
currently comprises data that are not absaly identical to those previously used to draw ug thble.

Generally, it is of course difficult to match upesific sources of funds to a given application.
Some observations may, nevertheless, be made:

- regulated sources of funds contribute in larg@asuee to the financing of banks’ housing
loans,

- certain covered bonds refinance housing loanstgdan France but also mortgage loans to
industrial and commercial companies, loans to tiidip sector and local and regional governments
or shares in foreign debt securitization funds essidential mortgage-backed securities (RMBS),
whereas CRH refinances only home-purchase loamsegtén France.
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5.3. TREND IN HOUSING LOANS IN FRANCE

Total housing loan production for the first ninemtits of 2014 totaled EUR 78.3 billion, more
than 11% lower than for the same period in 2013.

Home-purchase loan outstandings rose by 2.7% batWeptember 2013 and September
2014, which was a smaller increase than in preweass (3.9% in 2013 and 3.5% in 2012).

Given the modest (1.2%) fall in the prices of arigthousing stock during the year to
September 30, 2014, the slow correction that begéate 2011 is continuing.

Interest rates continued to fall in 2014, whichr@ased the purchasing power of potential
buyers.

From the regulatory perspective, the improvementsthie buy-to-let incentives could
encourage investors to return to the new housingeha

The recent amendments made to the conditions famtigig loans to enable low-income

households to buy their own home were aimed atweagmng first-time buyers, few of whom are
entering the market at the moment due to the cuhigh prices.
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CHAPTER 6

ORGANIZATION CHART

6.1. ORGANIZATION OF THE COMPANY

Board of Directors*

~
Olivier HASSLER
Chairman
(from March 17, 2015) )
4 N
Henry RAYMOND
Chairman (and Chief Executive Officer)
(Until March 17, 2015)

Executives

Henry RAYMOND
Director - Chief Executive Officer

Alain CHENEAU
General Secretary

Administration and

Finance and communicatians )
accounting

Inspection

Henry RAYMOND Alain CHENEAU

Hervé LE BRIS
Head of the Inspection
department

CRH has no subsidiaries and is not part of anymrou

* See the composition of the Board of Directorsp@i

6.2. (NOT APPLICABLE)
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CHAPTER 7

TREND INFORMATION

7.1. PRINCIPAL TRENDS AFFECTING THE COMPANY’S BUSIN ESS IN 2014

It should be recalled that CRH does not take angman its operations and that any change
in refinancing levels therefore has no direct impacthe Company’s earnings or financial position.

No refinancing operations were carried out durihg fiiscal year 2014 due to the
implementation of the new regulations, which arellering CRH’s operations.
7.2. TRENDS AND EVENTS LIKELY TO AFFECT THE COMPANY 'S BUSINESS IN 2015

As mentioned above, the new European regulatioas were implemented recently are
severely hindering CRH's operations.
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CHAPTER 8

PROFIT FORECASTS OR ESTIMATES

This document does not contain any forecast data.

8.1. (NOT APPLICABLE)

8.2. (NOT APPLICABLE)

8.3. (NOT APPLICABLE)
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CHAPTER 9
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

9.1. INFORMATION CONCERNING THE MEMBERS OF THE
MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODIES

9.1.0. Honorary Chairmen

- Georges PLESCOFF)(
- Claude PIERRE-BROSSOLETTE

9.1.1. Board of Directors

- Olivier HASSLER
Appointed on March 17, 20115, for 1 year
First appointed as Director on March 17, 2015 &fgears.

- Henry RAYMOND
Appointed on March 13, 2007
First appointed as Director on March 13, 2007 gfgears, appointme
renewed for 6 years on February 28, 2013.

- Banque Fédérative du Crédit Mutuel
represented by Jean-Frangois TAURAND
Head of Asset/Liability Management
6 avenue de Provence, 75009 Paris
First appointed by coption of Compagnie Financiere de CIC and
EU on October 17, 1995 by the Board of Directors, conéidmon
February 27, 1996 for the CIC.
Appointment confirmed on March 4, 2008 for the rerdar of the tern
(5 years) of the resigning CIC representative, agpeent renewed fc
6 years on February 28, 2013.

- BNP Paribas
represented by Valérie BRUNERIE
Head of Medium and Long-term Financing and Se@ation
3 rue d’Antin, 75002 Paris
First appointed on October 21, 1985 by Banque Natede Paris,
appointment renewed for 6 years on March 17, 2015.

- BPCE

represented by Roland CHARBONNEL

Director of Issues and Financial Communication

50 avenue Pierre Mendes France, 75013 Paris

First appointed on October 21, 1985 by Caisse @knties Banque
Populaires.

Appointment confirmed on Marc, 2010 for 5 years, i.e. the remain
of the term of the resigning Banque Fédérale dewmjBas Populaire
appointment renewed for 6 years on March 17, 2015.

ADMI NISTRATIVE,

Chairman
(from March 17, 2015)

Chairman
(until March 17, 2015)

Director

Director

Director
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- Caisse Centrale du Crédit Mutuel
represented by Sophie OLIVIER
Head of the Retail Market division
88/90 rue Cardinet, 75017 Paris
First appointed on April 10, 1990,
appointment renewed for six years on March 17, 2015

- Crédit Agricole SA
represented by Nadine FEDON
Head of Group Funding
12 place des Etats-Unis, 92127 Montrouge Cedex
First appointed by Caisse Nationale de Crédit Adeic
on May 12, 1987, appointment renewed for 6 yearslarch 17,
2015.

- Crédit Lyonnais
represented by Christian LARRICQ-FOURCADE
Head of Asset/Liability Management
10 avenue de Paris, 94800 Villejuif
First appointed on April 19, 1988, appointment eee
for 6 years on March 17, 2015.

- GE Money Bank

represented by Francois KLIBER

Chief Executive Officer

Tour Europlaza, La Défense 4

20 avenue André Prothin, 92063 Paris la Défensexed

First appointed by BFIM Sovac on October 21, 1985,

appointment renewed for 6 years on February 283201
- Société Géneérale

represented by Vincent ROBILLARD

Head of Group Funding

17 cours Valmy, 92972 Paris la Défense Cedex

First appointed on October 21, 1985,

appointment renewed for 6 years on March 17, 2015.

9.1.2. Executives

- Henry RAYMOND
renewed for 1 year on March 17, 2015 as
Chief Executive Officer
electing address for service at the Company’s
registered office.

- Alain CHENEAU
electing address for service at the Company’s
registered office.

9.1.3. Compensation Committee

- Sophie OLIVIER
- Nadine FEDON
- Vincent ROBILLARD

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director and Chief Executiv
Officer

General Secretary

Caisse Centrale du Crédit Mutuel
Crédit Agricole SA

Société Générale
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9.1.4. Audit Committee

- Christian LARRICQ-FOURCADE Chairman Crédit Lyonsa
_ Jean-Francois TAURAND Banque Fédérative du Crédit
Mutuel
- Francois KLIBER GE Money Bank
9.1.5. Other positions held by the corporate offias in 2014
Henry RAYMOND - Chief Executive Officer of the Sété de

Financement de I'Economie Francaise (SFEF)

Jean-Francgois TAURAND - No other corporate office

Valérie BRUNERIE - Director of the Société de Finament de
I'Economie Francaise (SFEF)

- Director and Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of BNP Paribas Home Loan SFH

- Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer
of BNP Paribas Public Sector SCF

Roland CHARBONNEL - Director of the Société de Finament de
I'Economie Francaise (SFEF)

- Chairman of the board of directors of GCE
Covered Bonds

- Chairman of the board of directors of Banques
Populaires Covered Bonds

- Chief Executive Officer of BPCE - SFH

Sophie OLIVIER - No other corporate office

Nadine FEDON - Director of the Société de Finanagre
I'Economie Francaise (SFEF)

- Director and Chief Executive Officer of Crédit
Agricole Home Loan SFH (formerly CACB)

- Chief Executive Officer of GFER
- Chairman of GPF

- Director and Chief Executive Officer of Crédit
Agricole Export Credit Agencies SCF
(formerly Sigma 22)
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Christian LARRICQ-FOURCADE - No other corporateioéf

Francois KLIBER - Chief Executive Officer of GE Mey Bank
- Manager of ALCOR et Cie
- Co-manager of GE SCF

Vincent ROBILLARD - Director of the Société de Fir@ment de
I'Economie Francaise (SFEF)

- Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer
of Société Générale SCF

- Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer
of Société Générale SFH

- Member of the Management Board of Société
Générale LDG

- Vice-Chairman of SGIS

9.2. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST IN THE ADMINISTRATIVE, M ANAGEMENT AND
SUPERVISORY BODIES

Article 21 of CRH’s By-laws provides fo
r dilution of the voting rights attached to the ciounits in order to maintain CRH’s
independence.

To the best of CRH’s knowledge, no member of theniatstrative, management or

supervisory bodies has any conflict of interesiMeein duties to the Company and private interests

and/or other duties.

Henry RAYMOND, Valérie BRUNERIE, Roland CHARBONNEINadine FEDON and

Vincent ROBILLARD do, however, hold the positiorssdribed above at the Société de Financement

de I'Economie Francaise (SFEF).
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10.1.

CHAPTER 10

MAJOR STOCKHOLDERS

HOLDING MORE THAN 3% OF THE VOTING RIGHTS

IDENTIFICATION OF STOCKHOLDERS OR GROUPS OF STOCKHOLDERS

Capital stock is reallocated each year before M&fcko as to ensure that each stockholder
holds a percentage equal to its percentage obthelbans refinanced by CRH (see Article 6 of the
By-laws in Appendix 5). This allocation is made &&®sn the amounts at December 31 of the previous

fiscal year.

The table below lists the principal stockholdersDetcember 31, 2014 and changes in
ownership structure over the past three years.

Dec. 31, 2012 Dec. 31, 2013 Dec. 31, 2014
Number Number Number|
of of of
Stockholder | number of % voting o% Number of o% voting % Number of o% voting %
groups stock units 0 rights ° stock units ° rights 0 stock units ° rights 0
(1) (1) 1)
Crédit Agricole 7,258,66f 36.94| 2,127 30.22| 7,378,069 37.53| 2,116] 30.35| 13,372,618 37.76| 2,086 30.15
Crédit Mutuel 6,476,878 32.96| 2,104 29.89| 6,422,311 32.67| 2,076 29.78| 11,129,93¢ 31.48 2,020, 29.19
Société Générale 2,712,9¢513.80( 1,177 16.72] 2,680,674 13.64| 1,161 16.66] 5,034,264 14.15 1,153] 16.66
BNP Paribas 1,966,149 10.00f 1,000f 14.21] 1,899,300 9.66 966| 13.86| 3,386,746 9.59 956] 13.82
BPCE 1,127,887 5.74 574 8.15] 1,179,718 6.00 600 8.61] 2,338,701 6.61 661 9.55
Other stockholders 110,112 0.56 57 0.81 99,415 0.50 52 0.74 147,226 0.41 43 0.63
Total 19,652,593 100.00; 7,039| 100.00f 19,659,491 100.00, 6,971| 100.00{ 35,409,491 100.00| 6,919| 100.00

(1) For calculation of the voting rights, refer £gticle 21 of the By-laws in Appendix 5.

10.2. STOCKHOLDER AGREEMENTS

CRH is unaware of the existence of any stockhcddeeements.
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CHAPTER 11

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE ISSUER’S ASSETS, LIABI LITIES, FINANCIAL
POSITION AND EARNINGS

11.1. HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

11.1.1. Accounting standards

Regarding the implementation of International FriahReporting Standards (IFRS), CRH
made an inquiry through its independent auditothéoFrench National Association of Independent
auditors Compagnie Nationale des Commissaires aux CompdCC) as to whether CRH would
be subject to these standards. The May 17, 20@bmes from CNCC, which was submitted to the
AMF by CRH, was as follows:

With regard to the requirements of Regulation @06/2002 of the European Parliament,
only companies that raise capital through publideahgs and publish consolidated financial
statements are required to prepare these statemerascordance with international accounting
standards. [Translated from the French]

The extension of this requirement to the finanstatements of companies raising capital
through public offerings is up to each Member Stdtihe European Union.

At the date of this document, the relevant auttesin France have not introduced any option
or special requirement for companies raising chpiitsough public offerings and not publishing
consolidated financial statements.

The provisions of Decree no. 2004-1382 of Decern2Ber2004 on the adaptation of French
legislative measures to EU measures in the areacobunting regulations do not include the
possibility under EU regulations of authorizing rquiring the use of international accounting
standards for company financial statements. Thexef0RH need not publish its annual financial
statements in accordance with international acaogrstandards.

No changes in accounting methods affected the ¢iaastatements for the fiscal year 2014.
The provisions adopted by the French Accountingi@&teds Authority Autorité des Normes
Comptables ANC) and whose application was mandatory in 2@itnot have a material impact on

the financial statements.

11.1.2. Financial statements submitted for approvab the Regular Stockholders’ Meeting of
March 17, 2015
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BALANCE SHEET

(EUR thousands)

ASSETS Note | Dec. 31, 2014 Dec. 31, 2013 Dec. 31, 2012
CASH, CENTRAL BANKS 1 1 2
LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS 506,312 444,728 303,017

- Demand deposits 57,652 59,550 65,658
- Term deposits 4 447,722 384,04( 236,391
- Accrued interest 938 1,138 968
BONDS AND OTHER FIXED-INCOME SECURITIES 48,574,497 52,688,644 55,034,774
- Investment securities 3-4 47,491,960 51,574,034 53,793,1F5
- Short-term investments 4 60,000 60,000 180,00p
- Accrued interest 1,022,537 1,054,610 1,061,599
EQUITY HOLDINGS AND OTHER LONG-TERM

SECURITIES 4 4 4
INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 8 5 8
TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 37 42 40

- Office furniture 1 1 2

- Fittings 20 23 25

- Miscellaneous equipment 2 4
- Office equipment 8 16 9
OTHER ASSETS 5 103 127 102
PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME 117 150 111
TOTAL 49,081,079 53,133,70[]. 55,338,0p8
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BALANCE SHEET

Before distribution

(EUR thousands)

LIABILITIES Note | Dec. 31,2014 Dec. 31, 20143 Dec. 31, 2412
DEBT SECURITIES 48,514,374 52,628,334 54,852,537
- Bonds 3-4 47,491,960 51,574,034 53,793,171
- Accrued interest 1,022,414 1,054,300 1,059,362
OTHER LIABILITIES 5 168 250 400
PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME 301 324 326
PROVISIONS 6 374 218 190
SUBORDINATED DEBT 877 189,931 168,933
8

- Subordinated loans 0 187,861 166,308
- Accrued interest 877 2,070 2,625
FUND FOR GENERAL BANKING RISKS 7 2,812 2,812 2,812
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY EXCLUDING FUND FOR 7

GENERAL BANKING RISKS 562,173 311,832 312,860
- Subscribed capital stock 539,995 299,807 299,702
- Issue premiums 17,820 8,213 8,209
- Legal reserve 3,208 3,176 3,086
- Other reserves 605 0 0
- Retained earnings 0 4 99
- Net income for the year 545 632 1,764
TOTAL 49,081,074 53,133,701 55,338,059
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BALANCE SHEET

For information (non-Annual financial statementsdment): After distribution

(EUR thousands)

LIABILITIES Dec. 31, 2014 Dec. 31, 20138 Dec. 31, 20{2
DEBT SECURITIES 48,514,374 52,628,334 54,852,537
- Bonds 47,491,96( 51,574,034 53,793,174
- Accrued interest 1,022,414 1,054,30( 1,059,362
OTHER LIABILITIES 168 250 2,619
PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME 301 324 326
PROVISIONS 374 218 190
SUBORDINATED DEBT 877 189,931 168,933
- Subordinated loans 0 187,861 166,308
- Accrued interest 877 2,070 2,625
FUND FOR GENERAL BANKING RISKS 2,812 2,812 2,812
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY EXCLUDING FUND FOR

GENERAL BANKING RISKS 562,173 311,832 311,091
- Subscribed capital stock 539,995 299,807 299,702
- Issue premiums 17,820 8,213 8,209
- Legal reserve 3,236 3,208 3,176
- Other reserves 1,122 604 0
- Retained earnings 0 0 4
TOTAL 49,081,074 53,133,701 55,338,508
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS

(EUR thousands)

COMMITMENTS RECEIVED Note |Dec. 31, 2014 | Dec. 31, 208 | Dec. 31, 2012
FINANCING COMMITMENTS RECEIVED FROM

CREDIT INSTITUTIONS 9 2,381,691 2,586,441 2,694,95
GUARANTEES RECEIVED FROM CREDIT

INSTITUTIONS 10 68,594,152 73,908,827 77,168,7

(=)
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INCOME STATEMENT

(EUR thousands)

Note 2014 2013 2012
+ Interest and similar income 11 1,925,81 2,095,49: 2,058,12.
- On transactions with credit institutions
. demand depos 5¢ 52 15C
. term accounts and loans 3,863 3,866 4,046
. securities received under collateralized revosep 0 20 0
- On bonds and other fix-income securitie
. short-term investments 408 1,726 3,736
. investment securiti 1,921,48 2,089,822 2,050,18
- Interest and similar expense 11 -1,922,82; -2,103,18 -2,078,75
- On transactions with credit institutions
. Subordinated loans -877 -2,070 -2,625
. advances under Article § 5.3 of CRH's internd¢sianc 0 -20 0
- On bonds and other fixed-income securities
. bond: -1,921,48 -2,089,82 -2,050,18'
. issuance and management fees -457 -11,265 -25,942
+/- Translation differences 11 0 0 0
- Commission paic 11 -4 -4 -3
+/- Other income and expenses from banking operatits 11 538 11,425 26,098
NET BANKING INCOME 11 3,530 3,730 5,460
- General operating expenses 12 -2,687 -2,643 -2,569
- Personnel expens -1,34¢ -1,35¢ -1,321
- Other administrative expenses
. taxes other than income tax -543 -546 -565
. external servict -74€ -73¢ -68:
- Depreciation, amortization and provisions on intagible
and tangible fixed assets 12 -22 -21 -16
+ Other operating income 0 15 20
GROSS OPERATING INCOME 871 1,081 2,895
+/- Cost of risk 0 0 0
OPERATING INCOME 871 1,081 2,89t
+/- Gains or losses on fixed asse 0 0 0
CURRENT INCOME BEFORE TAXES 871 1,081 2,89t
+/- Extraordinary items 0 0 0
- Income tax 14 -326 -449 -981
+/- Allocations to/write-backs of Fund for GeneralBanking 0 0 -150
NET INCOME 545 632 1,764
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(EUR thousands)

NET CASH FLOW STATEMENT

At Dec. 31, 2014 Dec. 31, 2018 Dec. 31, 2012
Cash flow from operating activities
Net income before taxes 871 1,081 2,746
Non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortization 22 20 15
Charges to other provisions 156 28 170
Other non-cash items =797 1,161 -1,572
Total non-cash items included in net income and o#r
adjustments -619 1,209 -1,387
Changes in transactions with credit institutions:
Increase in term deposits -238,489 -477,649 -110,346
Term deposits having reached maturity 174,807 450,000 55,000
Changes in non-financial assets and liabilities
Other assets 67 44 97
Other liabilities -82 -150 -222
Taxes paid -368 -517 -760
Net change in assets and liabilities from operatingctivities -64,065 -28,272 -56,231
Net cash flow used in operating activities (A) -6813 -25,982 -54,872
Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisitions of tangible fixed assets -10 -14 -8
Acquisitions of intangible and financial fixed atse -10 -5 -11
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) -2p -19 -19
Cash flow from financing activities
Capital increase in cash 62,042
Proceeds from bond issues 0 2,522,568 5,699,564
Bond repayments -4,095,000 -4,705,000 0
Acquisition of investment securities (mortgage spte 0 -2,522,568 -5,699,564
Investment securities having reached maturity 4095 4,705,000 0
Proceeds from subordinated debt issues 0 27,884 62,035
Repayment of subordinated debt -107 -6,331 -14,708
Dividends paid 0 -1,660 -983
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) 61,934 19,893 46,344
Impact of changes in exchange rates (D) 0 0 0
Net cash flow (A+ B + C + D) -1,898 -6,108 -8,547
Net cash and equivalents at the beginning of thiege 59,552 65,660 74,207
Net cash and equivalents at the end of the period 7,658 59,552 65,660
NET CHANGE IN CASH POSITION -1,898 -6,108 -8,547
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND VALUATION METHODS

NOTE 1 - Presentation of the financial statements

CRH'’s annual financial statements are preparedoaesknted in accordance with the
regulations of the French Accounting Standards éuity (Autorité des Normes ComptableANC).

Pursuant to Regulation no. 91-01 as amended o€RBF (French Banking and Financial
Regulatory Committee), the presentation of therfoia statements complies with the provisions of
Regulations no. 2000-03 and no. 2005-04 of thedfr&ecounting Regulations Committe@gmité
de la Réglementation ComptableCRC) relating to individual summary financiatsiments.

NOTE 2 — Accounting principles and valuation method

A — Foreign exchange transactions

CRH’s foreign exchange transactions are recognizeatcordance with Regulation no. 89-
01, as amended, of the CRBF (French Banking anah€ial Regulatory Committee). Therefore, as
an exception to the provisions of Article L. 123-paragraph 1 of the French Commercial Code, the
accounting documents relating to the recordingptéifjn exchange transactions are prepared in each
of the currencies concerned.

CRH does not take any foreign exchange positions.

CRH carries out refinancing transactions usingtgage notes in Swiss francs (CHF)
guaranteed by home-purchase loans in CHF, by igsaonds in CHF for the same amount.

These transactions are perfectly matched sincérainslation differences on the mortgage
notes are recognized in a symmetrical manner tdiffexences recognized on the bonds.

B — Bonds issued

Bonds issued are recorded at their issue prie@ iaccount entitled “Debt securities.” When
the issue price differs from the redemption prites difference is amortized using the actuarial
method.

Actuarial amortization is non-straight-line amaatiion computed using the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate is the discoat# used to ensure that the book value of a fiahnci
instrument and the discounted cash flow generatétlits maturity are the same.

Yearly actuarial amortization is equal to the eliéince between the cash flow of the period
computed at the nominal rate and the actuarial tagshcomputed by applying the effective interest
rate to the actuarial amortized price obtainedhateind of the previous computation period.

As regards the bonds in CHF, at each balance daést

- The bonds’ issue prices, adjusted for the acuamortization of the issue premiums, are
translated using the CHF historical exchange ratthe settlement date of each issue.

- Accrued interest payable on these bonds is tgetsht the CHF spot rate and recognized in
the income statement.

- Amounts due (interest, repayment) are recognaédte rate prevailing on the day of each
of these settlements. A technical currency gailoss is then recognized in the income statement.
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Each bond issue has its own costs. Bond issuavsts are split between new issue costs
(issuance fees, AMF fees, listing costs, advedisiosts) and those related to the management of
outstanding bonds (financial services, securitggises, annual listing fee paid to NYSE Euronext).

All such expenses, of whatever kind, are rechatgetthe borrowers. New issue costs are
charged to borrowers in proportion to their shareach new issue, with payment due immediately.
Other expenses are charged annually in propoitmetborrowers’ interest in each outstanding issue

C — Securities transactions

The term “Securities transactions” applies to gées, French Treasury notes and other
negotiable debt instruments, interbank market umsénts, and in general all debt represented by
securities traded on a market.

Securities are classified in the annual finansiatements according to the fixed or variable
nature of the related income whereas the accounlasgification is based on the purpose for which
the securities were acquired or placed.

Securities in the CRH portfolio are mainly fixattome securities: the mortgage notes
subscribed by the stockholders. On an ancillaryshb&RH may hold negotiable debt instruments
corresponding to the investment of cash for pergetgerally not exceeding two years.

Mortgage notes are recorded as investment sexsua under Regulation no. 90-01 of the
CRBF (French Banking and Financial Regulatory Cotta®) they are intended to be held to maturity
and are financed through matching bond issues. fifiagiand interest rates for the notes and the
bonds are identical and thus the acquisition psfa@ortgage notes on the assets side of the balance
sheet is equal to the issue value of the bondb@hidbilities side.

When the acquisition price differs from the redéopprice, the difference is amortized using
the actuarial method under exactly the same tendsanditions as for the bonds.

As regards the mortgage notes in CHF, at eacmbtalsheet date:

- The notes’ acquisition price, adjusted for the adtl amortization, is translated using the
CHF historical exchange rate on the acquisitioe.dat

- Accrued interest receivable on these notes islatatsat the CHF spot rate and recognized
in the income statement.

- Amounts due (interest, repayment) are recognizégeatate prevailing on the day of each of
these settlements. Atechnical currency gain arithen recognized in the income statement.

Disposals of investment securities are limitece#nly redemptions of mortgage notes, by
delivery of matching bonds by the stockholders lngd, or by the acquisition of the matching bonds
by CRH as part of a public exchange offer. In thgecof public exchange offers, CRH acquires new
mortgage notes matching the related bonds off€€&H has not carried out any such transactions
during the last three years.

These disposals have no impact on CRH’s earnings.

Negotiable debt instruments are recognized ag-¢f1on investments.
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D — Loans and advances to credit institutions

Loans and advances to credit institutions inclaliédoans and advances held in respect of
banking operations with the exception of thoseesegnted by a security. Loans and advances to credit
institutions are stated on the balance sheet atfdee value or acquisition cost in the case ahko
and advances purchased, plus any accrued intesegendue and net of provisions recognized in
respect of credit risk.

CRH has not purchased any loans or advances.a8iynit has not recognized any provisions
in respect of credit risk.

E — FGBR (Fund for general banking risk)

In compliance with CRBF (French Banking and FinahRegulatory Committee) Regulation
no. 90-02 and at the discretion of the Companyfices and directors, during previous years,
appropriations to the FGBR were made by meansrefjalated provision for risk on medium and
long-term credit transactions, to cover the gengsiis associated with CRH’s lending activity.

The FGBR may be used to cover any actual occugrehthese risks over the course of the
year.

F — Equity holdings and other long-term securities

In accordance with the provisions of Article L.234 of the French Monetary and Financial
Code, CRH is a member of the Deposit Guarantee .Fthnel corresponding membership certificate
is recognized in equity holdings and other longrteecurities.

G — Fixed assets

Under the accounting regulations for fixed as¢€RC Regulations no. 2002-10 and 2003-
12), fixed assets are reported on the balance ah#wedir historical acquisition cost. Depreciatsord
amortization schedules are calculated using thes i@dproved by the tax authorities.

Intangible fixed assets consist of software amedion a straight-line basis over 12 months.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated on a stréilghor reducing-balance basis, depending
on their expected useful life:

- office furniture 10 year straigh-line

- fittings 5t0 15 straigh-line
years

- office equipmer 5t0 10 straigh-line and ta-basec
year: reducing balanc

- IT equipmen 3 year: tax-based reducing balar

H — Other assets and other liabilities

Other assets may consist of payments on accoutatxpfleductible VAT, security deposits
established, costs and taxes to be recoveredy salaances to staff and interim dividends.

Other liabilities may consist of amounts due to, &ocial security and other welfare bodies,
VAT collected, trade payables, remuneration dustadf, dividends due to stockholders, bonds and
other fixed-income securities issued by the instity amortized and not yet repaid and coupons in
respect of securities issued by the institutionwahith are due but not yet paid.
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| — Retirement benefits

Benefits to which CRH employees are entitled oiraetent are paid by the French social
security system, with a complementary portion fgithird-party bodies that manage the distribution
of contributions made.

The employer's share of such contributions is reizegl as an expense each year as incurred.
In addition, CRH makes a lump-sum payment to regiemployees in an amount determined by the
number of years spent with the Company.

Each year, CRH'’s actuarial liability pursuant tegh policies, calculated in accordance with
the provisions of the French collective agreementihance companies, is recomputed.
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NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET

NOTE 3 — Mortgage notes and bonds issued

Mortgage notes are the instruments representiry dbcurities receivable by CRH,
corresponding to the loans it has granted, whslédarrowings are in the form of bond issues.

Related items, on the asset and liability sideshefbalance sheet, show a perfect match
between borrowing and lending.

(EUR thousands)

At Dec. 31, 2014 Dec. 31, 2013 Dec. 31, 2012
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets Liabities
SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS
- Bonds and other fixed-inconme
securities
. mortgage notes (*) 47,491,960 51,574,034 53,793,174
. accrued interest not yet due jon
mortgage notes 1,022,414 1,054,30d 1,059,364
- Debt securities
. bonds (*) 47,491,96( 51,574,034 53,793,174
. accrued interest not yet due jon
bonds 1,022,414 1,054,300 1,059,367
TOTAL 48,514,374| 48,514,374 52,628,334 52,628,3344,852,537| 54,852,53
(*) Including amounts in nominal value:
(EUR thousands)
At Dec. 31, 2014 Dec. 31, 2013 Dec. 31, 2012
Assets Liabilities Assets Assets Liabilities Assets
SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS
- Bonds and other fixed-inconle
securities
. mortgage notes 45,700,0p0 49,795,00( 52,250,00(d
- Debt securities
. bonds 45,700,004 49,795,00¢ 52,250,000
TOTAL 45,700,000| 45,700,000 49,795,000 49,795,0002,250,000] 52,250,00
(CHF thousand
At Dec. 31, 2014 Dec. 31, 2013 Dec. 31, 2012
Assets Liabilities Assets Assets Liabilities Assets
SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS
- Bonds and other fixed-incomg
securities
. mortgage notes 2,400,0p0 2,400,004 2,050,000
- Debt securities
. bonds 2,400,000 2,400,000 2,050,000
TOTAL 2,400,000 2,400,00(0 2,400,000 2,400,000 2,060 2,050,00(

NB: Mortgage notes are not listed securities.
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NOTE 4 - Breakdown of receivables and debt by resical maturity

(EUR thousands

RECEIVABLES Dec. 31, 2014 Dec. 31, 2013 Dec. 31120
Credit institutions: term deposits
- less than 3 months 7.069 40,229 18,347
- 3 months to 1 year 75,653 13,811 158,044
-1to 5 years 365,000 330,000 60,00
TOTAL 447,722 384,040 236,391
Negotiable debt instruments
- less than 3 months 30,000 60,000 60,000
- 3 months to 1 year 0 0 100,000
-1to5years 30,000 0 20,000
TOTAL 60,000 60,000 180,00(
Mortgage notes
- less than 3 months 0 0 0
- 3 months to 1 year 6,215,573 4,105,499 4,744,413
-1to5years 18,141,727 20,393,481 20,523,801
- over 5 years 23,134,660 27,075,054 28,524,961
TOTAL 47,491,960 51,574,034 53,793,115

NB: none of these receivables is eligible for rafining from the European system of central banks

(EUR thousands

DEBT Dec. 31, 2014 Dec. 31, 2013 Dec. 31, 2012
Bonds
- less than 3 months 0 0 0
- 3 months to 1 year 6,215,573 4,105,499 4,744,413
-1to 5 years 18,141,727 20,393,481 20,523,801
- over 5 years 23,134,660 27,075,054 28,524,961
TOTAL 47,491,960 51,574,034 53,793,115
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NOTE 5 - Other assets, other liabilities, prepaymetis and accrual accounts

(EUR thousands)

ASSETS Dec. 31,2014 | Dec. 31, 2013 Dec. 31, 2012
Miscellaneous debtors 103 127 102
Government — income tax 42 68 0
Government — deductible VAT 0 0 0
Charges recharged to borrowers 0 0 4
Guarantee deposits with the French Deposit Guagdriad 20 20 2(
Other guarantee deposits and miscellaneous 39 39 78
Other 2 0 0
Other prepayments 117 150 111
TOTAL 220 277 213
(EUR thousands)
LIABILITIES Dec. 31,2014 | Dec. 31, 2013 Dec. 31, 2012
Miscellaneous creditors 168 250 400
Government — income tax 0 0 222
Government — VAT to be paid over 10 9 2
Government — VAT collected 0 0 0
Social security and payroll taxes 142 147 141
Other 16 94 35
Accrued expenses 301 324 326
Personnel and related expenses 174 175 175
Other 127 149 151
TOTAL 469 574 726

102



NOTE 6 - Provisions

(EUR thousands)

Balance at +Charaes Balance at +Charges Balance at
Dec. 31, -Writebgcks Dec. 31, -Writebgcks Dec. 31,
2012 2013 2014
Provision for retirement benefits (Note 18) 1P0 28 218 16 234
Provision for ECB fee for prudential supervisjon
during November and December 2014 0 0 0 .40 140
TOTAL 190 28 218 154 374

NOTE 7 — Common Equity Tier 1 capital instruments

(EUR thousands)

Balance at Dec| +Charges Balance at Dec. +Charges Balance at Dec.
31, 2012 -Writebacks 31, 2013 -Writebacks 31, 2014

Subscribed capital stogk 299,702 105 299,80¢ 240,188 539,995
Issue premiums 8,20p a 8,213 9,6p7 17,820
Legal reserve 3,086 9p 3,116 B2 3,{08
Other reserves D D 605 605
Retained earnings 9P -95 4 4 0
Fund for general

banking risks 2,817 ( 2,81p 0 2,812
TOTAL 313,908 104 314,014 250,428 564,440

The Common Equity Tier 1 capital was strengthedadng June 2014 by the issue of
15,750,000 new stock units with a nominal valuEdR 15.25 plus an issue premium of EUR 0.61,
subscribed by the stockholders by means of offgplHUR 187,753,309.44 against the outstanding
subordinated loans (Note 8) and a cash paymering@BUR 62,041,690.56.

This issue increased the capital stock by EURIBIQ500 to EUR 539,994,737.75 and the
issue premium by EUR 9,607,500 to EUR 17,820,534.73

The changes in the other components of stockhslldquity resulted from the appropriation
of the 2013 net income.

CRH'’s capital stock is fully subscribed. The Comgsa stock has a par value of EUR 15.25
per stock unit. A total of 35,409,491 stock uniévdé been issued.

NOTE 8 - Subordinated loans

Until December 31, 2013, for the purposes of datouwg the capital adequacy ratio,
total capital included stockholders’ equity (Notg ahd subordinated loans by stockholders in
proportion to their outstanding borrowings in tlenhi of secondary capital.

If need be, these subordinated loans ensuredGR&t would be able to continue
operations in compliance with banking regulatioaspite any losses it might suffer.
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CRH was required to repay these loans as theecetetks are amortized, provided this
did not impact compliance with prudential ratios.the event of CRH’s liquidation, subordinated
loans would be repaid only after settlement ob#iker creditors.

Interest was partly fixed and partly contingentesults for the year, and was payable
only if CRH made a profit for the year after alldoa of this charge.

In view of these provisions, the APCR allowed faritbm subordinated loans to be
included in secondary equity capital as definedenriRegulation no. 90-02, Article 4c of the CRBF
(French Banking and Financial Regulatory Committee)

Since Regulation (EU) no. 575/2013 of June 26,3204 longer permits these loans to be
classified as equity, they were incorporated inter T capital when the capital increase was carried
out in June 2014 (Note 7). A residual balance nudéo needed was also repaid to the lending
institutions.

The following table summarizes changes in tothbsdinated loans since December 31, 2012:

(EUR thousands)

Transaction Amount
Balance at December 31, 2012 166,308
Increases
- payments relating to acquisitions of mortgagesgot 21,583
Decreases

- repayment related to a contractual mortgage regtayment, the borrower having no further

commitment to CRH -30
Balance at December 31, 2013 187,861
Decreases

- incorporation into Tier 1 capital -187,753
- repayment -108
Balance at December 31, 2014 0
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NOTES TO THE OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

NOTE 9 — Financing commitments received from creditnstitutions

Pursuant to the By-laws, credit institution stoaklers are bound to provide the cash
advances required for CRH’s operations up to thetIof 5% of total outstanding loans. This
requirement is defined in CRH'’s internal rules aedulations, approved by the Stockholders’
Meeting of February 27, 1996.

At December 31, 2014, these commitments receiviadbb EUR 2,381,691,464.28.

NOTE 10 - Guarantees received from credit institutbns

The principal and interest on each mortgage natsecured by a pledged portfolio of
receivables representing secured home-purchass, laaiirst residential mortgage or charge over
real-estate offering an equivalent guarantee, gwaaantee given by a credit institution, a finagcin
company or insurance company which is not inclutedhe consolidation scope of the credit
institution issuing the note.

Receivables pledged to CRH as collateral amoutdeah estimated EUR 68.6 billion at
December 31, 2014.
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NOTES TO THE INCOME STATEMENT

NOTE 11 - Net banking income
A — Analysis of net banking income from bond issu@nand lending operations

It should be noted that CRH lends at the sameasteates and maturities at which it borrows
on the financial market. It therefore does not gha margin on its lending activities.

To facilitate analysis of its net income, it is fude¢o group income and charges from lending
activities and borrowing activities in order to ebge their equivalence.
(EUR thousands)

At Dec, 31, 2014 At Dec, 31, 2013 At Dec, 31, 2012

Charges Income Charges Income Chargeq Incomgq
Interest
Bonds issued 1,921,488 2,089,829 2,050,189
Mortgage notes 1,921,488 2,089,829 2,050,184
Translation differences *
Bonds issued 1,01p 1,120 1,2p3
Mortgage notes 1,01p 1,120 1,2p3
Issuance and management fees **
Bonds issued 45y 11,265 25,942
Mortgage notes 45y 11,265 25,942
TOTAL 1,922,957 1,922,959 2,102,214 2,102,214 2,88%4| 2,077,354

* Translation differences correspond to a technitallance between currency gains and losses recednin the
contractual due dates of transactions in CHF.

** Since 2011, issuance and management fees orstitanee been recharged to borrowers and are thusgieized in the
income statement whereas previously they transigethird-party accounts on the balance sheet.

These flows have no effect on CRH’s net income.

B - Other income and expenses from banking operaso

For the fiscal year 2014, other income from banlapgrations included interest earned on
stockholders’ equity invested on the money mankelemand deposits, term deposits and negotiable
debt instruments which are fixed rate with a tefngenerally less than one year or adjustable rate
with a maturity of three years or less. This incdinetuates from year to year in close correlation
with the average level of market interest ratess Ticome therefore represents a rate of return of
0.79% on average capital invested during 2014 ¢4.182013 and 1.68% in 2012).

Other expenses from banking operations compriserast paid to stockholders on
subordinated loans granted to CRH. As providedhie &agreements, interest payable on these
subordinated loans consists of two components:

. a fixed portion calculated each quarter at theriguly average overnight interbank rate less
5%, although this rate may not be less than 1%erdst calculated on this basis amounted to
EUR 876,709.20 in 2014 (EUR 1,857,354.66 in 2018 EBUR 1,588,539.02 in 2012),

106



. a variable portion determined by the Board afebiors on the basis of the results for the
year. No variable interest was paid in respechefytear ended December 31, 2014 since the rate of
return on the average capital invested during 2044 less than 1%. Variable interest in 2013 came
to EUR 212,705.26 and in 2012 to EUR 1,036,456.62.

The average interest rate paid on subordinated laas therefore 1.13% in 2014 (1.68% in
2013 and 1.74% in 2012).

(EUR thousands)

At Dec. 31,

At Dec. 31, 2014| At Dec. 31, 2013 2012
Interest on cash management transactions 31847 83,91 4,196
Interest on negotiable debt instruments 408 1,726 7363
Interest on securities received under collaterdlize
reverse repos -75 20 0
Other income 160 160 160
A — Total other income from banking operations 4,3a 5,824 8,092
Interest on subordinated loans 877 2,070 2,625
Interest on advances under Article 5.3 of CRH’srinal
rules and regulations -75 20 0
Other interest and expense 7 3 7
Fees on securities transactions 1 1 0
B — Total other expenses from banking operations 81 2,094 2,632
NET BANKING INCOME 3,530 3,730 5,46(

Other income corresponds to CRH’s remuneratioreutite terms of the agreement
signed with the Société de Financement de I'EcoamoRmancaise (SFEHpr monitoring and
controlling the servicing of its debt and managenuéiits guarantees.

NOTE 12 - Other general operating income and expers

A — General expenses recharged to borrowers

The AMF fees due in respect of bond issues areargeld to borrowers. Since January 1, 2012,
these fees have been expensed in the income statatier than being posted to third party accounts
on the balance sheet.

(EUR thousands)
At Dec. 31, 2012

At Dec. 31, 2014 At Dec. 31, 2013

Charges Income Charges Income Chargeq Incomgq
Taxes other than income tax (excerpt)
AMF fees 0 15 20
Other operating income 0 15 20

107



B — Other general expenses

CRH’s total administrative expenses, including rdef@tion and amortization, came to
EUR 2.7 million in the year ended December 31, 2E4R 2.7 million in the year ended December
31, 2013 and EUR 2.6 million in the year ended Drewer 31, 2012).

Total administrative expenses represented 0.006R&verage outstanding loans to
stockholders in the year ended December 31, 200048% in the year ended December 31, 2013
and 0.0049% in the year ended December 31, 2012).

The main components are shown in the table below:

(EUR thousands)

At Dec. 31, 2014 At Dec. 31, 2013 At Dec. 31, 20012
Wages and salaries 820 821 812
Retirement expenses (1) 109 116 108
Other social security charges 293 296 288
Payroll taxes and similar expenses 126 125 113
Total personnel expenses 1,348 1,358 1,321
Taxes other than income tax (excerptj2) 543 546 545
Rental and leasing 231 233 219
Other external services and miscellaneous ad néiiatr
expenses 515 506 464
Total other administrative expenses 744 739 683
Amortization of intangible fixed assets 7 8 4
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 15 13 12
Total depreciation and amortization 22 21 16

(1) Including a provision for retirement benefits of EW6,000 at December 31, 2014.
(2) Including a provision for the ECB fee for prudehtgupervision during November and December 2014 of

EUR 140,000 at December 31, 2014.

NOTE 13 - Fees paid to the independent auditors

The total amount of independent auditors’ feesogaezed in the year ended
December 31, 2014 comes to EUR 73,441.24 and bozaies as follows:
(EUR)
Auditeurs & Conseils [KPMG Audit — A division of
Associés KPMG SA

2014 statutory audit fees 29,640.00 29,640.00

2014 CSR certification fees 0.00 8,400.00

Balance of 2013 statutory audit fees -427.96 -199.00
Other services related to the statutory

audit of the financial statements 4,588.20 1,800.00

Total 33,800.24 39,641.00
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NOTE 14 — Income tax

Tax on 2014 earnings amounted to EUR 294,618 andecned only income from ordinary
operations. The tax charge also includes a on&@i% contribution totaling EUR 31,524.

109



OTHER INFORMATION

NOTE 15 — Executive compensation

Total gross compensation paid to the Chairman dmef Executive Officer for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2014 amounted to EUR 254,49@f&r corporate officers received no
compensation from the Company.

The corporate officers received no other benefisfthe Company.

NOTE 16 — List of related-party transactions

CRH did not enter into any transactions within theaning of Article R. 123-199-1 of the
French Commercial Code with any related partiestsdever during the fiscal year 2014.

NOTE 17 — Staff

CRH had an average of eight employees in 2014.

NOTE 18 — Provision for lump-sum retirement benefis

Provisions set aside to cover lump-sum retiremsariefits as required by French law
amounted to EUR 234,000 and covered the full amoU@RH’s liability as assessed as of December
31, 2014.

CRH does not have any other retirement commitments
NOTE 19 — Rights earned by staff under the Frenchridividual Training Rights Initiative (DIF)

As of December 31, 2014, a total of 955 hoursaihing had been credited to staff under the
French DIF initiative.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Capital adequacy ratio

The capital adequacy ratio, calculated in accardamth the provisions of Regulation (EU)
no. 575/2013 of June 26, 2013, was 11.04% at Deeer@b, 2014. Excluding the transitional
provisions, this ratio was 10.19%. In the abserfcadditional capital, the Common Equity Tier 1
(CET 1) capital adequacy ratio came to the same,lee. 11.04% (10.19% excluding transitional
provisions).

Liquidity ratio

The conditions under which CRH normally operatessaich that no liabilities are uncovered.
The provisions of Article 425-1 of Regulation (Edp. 575/2013 of June 26, 2013 give CRH
exemption from the 75% cap on cash outflows cooedimg to the servicing of its bonds, with cash
inflows corresponding to the mortgage notes.
Major risks

As regards the treatment of the mortgage notdsercalculation of the major risks base:
- the notes issued before December 31, 2013 atad®dfrom the major risks base in accordance
with the Decree of the Minister for the Economy &mgance dated February 17, 2014 published in
the official journal of February 26, 2014

- any notes issued in the future, in accordanchk thie legal covered bond provisions, are expected
to be given a weighting of 10% subject to theiuattveighting remaining in the credit quality step

Disclosures in respect of encumbered assets at Dedxer 31, 2014 (Decree of December 19, 2014
relating to the disclosure of information about enambered assets)

Template A — Assets (EUR thousands
Carrying Fair value of Carrying Fair value of
amount of amount of

encumbered unencumbered

encumbered « unencumbered
assets assets
assets assets
010 040 060 090
010 Assets of the reporting

institution 48,514,374 566,705

030 Equity instruments 0 0 4 4

040 Debt securities 48,514,374 48,718,422 60,123 60,123
120 Other assets 0 506,578

* Based on the EUR/CHF exchange rate at Decemb@034, for assets denominated in CHF.
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Template B — Collateral received

(EUR thousands)

. Fair value of
Fair value of
collateral
encumbered .
received or
collateral
. own debt
received or securities
own debt .
. issued
securities .
. available for
issued
encumbrance
010 040
130 Collateral received by the
reporting institution 0 68,594,152
150 Equity instruments 0 0
160 Debt securities 0 0
230 Other collateral received 0 68,594,152
Own debt securities
240 | issued, other than own
covered bonds or ABS 0 0
Template C — Encumbered assets/collateral receiveahd

associated liabilities

(EUR thousands

Matching
liabilities,
contingent
liabilities or
securities lent

Assets, collateral
received and
own debt
securities issued,
other than
covered bonds
and encumbered

ABS
010 030
010 Carrying amount of
selected financial liabilities 48,514,374 68,594,152

D — Information on the importance of charges on asds

1-

Summary of CRH’s refinancing operations

CRH operates within the specific framework of law. r85-695 of July 11, 1985 (see

Appendix 1).

and in the same currencies.

are perfectly matched (See Appendix 6, internasand regulations).

In accordance with its sole corporate purpose, ®Biows on a long-term basis by issuing
on the market covered bonds to refinance bankseasdme interest rates, with the same maturities

The refinancing loans CRH grants to the banks hadonds it issues on the financial market
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When CRH borrows 100 in nominal value, it grantefinancing loan with a nominal value
of 100 and demands as collateral a loan portfolithh \&@ minimum nominal value of 125 (See
Appendix 6, Internal rules and regulations).

The loans corresponding to the refinancing loaesepresented by mortgage notes.

In accordance with the provisions of Articles L3342 to L 313-48 of the French Monetary
and Financial CodeQode monétaire et financie(see Appendix 2), the refinanced bank pledges a
portfolio of home-purchase loans meeting the camakt of eligibility (see Appendix 7) to cover the
loans granted to it by CRH.

In the event of the refinanced bank defaulting, QR&ly automatically become the owner of
the portfolio pledged by said bank, notwithstandamg provisions to the contrary.

Finally, pursuant to the provisions of Article 1f3tlbe law of July 11, 1985 referred to above,
the amounts or values received in return for trevalpromissory notes are allocated, in priority and
under all circumstances, to servicing the dehtthe payment of the interest and principal in eesp
of the bonds issued.

2- Information on encumbered assets (Article 3(4) ofrte aforementioned decree)

The only assets qualified as encumbered assetshida meaning of Article 2 of this decree
are the mortgage notes matching the CRH bondshencktated accrued interest. At December 31,
2014 their carrying amount was EUR 48,514 milliord dheir nominal amount was EUR 48,718
million.

a) Since the amounts or values received in returthiese notes are, in priority, legally allocated
to servicing the interest and repayments of priacip respect of CRH’s matching covered bonds,
the notes are encumbered to CRH’s bondholders, €Rhly creditors with the possible exception
of the government, its staff, the social securagibs and its suppliers, to whom CRH may owe small
amounts.

This allocation to the servicing of said debt caogts the only charge on the notes.

In addition, CRH does not use derivatives.
b) This allocation has remained unchanged since CRiffsation.
C) CRH is not part of a group.
d) There is no excess collateral for the bondholdgevertheless, in the event of a borrowing
bank defaulting, the bonds benefit indirectly frtime overcollateralization of the pledged portfolio
(subject of the collateral received for a totalEddR 68,594 million at December 31, 2014) which
becomes the property of CRH.

Moreover, the stockholder banks are required, dessary, to provide CRH with lines of
credit or regulatory capital (Article 10 of the Byws and Article 8 of the Internal rules and
regulations).

These provisions also indirectly benefit the coddsendholders.
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e) The priority allocation to the servicing of CRH’evered bond debt is stipulated by the law
of July 11, 1985 referred to above.

The collateral received by CRH to cover the morégagtes is stipulated by the provisions of
Articles L. 313-42 to L. 313-49 of the French Mamgt and Financial CodeCode monétaire et
financier) and of CRH’s internal rules and regulations atferred to above.

f) The other assets that could be used to servicddheare the investments of stockholders’
equity and the income thereon, i.e. EUR 566 milliecember 31, 2014.
11.2. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRH has no subsidiaries and therefore is not requio prepare consolidated financial

statements.

11.3. AUDIT OF HISTORICAL ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMAT ION

The general report of the independent auditortherfinancial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2014 is included in the Reports seciopage 35 of this registration document.

The general report of the independent auditortherfinancial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2013 is included in the Reports seciopage 35 of the 2013 registration document.

The general report of the independent auditortherfinancial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2012 is included in the Reports seciopage 23 of the 2012 registration document.

11.4. DATE OF THE LATEST FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The financial statements dated December 31, 2@ tharmost recent to have been audited.

11.5. INTERIM AND OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

CRH has not released any quarterly or semi-argatalsubsequent to the December 31, 2014
financial statements.

11.6. LEGAL AND ARBITRATION PROCEEDINGS
As of the filing date of this document, there arelegal, governmental, regulatory, tax or

arbitration proceedings underway that are likellgage a material impact on CRH’s financial position
or profitability.
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11.7. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE ISSUER’S FINANCIAL POSITION

As of the filing date of this document, there aceexceptional events or litigation that have
had in the recent past, or are likely to have enftliure, a material impact on the financial positi
activity or earnings of CRH that have not beenea#d in the financial statements for the year énde
December 31, 2014.
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CHAPTER 12
MAJOR CONTRACTS
As of the filing date of this document, the Comp&iag not entered into any contracts other
than those signed as part of normal operationgtaticcould grant a member of the Company a right

or obligation that could have a material impact@RH’s ability to honor its commitments to its
bondholders.
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CHAPTER 13
THIRD PARTY INFORMATION, STATEMENTS BY EXPERTS AND DECLARATIONS
OF INTEREST
This document contains no testimony or disclostomfthird parties or experts.

13.1. (NOT APPLICABLE)

13.2. (NOT APPLICABLE)
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CHAPTER 14

DOCUMENTS ON DISPLAY

All prospectuses and registration documents (wharttain the Company’s By-laws) can be

consulted on CRH’s website:

http://www.crh-bonds.com

These documents may be obtained free of chargevinout obligation by requesting the
from CRH:

by telephone: + 33 (0)1 42 89 49 10
by fax: + 33 (0)1 42 89 29 67
by e-mail: crh@crh-bonds.com
or by mail to the following address:
CRH
Caisse de Refinancement de I'Habitat
35 rue La Boétie

75008 Paris

The incorporation documents can be consulted iepagrsion at the Company’s registe
office.

m

ed
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APPENDIX 1

ARTICLE 13 OF ACT NO. 85-695
DU 11 JUILLET 1985
Complemented by Article 36 of Act no. 2006-872 ofuly 13, 2006
(Journal officiel of July 16, 2006)

l. - Superseded

Il. - The guarantee of the State may be accorddd bonds issued by holders of promissory notes

representing loans granted to finance real estatedctions, guaranteed by a mortgage or by arsenio
real estate lien, so long as these loans represera@ximum share established by decree or that the
amount of the contracts constituting the loansskete to guarantee the payment of these promissory
notes at maturity is greater than the amount cfélsame notes in a minimum proportion established
by decree.

The promissory notes cited in the preceding papdgeae created under conditions established in
compliance with the provisions of Article 16 of thierementioned Act no. 69-1263 of December 31.
1969*.

lll. - The bonds cited in Paragraph Il above may heegd¥y a company or by an economic interest
grouping groupement d’intérét économiguidat has been granted special approval by oridireo
Minister for the Economy, Finance and the Budget.

IV. - When the guarantee of the State is not accordedhe sums or amounts generated by the
promissory notes mentioned above are allocatea naatter of priority and under all circumstances,
to the payment of the interest and principal ors¢hborrowings. They are carried in a specially
designated account that is opened by the holdgregbromissory notes and from which the creditors
of the latter, other than the holders of the baritézl in Paragraph 1l, may not pursue the paymént o
their receivables.

V. - The provisions of Book VI of the French CommaldCode, or those governing all legal or

equivalent amicable proceedings engaged on the bafireign laws, do not constitute an obstacle
to the application of Paragraph IV.

*These dispositions are codified in Article L. 3430 L. 313-49 of the French Monetary and
Financial Code@ode Monétaire et Financigr
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APPENDIX 1
(Continuation)

AMENDMENT No. 275 SUBMITTED BY
THE FRENCH GOVERNMENT ON JANUARY 13, 2006

ADDITIONAL ARTICLE
Insert the following Article following Article 5 qu inquies

The following two paragraphs have been added talari3 of Act no. 85-695 of July 11,
1985 on various economic and financial provisions:

« IV. - When the guarantee of the State is nottg@rthe sums or amounts generated by the
promissory notes mentioned above are allocated, fas a matter of priority and under all
circumstances, to the payment of the interest amtipal on these borrowings. They are carried in
a specially designated account that is opened éyntifder of the promissory notes and which the
creditors of the latter, other than the holdershef bonds cited in Paragraph Il, may not attach to
obtain payment of their receivables. »

« V. - The provisions of Book VI of the French Comntial Code, or those governing all legal
or equivalent amicable proceedings filed on thesbafsSforeign laws, do not constitute an obstacle t
the application of Paragraph IV. »

OVERVIEW

Caisse de refinancement de I'habitat (CRH) is &ketasredit institution that plays a specific
role in funding residential housing in France.sitde purpose is to fund the housing loans extended
by credit institution stockholders by issuing bondsth nearly EUR 30 billion in loans extended and
currently EUR 17 billion in loans outstanding, CR$lleading player on the French residential
mortgage market.

When mortgage companies were created in 1999,atve And regulations governing its
transactions were in part brought into line witlogd governing mortgage companies. However,
CRH’s obligations are not governed by the samesigiet regulations as property bonds.

CRH’s bonds are very safe (the promissory notegsdy it must be secured up to 125% by
the pledging of a portfolio of secured housing kan

Like property bonds, they have been rated Aaa byrétting agencies. However, unlike
property bonds, the bondholder has no direct legrabver the portfolio of funded loans even though
such a lien is recognized from a business pointef.

The aim of the amended is to enact such a lierr dod®&ing the oversight treatment of CRH'’s
bonds into line with that of property bonds.

Improved oversight treatment for CRH’s obligatiavi§ not result in any cost for the French

government and will lead to reducing the cost afdwog in France. In fact, all of CRH’s operations,
which involve substantial amounts, are devoteditwing residential housing loans.
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APPENDIX 2
FRENCH MONETARY AND FINANCIAL CODE

LEGISLATIVE PART
Codifying the provisions of Section 16 of the Actfdecember 31th, 1969 as amended by Act
no. 85-695 of July 11, 1985 and Act no. 99-532 afnk 25, 1999,
by Decree n° 2008-556 of June 13, 2008
by Decree n° 2010-76 of June 21, 2010
an by Decree n° 2013-544 of June 27, 2013

Paragraph 3

Refinancing of mortgages and other secured loans

Section L. 313-42

The provisions of the present paragraph apply & glomissory notes issued by credit
institutions orsocieté de financemetat refinance long-term receivables used to finaepakproperty
located in France or another European Economic Meaber state which are guaranteed by:

- a first-ranking mortgage or a charge over reapprty which provides a guarantee at least
equal thereto;

- or a guarantee granted by a credit institutiora société de financement an insurance
company which is not included in the consolidati@scribed in Article L.233-16 of the Commercial
Code which the credit institution issuing the prssoiry note is subject to.

The units or debt instruments of securitisationdiare treated in the same way as the
receivables referred to above if at least 90% offtlnd's assets consist of receivables of the same
type, with the exception of specific units or detstruments issued to cover the risk of insolveoicy
the debtors.

With effect from January 1, 2002, receivables repnéed by promissory notes must comply
with the conditions laid down in (I of Article L.13-3 pursuant to terms determined by a Conseil
d'Etat decree. The said decree specifies the cstamoes in which the quota may be exceeded if the
amount of the said receivables exceeds that ghribi@issory notes that they guarantee.

Section L. 313-43

Since the contracts constitute the said loans bed guarantees, amendments made to the
contracts to provide the lender with additionalrguméees, and instruments signed by the borrower to
ensure compliance with his obligations, if suchrimments exist, must be made available to the beare
of the promissory note by the credit institutidrthie bearer so requests, in a capital amount eéqual
the capital amount of the promissory note.

The credit institution provides safekeeping for toatracts and instruments made available
to the bearers of the promissory notes by maimtgiai nominal list of the bearers of all receivables
corresponding to the aforementioned contractsstduments, making a reference therein to Articles
L. 313-42 to L. 313-49, and providing an updatetidation of their amount.
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Section L. 313-44

I. Barring the application of Article L. 313-46 eltredit institution recovers, pro tanto, free
disposal of the receivables referred to in Artitle313-43 as and when they become due or
redeemable, or when it so chooses. It is requibde the promissory note remains in circulatian, t
replace the contracts and bills it recovers fregpasal of, without discontinuity, with other debt
instruments having a capital amount equal to tiade available to the bearer of the promissory
note as provided for in Article L. 313-43.

[I. Debt instruments made available to the beafe¢he promissory note pursuant to | are
automatically substituted, through real subrogatifor the debt instruments which the credit
institution recovers free disposal of. Such substih preserves the rights of the bearer of the
promissory note and entails the effects set fortArticle L. 313-45, even if the signing of the new
debt instruments made available to that bearartisexjuent to the signing of the promissory note.

Section L. 313-45

Making receivables and bills available to the bearfethe promissory note automatically
entails creation of a pledge in favor of the sustesbearers.

The bearer of the promissory note's right encongsaahs receivables deriving for the benefit
of the credit institution from the contracts antisbivhich have been made available to that bearer
pursuant to the present paragraph, without anyr dtmmality. It also encompasses all interest and
ancillary charges, as well as any guarantees agedavith those advances, even if they derive from
deeds distinct from the contracts or bills.

The bearer of the promissory note exercises tggat preferentially in relation to the credit
institution and, in the event of a single receiedi®ing shared between several bearers of promissor
notes, those bearers enjoy equality of rank.

While the receivables and bills remain availablthtobearer of the promissory note, the credit
institution cannot transfer those receivables s M any form whatsoever.

Section L. 313-46

If the amount of the promissory note or the inteed¢tached to it are not paid when due, and
regardless of the remedies he might exercise agamsredit institution, the bearer of the prororys
note may obtain, upon request and in return forstid note, submission of the nominal list of the
holders referred to in Article L. 313-43 and als@pplicable, of the instruments made available to
him pursuant to the present paragraph. Such sutmmisansfers title of the receivables to him
without any other formality, and with the interestivantages and guarantees attaching theretonwithi
the limits of the rights he holds on account of pnemissory note he held.
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Section L. 313-47

For deletion of registrations, no documentary prieafequired to support the statements in
the act of discharge which establishes that thieumgents have been made available or handed over
if the said statements are certified as accuratbahact. The beneficiaries of such availability o
delivery are not considered to be interested pavtighin the meaning of Article 2157 of the Civil
Code if the act of discharge does not refer tdridwesaction concluded in their favor.

Section L. 313-48

In order to guarantee payment when due of the atrafuthe promissory note referred to in
Article L. 313-42, or the amount of the interestahed to that note, the bearer of that note miy as
the credit institution to make contracts availaiolet which constitute long-term receivables, along
with their guarantees, to be added to those alre@tle available by virtue of Article L. 313-43, for
an agreed amount, given that those contracts nvayrigie to the creation of promissory notes having
the characteristics of those referred to in Articl&13-42.

The contracts thus made available to the beargu&pantee a note referred to in Article L.
313-42 are indicated to that bearer at the same aisnthe availability of the contracts, pursuant to
the procedure described in Articles L. 313-43 an813-44. The effects of that availability by way
of guarantee are described in Articles L. 313-4%.t813-47. Articles L. 313-44 to L. 313-46 are
applicable notwithstanding any provision to thetcany, including those of Book VI of the French
Commercial Code. These provisions apply to capadilbns effected before 29 June 1999 pursuant
to the provisions of the present paragraph.

Section L. 313-49

The French Banking Authority and resolution is mspble for ensuring that the credit
institutions andhe société de financemeammply with the provisions of Articles L. 313-421t. 313-
48.

Section L. 313-49-1

A Conseil d'Etat decree determines the conditioreuwhich the subsection is applicable to
thesociété de financement
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APPENDIX 2
(Continuation)

FRENCH MONETARY AND FINANCIAL CODE
LEGISLATIVE PART
SECTION 2 CHAPTER Il

SOCIETES DE CREDIT FONCIER

Art. L. 513-3 - excerpt - (created by the ordonnane n° 2013-544 of June 27 2013).
|. - Guaranteed loans are loans associated with:

1. First-ranking mortgage or a charge over reaperty conferring an equivalent
guarantee, at least;

2. Or, within limits and under conditions deterndnm a Conseil d'Etat decree, a
minimum personal contribution from the borrower aodnpliance with a fixed portion of the value
of the property financed and subject to the guaethtoan being used solely to finance real property
a guarantee from a credit institution or fromogiété de financemeaot an insurance company which
is not included in the consolidation described midde L. 233-16 of the Commercial Code relating
to real-property credit companies.
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APPENDIX 3

FRENCH MONETARY AND FINANCIAL CODE

REGULATORY PART

Article R. 214-21 created by Decree no. 2011-922 Atigust 1, 2011 modified by the decree n°
2013-544 of July 27 2013 (excerpt)

|. — By way of an exception to the 5% limit sethe first paragraph of I, an undertaking for cdilee
investment in transferable securities:

1° May invest 35% of its assets in eligible finadecurities and money market instruments
of the type referred to under paragraphs 1 andAttafle R. 214-20 issued or guaranteed by a single
issuer, provided these securities or instrumerdgsissued or guaranteed by a member state of the
European Union, or an other state that is partyi¢oagreement on the European Economic Space,
by its public regional authorities, by a third-cenyror by a public international organisation pibed
one or more member states of the European Uniatates that are party to the agreement on the
European Economic Space are members thereof, widpbthe instruments have been issued by the
Caisse d'Amortissement de la Dette Sociale, Frargecial Security Debt Repayment Fund.

2° May invest up to 25% of its assets in bondsadwy a single entity, and provided they are
real property bonds issued by real property creatihpanies in application of Article L. 513-2°, or
bonds issued by a credit institution that hasetgstered office in a member state of the European
Union or a state that is party to the agreemeiiherzuropean Economic Space and that is the subject
of specific public supervision designed to protéet holders of such bonds. In particular, the funds
generated by the issue of the bonds must be invdasteassets that can cover the resulting
commitments for the entire duration of the bondsl must be earmarked first and foremost for the
repayment of capital and the payment of accrueatest in the event of default by the issuer.

The exception provided in the above second paragshall apply to bonds issued by a credit
institution whose sole aim is to refinance promigswtes complying with the provisions of Articles
L. 313-42 to L. 313-49, issued to refinance longrtgeceivables used to finance real property,
provided the bonds’ characteristics are identicahbse of the promissory notes.
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APPENDIX 3
(Continuation)

FRENCH MONETARY AND FINANCIAL CODE
REGULATORY PART

ARTICLES R. 313-20 TO R. 313-25

Modified by Decree 2007-745 of May 9, 2007 and Des 2011-922 of August 1, 2011, by the
ordonnance n° 2013-544 of June 27 2013 and by Deem® 2014-1315 of November 3, 2014

Article R. 313-20

| In application of the provisions of this Articldet portion of a secured receivable, within the
meaning of Article L. 313-42, that may be fundedynmat exceed the lesser of the two
following values:
1. The remaining principal balance of the receigabl
2. The product of the financing percentage defineskction Il multiplied by the value of
the asset that is financed or provided as collatera

Il The financing percentage cited in I.2. is equal to:
1. 60% of the value of the asset financed (in Hee®f secured receivables) or of the asset
provided as collateral on mortgage loans;
2. 80% of the value of the asset, in the case afidgrovided by a company to natural
persons holding promissory notes issued by thatpeoiyy when these loans are used to
finance the construction or acquisition of housimigto finance both the acquisition of a
buildable lot and the cost of building the housing.
All work performed to create or transform an inltable area by enlarging or renovating
it for the purpose of building a residence is cdased to be equivalent to the construction
of housing.

[l Assets that are financed or provided as collatevalesponding to funded receivables are
evaluated by the issuers of promissory notes usiegnethods provided for by order of the
minister of finance.

Article R. 313-21

The percentage cited in Article R. 313-20 Paragtaghis increased to:

1. 90% of the value of the asset when the value ofiuhded receivables is at least 25%
more than the value of the promissory notes theyantee;

2. 100% of the value of the asset provided as colfter the case of the social housing
ownership loans guaranteed by the Fonds de Gararifikccession Sociale cited in
Article L. 312-1 of the French Construction and i Code, or by any person or entity
taking its place, or in the case of covered loforsthat portion exceeding the percentage
established, by a guarantee meeting the condi@stablished in Article L. 313-42 of the
present code, or by the guarantee of one or mdskcgdaw corporations cited in Article
L. 513-4 of the present code.
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Article R. 313-22

A real estate guarantee, which provides a guaragqeesalent to a senior mortgage, within the
meaning of Article L. 313-42, is one that confep®u a creditor, regardless of the legal position of
the debtor, the right to force the sale of thedind covered by this guarantee regardless of whp ma
be occupying it, and to receive payment from theceeds of the sale with seniority over other
creditors.

Article R. 313-23

Repealed.

Article R. 313-24

For the application of Article L. 513-3 Paragraph Eligible secured receivables are defined asetho
for which a credit institution, aociété de financement an insurance company with capital of at
least EUR 12 million has provided a binding guagant

The total value of secured receivables funded nodyrceed 35% of the total receivables extended
to the institution holding the promissory notes ued in application of Articles
L. 313-42 to L. 313-48.

Article R. 313-25

The issuance agreement for bonds issued by a dretitution whose sole aim is to refinance
promissory notes complying with the provisions oftidle L. 313-42 to L. 313-49 must
explicitly state:

1°The purpose of the funding;
2°The exclusive purpose of the issuing credit fnson;
3°The dispensation provided for in Article R. 214Raragraph 1V.2;

4°The preferential claim enjoyed by the issuingditrénstitution, under the terms of the
provisions of Articles L. 313-42 to L. 313-49.
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APPENDIX 4

EXCERPT FROM FRENCH BANKING
AND FINANCIAL REGULATORY COMMITTEE

REGULATION No. 99-10
RELATIVE TO FRENCH SOCIETES DE CREDIT FONCIER

as amended by Regulation No. 2001-02 of June 26020
and Regulation no. 2002-02 of July 15, 2002
and by Orders of the Minister of the Economy, Finace and Industry
of May 7, 2007, of February 23, 2011, of May 26, 20 and of November 3,2014

Chapter | — Valuation of real estate assets
Article 1

Real estate financed by loans eligible as asset®dfyjage companiesdciétés de crédit foncieoy
contributed as collateral for such loans within theaning of articles L. 513-3 and L. 513-29 of the
French Monetary and Financial Code (made by thed2eaf February 23, 2011) shall be valued on
a conservative basis excluding any amount of audgtee nature.

Article 2

The valuation shall be based on the real estabeig-lerm and permanent characteristics,
usual and local market conditions, the currentaigbe asset and other uses to which it may be put.
Such mortgage value shall be determined in writingg clear and transparent way, and shall not
exceed the market value. Notwithstanding the abibneyaluation may be based on the total cost of
the initial transaction when this cost is less tEdwsR 600,000 or when the sum of the remaining
principal balances of the loans financed by thetgage company or by the housing financing society
and secured by the real estate asset valued haaraaaning unit principal less than EUR 480,000
determined at the time of said acquisition or tpédge (made by the Decree of February 23, 2011).

Article 3

After their acquisition or their pledge, the valoatof real estate assets shall be reviewed as
part of the risk measurement system governing ragegompanies argbciétés de credit foncier
under the decree of November 3, 2014 relating termal control of the bank sector companies,
payment services and investment services subjexirtol by the Prudential Control Authority and
Resolution:

a) This review shall be performed once a year usingtatistical method for residential
real estate;

b) This review shall be performed once a year usistasistical method for commercial real estate
whose all of the loans owned by the mortgage compan secured by the valued real estate asset
have a remaining unit principal less than 30% efittitial principal loaned or under EUR 480,000;

c) This review shall be performed individually evehyde year for commercial real estate whose
purchase price or whose last estimated value isruBdR 600,000 and when all of the loans owned
by the mortgage company and secured by the vagsdestate asset have a remaining unit principal
over EUR 480,000. The value of said real estatetadsetween two individual reviews shall be
reviewed yearly using a statistical method.
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d) This review shall be performed individually oncey@ar for commercial real estate whose

purchase price or whose last estimated value is BM& 600,000 and when all of the loans owned
by the mortgage company and secured by the vakadastate asset have a remaining unit principal
over EUR 480,000 (made by the Decree of Februarg@81).

Article 4

The appraisal of real estate assets shall be peefbby an independent expert within the
meaning of Article 168 of the Order of February 2007 on the Stockholders’ equity requirements
of credit institutions and investment firms (madette Decree of March 7, 2007).
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APPENDIX 5

CRH - CAISSE DE REFINANCEMENT DE L'HABITAT

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION AND BY-LAWS
(January 31, 2008)

TITLE |

Article 1 - LEGAL FORM

The company shall be a French corporatgociété anonymejt shall be governed by current and
future laws and regulations and these By-laws.

Article 2 - PURPOSE

The company's purpose is:

- to refinance, for the exclusive benefit of itsatholders or of establishments undertaking to o
stockholders in accordance with the provisions wickes 6 and 8 below, the promissory notes they
have signed or endorsed to collateralize the loafesred to in Section L. 313-42 of the French
Monetary and Financial Code representing housiagdp

- to issue, in connection with this applicatiorfurids, bonds and other securities with featuredaim
to those of the collateralized notes;

- in general, to enter into real estate and ottsrsictions relating to the purposes describedeabov
or any similar or related purposes, or which mapth& nature to facilitate the realization thereof.

The company may not hold any interest or condugtharsiness that is not related to its corporate
purpose. In particular, it may not contract anytdedi related to this purpose, with the exceptibn o

subordinated debt to reinforce its Stockholdersiiggg or in the event of the default of the makér o
a promissory note.

Article 3 — COMPANY NAME

The name of the company shall be C.R.H. - CaisdRefimancement de I'Habitat.

Article 4 — REGISTERED OFFICE

The registered office of the company is locate@8&true de la Boétie. PARIS 75008. In the event
that the Board of Directors changes the registefieck in accordance with the provisions of the Jaw
the new registered office shall automatically repléhe former office in this Article.
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Article 5 — PERIOD OF DURATION

The company shall exist for 99 years as from the dhits registration with the Trade and Companies
Registry except in the event of earlier dissolution or aezten of the term.

Article 6 - CAPITAL

The stated capital of the company shall be savathfundred and thirty nine millions nine hundred
ninety-four thousand seven hundred and thirty sexgas seventy-five cents.

It shall be divided into thirty five millions fourundred nine thousand four hundred and ninety one
shares with a par value of EUR 15.25 each.

The number of shares held by each stockholder mish the same proportion as the prudential
requirement in relative to outstanding amount ef ldans refinanced by the company for that
stockholder relative to the the prudential requeamin relative total loans refinanced by the
company. For the calculation of the proportion, gn@rantee shares held by the directors are to be
deducted from the total number of shares. The nurobehares shall be adjusted annually, as
necessary, before the end of the third month offithencial year. Where calculation results in a
fractional number, shares shall be distributednenbasis of the "greatest remainder” rule.

Article 7 — FORM AND TRANSFER OF SHARES - UNDERTAKINGS TO SELL

Shares must be in registered form, giving rise b@@k entry in accordance with the conditions and
procedures established by law.

Shares shall be freely negotiable and transferdbémsfers of shares to a person not belonging to
the company shall be effected by a transfer ordges by the seller or its agent.

To ensure that each shareholder holds a numbéaoés proportional to the prudential requirement
in relative amount of loans refinanced on its bebglthe company, as provided under Article 6
above each company shareholder undertakes toostle tmember indicated by the company or to
the person so indicated undertaking to become rzisblaer, or to buy from such member or person
the number of shares required to maintain this qntagm.

The related sales and purchases shall be effentadchlly before the end of the third month of the
financial year.

These sales and purchases shall be at a price teqin@ net book value of the shares calculated on
the basis of the last balance sheet at the end h&f ftinancial year preceding
the transactions.

For the purpose of effecting sales and purchastbssdfind, each shareholder shall grant the compan
full powers to transfer shares from the sellert®aat to the buyer's account without further forityal
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Article 8 — RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS ATTACHED TO SHAR ES

Each share entitles its holder to ownership of camypassets and an interest in company earnings
and liquidation proceeds in the same proporticorasshare to the total number of shares outstanding

In all cases where several shares are requiragtidagxercise of a given right, single shares oresha
in insufficient numbers shall not give their holsl@any claim on the company, it being their personal
responsibility in such cases to combine interesteach the required number of shares.

Ownership of a share shall mean full acceptandbeotompany's articles of incorporation and By-
laws and decisions of its Regular Stockholders’ fuhgs.

Article 9 — PAYMENT OF SHARES

Amounts remaining due for shares payable in casli ble called by the Board of Directors in
accordance with the conditions it shall establish.

Article 10 — STOCKHOLDERS’ OBLIGATIONS

Each stockholder shall be required to pay to threpgamy, as an advance, the amounts necessary to
set Stockholders’ equity at the level determinedhgyRegular Stockholders’ Meeting in accordance
with banking regulations.

Advances due from each stockholder shall be prapwt to the prudential requirement relating to
the amount of promissory notes that stockholderréfisanced or endorsed with the company and
for a period ending with the maturity of these sote

These advances, thus adjusted to reflect changtd®imamounts refinanced or endorsed by each
stockholder, shall, in the event of the companglantary or court-ordered liquidation, be reimbuarse
only after all other creditors have received the@ants due to them.

Each stockholder shall further be required to mtethe company, as a short-term advance, with the
amounts necessary for its operation, subject tbrthes and conditions set by the Board of Direstor
the maximum amount of such advances being limiegPt of total amounts outstanding.

Advances due from each stockholder shall be prap@at to the amounts refinanced on
its behalf.

Any stockholder failing to provide the required amts by the specified date shall owe the company
compensation in accordance with the conditions eibpy the Regular Stockholders’ Meeting.
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TITLE Il - GOVERNING BODIES

Article 11 - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The company shall be administered by a Board oéddars comprising at least three members and
at most twelve.

Directors must hold at least one share throughmwit term of office.

The term of office for directors shall be six yeai®wever, the first directors shall be appointed f
three years. Directors may always be reelected.

As an exception to the above, directors aged o®dendy not make up more than one-third of board
membership. Compliance with this limit shall beified each year by the meeting of the Board of
Directors held to call the Regular Stockholders’etiieg. Where the limit is exceeded, the Board
decides which member or members aged over 70 aegriain in office.

In the event of a vacancy or vacancies resultingifthe age limit or the death or retirement of one

or more directors between two Regular Stockholdersétings, the Board may make provisional
appointments.

Article 12 - CONVENING OF BOARD MEETINGS AND DECISI ONS
Directors may be called to meetings by any appad@rmneans, including verbal announcement.

Decisions shall be taken subject to the conditafrtgiorum and majority provided for by law. Where
votes are equally divided, the Chairman shall hheecasting vote.

Minutes of Board meetings shall be drawn up andiesopr excerpts filed and registered in
compliance with the law.

Article 13 - POWERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors determines the broad lifeth® company's business activities and ensures
their implementation. It shall deal with any questconcerning the proper conduct of the company
and through its deliberations shall determine a@aytens concerning the company, within the limits
determined by the company’s purpose and excludiget powers expressly reserved by law to
Regular Stockholders’ Meetings.

The Board of Directors shall perform such contr@sed verification procedures as it
deems necessary.

The Board of Directors receive from the compangairtnan or general manager all the documents
and information necessary to perform this task.
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Article 14 - CENSEURS (SUPERVISORY MEMBERS OF THE BOARD)

The Regular Stockholders’ Meeting may appoint onemore censeursfrom among company
stockholders who are not directors, and shall detex the compensation to be paid to them.

Their term of office shall be six years. Said teshall end following the Regular Stockholders’
Meeting called to examine the financial stateméontthe previous financial year and held in theryea
in which their term of office expires.

Censeursnay be reelected indefinitely and they may be neaddrom office at any time by a decision
of the Regular Stockholders’ Meeting.

In the event of the death or resignation of onmorecenseursthe Board of Directors may co-opt a
successor or successors, this provisional appoiritbeng subject to ratification by the next Regula
Stockholders’ Meeting.

The censeursshall be responsible for ensuring strict compleamath the company's articles of

incorporation and By-laws. They shall attend megtiof the Board of Directors in an advisory
capacity. They shall examine statements of asset$iabilities and annual financial statements, and
may present their observations on this subjech&Regular Stockholders’ Meeting where they
consider this appropriate.

Article 15 - CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors shall elect a Chairman frammong its members who are natural persons for
a term which it shall determine, but which shall extend beyond the member’s term of office as a
director. The Chairman shall organize and direetwork of the Board of Directors, on which he or
she shall report to the Regular Stockholders’ MegtiHe or she shall ensure the company’s
management bodies function correctly and. in paldic that directors are capable of fulfilling the
terms of their appointment.

The compensation of the Chairman shall be ses alistretion by the Board of Directors.

The Chairman may be re-elected subject only to testrictions described in the
paragraph below.

The Chairman's term of office must expire at thedhat the close of the first Regular Stockholders

Meeting held after he or she has reached the a§8.dflowever, the Board of Directors may, at a

meeting following that Regular Stockholders’ Megtiextend this period, on one or more occasions,
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

In the event of the temporary incapacity or dedtin® chairman, the Board of Directors may appoint
one of its members as acting chairman.

Where this appointment is due to the temporarygacay of the Chairman, it shall be for a set term,

which shall be renewable. In the event of the CGhaim's death, it shall be valid until the electién o
a new chairman.
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The Board of Directors shall also appoint a Secydta a term that it shall determine. The Secsetar
may be one of its members or not. In the latteec#se Secretary shall have neither voting nor
advisory powers.

The Chairman and Secretary together form the Beanfficers

Article 16 - GENERAL MANAGEMENT

On the decision of the Board of Directors, genarahagement of the company shall be assumed. at
the company’s responsibility, by either the Chaimnaod the Board of Directors or another natural
person appointed by the Board as the Chief Exes@ificer.

This decision shall be notified to stockholders atidrd parties in accordance with
applicable regulations.

The terms and conditions for the exercise of gdmeamagement powers, and the period for which
such terms and conditions shall remain in forcell $fe decided for the first time at the first megt
of the Board of Directors that shall follow adoptiof these By-laws.

The Board of Directors shall be able to decide fimtdecision shall be valid for a limited
time period.

In the event that the Board decides that the Claairaf the Board of Directors shall exercise general
management powers, the provisions of these By-lalegive to the Chief Executive Officer shall
apply to the Chairman of the Board of Directors,ovdhall take the title of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer.

Article 17 - CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The broadest powers shall be vested in the Chiettwe Officer to act in the company's name in
all circumstances. He or she shall exercise theseers within the limits determined by the

company's purpose, excluding those expressly reddry law to Regular Stockholders’ Meetings or
the Board of Directors.

The Chief Executive Officer shall represent the pany in its relations with third parties. The
company shall be liable for those acts of the Chieécutive Officer that do not fall within the
company’s purpose, except if it can prove thatttel party was aware or, in the circumstances,
could not have been unaware, that the act in quesdll outside the company’s purpose. Mere
publication of the By-laws shall not constitute lsycoof.

The Board of Directors may limit the powers of @leef Executive Officer, but not vis-a-vis relaton
with third parties.

The Chief Executive Officer may temporarily or pamently delegate part of his or her powers to

such agents as he or she may notify who may or nmay in turn delegate
such powers.
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The compensation of the Chief Executive Officerlisha set at its discretion by the Board
of Directors.

The Chief Executive Officer, even if not a diregtehall be invited to meetings of the Board of
Directors.

The Chief Executive Officer may be removed fromagffby the Board of Directors at any time. If
the removal from office is proved to be unjustniy give rise to the payment of damages except if
the Chief Executive Officer takes over the functi@f the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

If the Chief Executive Officer is also a directthre appointment shall not extend beyond his or her
term of office as a director.

The Chief Executive Officer’s term of office mustpire at the latest at the close of the first Ragul
Stockholders’ Meeting called to approve the finahsitatements for the year in which he or she
reaches the age of 65, However, the Board of Qirsahay, at the meeting following that Regular
Stockholders’ Meeting, extend this limit, on onenoore occasions, in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Article 18 — VICE-PRESIDENTS

Acting on a proposal from the Chief Executive Qdficthe Board of Directors may appoint, within
the limits set by law, one or more natural perdorsssist the Chief Executive Officer and who shall
each be designated as a Vice-President.

In agreement with the Chief Executive Officer, Bmard shall determine the scope of the powers of
each Vice-President and his or her term of offieach Vice-President shall have the same powers
vis-a-vis third parties as the Chief Executive CHfi

Should the Chief Executive Officer cease to exertis or her functions or be prevented from so
doing, each Vice-President may continue to exerhiseor her functions and powers until the
appointment of a new Chief Executive Officer, savéhe event of a decision to the contrary by the
Board.

The compensation of each Vice-President shall bat $s discretion by the Board of Directors agtin
on a proposal from the Chief Executive Officer.

Each Vice-President, even if not a director, shadl invited to meetings of the Board
of Directors.

Each Vice-President may be removed from officedgyBoard of Directors at any time acting on a
proposal from the Chief Executive Officer. If trmmoval from office is proved to be unjust, it may
give rise to the payment of damages.

If a Vice-President is also a director, the appuintt shall not extend beyond his or her term oteff
as a director.

Each Vice-President’s term of office must expiretteg latest at the close of the first Regular
Stockholders’ Meeting called to approve the finahstatements for the year in which he or she
reaches the age of 65, However, the Board of Qireahay, at the meeting following that Regular
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Stockholders’ Meeting, extend this limit, on onenoore occasions, in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Article 19 - INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The company shall be audited by one or more inddgr@rauditors in accordance with the provisions
of the law.

One or more deputy auditors shall be appointednbyRegular Stockholders’ Meeting to replace

these independent auditors in the event of thehdeability or refusal to act of said independent
auditors.

Article 20 - REGULAR STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

Regular Stockholders’ Meetings shall be convenedaatordance with the provisions of
the law.

Meetings shall take place at the company's regdteffice or at any place indicated in the notite o
meeting.

The right to participate in meetings shall be ctiodal on registration of shares on the companly rol
no less than five days prior to the date of thetinge

Meetings shall be chaired by the Chairman of tharBof Directors or, where the Chairman is absent,
by another director appointed for this purposehgyBoard, or failing this, by a person electedhsy t
meeting.

Votes shall be counted by the two members of thetimg with the largest number of votes who
accept these duties.

The officers of the meeting shall appoint the secyefor the meeting who is not required to be a
stockholder.

A record of attendance shall be kept in accordavittethe provisions of the law.

Copies and excerpts of the minutes of the meetimgl e properly certified as required
by law.

Article 21 - ATTENDANCE AND REPRESENTATION AT MEETI NGS
All stockholders shall have the right to attend rieetings.
Each member of a Regular Stockholders’ Meetingl $taade, subject to the special provisions of the

law concerning meetings deemed to be constitueath@mber of votes resulting from the following
rules:
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- stockholders with between one share and 10%eo$hiares representing the capital shall have one
vote for each 0.01% of the capital they own;

- stockholders with between 10 and 20% of the shagresenting the capital shall have 1.000 votes
plus one vote for each 0.10% of the capital they alwove 10%;

- stockholders with more than 20% of the sharesessmting the capital shall have 1.100 votes plus
one vote for each 1% of the capital they own al08;

- where necessary, the number of votes calculatetis way shall be rounded up to the nearest
integer.

A stockholder may be represented by another stddkhat a Regular Stockholders’ Meeting.

Individuals representing legal entities shall gpite in meetings whether or not they are theneselv
stockholders.

Article 22 - POWERS OF REGULAR STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETIN GS
Regular and Special Stockholders’ Meetings shalpadecisions in accordance with the conditions

of quorum and majority legally applicable to eaahd shall exercise the powers vested in them by
law.

TITLE 1l - FINANCIAL YEAR AND EARNINGS

Article 23 - FINANCIAL YEAR
The company's financial year shall begin on Jantiaagd end on December 31.

As an exception, the company's first financial y&zall begin on the date of incorporation and end
on December 31, 1985.

Article 24 - PROFITS AND LOSSES - PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS

Distributable income, as this is defined by lawnalkbe at the disposal of the Regular Stockholders’
Meeting, which may decide to allocate it to onemmre reserves for which such meetings have the
power to determine allocations or applicationgaoy it forward to the following year or to didiute

it, In the event of distribution, the Regular Stholders’ Meeting may allow stockholders to choose
between a dividend in cash or in shares as pro\igddw.

The Regular Stockholders’ Meeting may also deaiddistribute funds drawn from reserves that it
controls, expressly indicating the reserve or resefrom which they shall be drawn.

However, dividends shall be to be paid out of isitiable income first.
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Except in the event that the capital is reduced]istibution may be made if Stockholders’ equgy i
lower or would as a result of such distributiondome lower than the sum of the capital and reserves
which may not legally be distributed.

Any losses shall be carried forward and chargddttoe income until they are wiped out.

TITLE IV - DISSOLUTION - LIQUIDATION

Article 25

At the expiration of the company or in the evenit®tlissolution, the Regular Stockholders’ Meeting
shall determine the liquidation procedures and appme or more liquidators whose powers the
same meeting shall determine, and who shall pertbein duties in accordance with the provisions
of the law.
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APPENDIX 6

CRH - CAISSE DE REFINANCEMENT DE L'HABITAT

INTERNAL RULES AND REGULATIONS

These internal rules are designed to complementaplhin the By-laws. They specify the provisions
governing CRH'’s business and certain stockholdernsibments. They apply to existing and future maytga
notes and supersede any previous agreements.

If necessary, it can be further amended to be &diypliant with the new European regulation.

1. Activity

2. Approval of borrowers

3. Risk Committee

4, Bond issuance procedure

5. Mortgage notes

6. Collateral for mortgage notes
7. Borrower defaults

8. Stockholders’ obligations

9. Internal controls and inspection

10. Stockholder approval of internal rules and reglations

149



1. ACTIVITY

1.1. In accordance with its By-laws, the sole activafyCRH is the refinancing of housing loans
granted by the credit institutions that are, orehagreed to become, its stockholders.

1.2.CRH issues bond loans (or other securities. @&fgned to in what follows as “bonds”) with the
same features as its refinancing loans. It thus aot behalf of its stockholders purely as an
intermediary.

1.3. As a result, the borrowing institutions’ commitniemxactly match those contracted by CRH
when borrowing on the financial market.

1.4. CRH's refinancing operations are governed by $astiL. 313-42 to L. 313-49 of the French
Monetary and Financial Cod€¢de monétaire et financier

1.5.As required by its Articles, CRH will not hold aeguity interests or engage in any activity that
is not part of its corporate purpose. In particulat will not contract any debt
not relating to this corporate purpose, exceptingoosdinated debt contracted for the
purpose of consolidating Stockholders’ equity;rothie event of default by the issuer of a promigsor
note.

2. APPROVAL OF BORROWERS
2.1.To be eligible for CRH refinancing. a borrower must

- be a credit institution;

- undertake to become a CRH stockholder;

- undertake to comply with legislation and officraulations applicable to the operations of
CRH, the Articles of Incorporation and By-laws oRB and these internal rules, in particular as
regards the right of CRH to inspect the borrowkr&n portfolio;

- be approved by CRH and. to this end, submit desuation with all business and financial
information necessary to determine whether suchoappis appropriate.

CRH may request any additional information and médd assessments it considers necessary

for this purpose.

2.2. After consulting, where appropriate, the Risk Catter, the CRH Board of Directors decides
whether to grant approval, if necessary settinthfthre conditions to which this approval is suhject
and determining the financial conditions applicableefinancing.

In accordance with French banking regulations, Board of Directors may at any time
reconsider the maximum amount of risk accepte@spect of any one borrower.
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2.3.Before any refinancing is granted:

- the borrower must sign the internal rules and asiibated loan agreement concerning the
equity contribution referred to in Article 8.1 belp
- the borrower must undertake to provide CRH on auleggbasis or at the request
of CRH;
» with all documents necessary to monitor its busireesd earnings, in particular in the
housing-loan sector;
» where applicable, this is to include informatiomcerning housing-loan assets sold or
transferred, whether or not the borrower contirtoeedminister these loans;
» where applicable, it shall also include the amairsiny mortgage notes issued in favor
of any party other than CRH,;

- the CRH inspection department may examine theol@r’s loan portfolio.

3. RISK COMMITTEE

3.1.The Board of Directors or the management of CRKi omavene a Risk Committee. The Board
of Directors appoints the members of this committemmn among its stockholders or their
representatives, and determines the rules govethengperation of the committee.

3.2.The risk committee is an advisory body. At theues of the Board of Directors or management,
it gives its opinion on issues such as, in paréiguhe conditions applying to:

- approval of borrowers and refinancing;

- eligibility of loans;

- collateral for mortgage notes;

- cover for the direct and indirect risk exposuf€&H.

4. BOND ISSUANCE
4.1.The credit institutions inform CRH of their refim@ng requirements periodically.
After receiving and examining all applications. CRifbrms the institutions of its decision,

prepares an issuance program, and submits a leagregment setting forth the terms and conditions
of refinancing for signature by the institutions.

4.2.CRH may issue notes, bills, Bonds, negotiable getituments or any other security on French
or foreign financial markets.
CRH may entrust one or more credit institutiondwtite placement of its securities or effect

this placement itself. It determines the specifarat of these securities in accordance with market
conditions.
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4.3.0nce it has received the proceeds of its issuesl Rays each borrower its full interest in these
proceeds, less the required equity contribution twedfees and commissions relating to issuance.
This equity contribution is in the form of a submated loan granted to CRH by the borrowers. CRH
redeems subordinated loans in accordance with dhelittons set forth in section 8.1 of these

Regulations.

5. MORTGAGE NOTES
5.1.Issuance of mortgage notes

In accordance with the provisions of Sections L3-82 to L. 313-49 of the Monetary and
Financial Code and the refinancing contract, boerswmust provide CRH with mortgage notes
representing their interest in the bond. The mggaotes are to be made out in accordance with the
provisions of the Commercial Code and prevailirmgdards as defined in a model drawn up by CRH.
Borrowers must give an irrevocable undertakingdg fhe interest. Costs, incidental expenses and
all current and future tax relating to these nategroportion to their interest and to fulfill the
commitments set forth on the front and back of éhestes.

CRH purchases these notes when it receives thespannding funds.

Principal notes bear interest at the same ratedates as the related bond issue and are
amortized in accordance with the same conditions.
5.2.Early repayment of notes

Borrowing institutions may repay notes in full or part before maturity only with CRH’s
consent and subject to the conditions determinedCBH, after signing an early repayment

agreement. In such event, the institution concedediders the related bonds to CRH as repayment.

CRH may suspend this right at any time.

5.3.Procedure to secure compliance with amortizatobedules

In connection with the introduction of proceduressecure compliance with amortization
schedules for existing or future bonds, borrowesgressly agree to comply with the following
provisions:

- Five business days before a payment on a bondddsy CRH falls due, each borrower must
pay CRH an advance in an amount equal to the pahciote to be repaid, plus the amount of the
associated interest note.

- The corresponding funds are invested on the maraket up to the payment date through
deliverable repurchase agreements on Treasury antebills.

- The advance is returned on the payment date,endugplicable by offsetting the amount
against sums due from the borrower on the princip& and the associated interest note.

- The proceeds from the investment of advanceshenmoney market are paid to the
borrowers.
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5.4.Endorsement by authorized guarantor

One or more borrowers may authorize an institutioly approved by CRH to issue in their
name and on their behalf, a single refinancing nepeesenting loans that the borrower or borrowers
wish to refinance.

The institution so authorized endorses the priricgrad interest notes on behalf of the
borrowers. It undertakes to stand in for the boe@nin the event of default and in such event is
obligated to fulfill all the commitments of the lbower or borrowers concerned. It also provides CRH
with a copy of its authorization.

Each borrower so authorizing the institution unalees to fulfill all commitments relating to
the refinancing in proportion to its interest ire thote. The borrowers may enter into an agreement
stipulating joint and several liability with regatal all these commitments.

The authorized institution does not need to beasspssion of the loans but must give an
undertaking that CRH may, if it wishes, conducpetions at its premises.

The authorized institution is also required to obtfaom the borrowers it acts for all such
documents as may be required to obtain, if necgssaforceable copies of loan agreements from
notaries and court registrars. The authorizatioadeives must provide for the transferabilityaft
right to CRH.

The authorization must further expressly indichtg the principal is apprised of these internal
rules, agrees to the conditions set forth hereind amndertakes to comply with
the same.

The authorized institution signs these internalutagpns both in its own name and as the
representative of its principal.

6. COLLATERAL FOR MORTGAGE NOTES
6.1.Pledging of loan portfolio

Interest payments and mortgage note repaymentsbaustcured by a pledge of loans at the
latest during as notes are issued, in accordaritetie provisions of Sections L. 313-42 to L. 313-
49 of the Monetary and Financial Code concernimyigion of collateral.

Collateral is constituted by the borrower providingn itemized list of the
loans securing each note, using a model preparegdR¥y, in accordance with the aforementioned
provisions.

The terms of the loans accepted as collateral aydparticular conditions applying to
refinancing are determined by the CRH Board of @oes in compliance with applicable law and
are set forth in a document entitled “Eligibility looans for CRH Refinancing”. Borrowers consent
in advance to any amendments that may in the futub® made to
this document.

The loans pledged must at all times have an avdifggeearby to the residual life of the

principal note secured, and bear interest at arageerate equal to or higher than that on the note.
The amount of these loans must at all times belequa least 125% of the note secured. However
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when certain of these conditions are not fulfilladtably matching of interest rates and life ofesot
CRH may require that this minimum amount be incedas

The borrower undertakes to employ its best efftartensure that debtors meet payments on
due dates.

It is expressly agreed that all loan thus providsdcollateral for CRH by the borrower is
affected to the guaranty of all note subscribeldi@r on subscribed by the borrower at CRH's profit

6.2.Restrictions applying to collateral

In accordance with the provisions of the Code reteto above, the borrower may not assign, in
any manner or form. in particular by transfer ofn@nship or pledge, the loans provided as collateral
Transfers to a securitization fund os@ciété de credit fonciere thus prohibited.

The borrower recovers the right to dispose fredlyhe pledged loans only when they are
repaid, capitalized, disputed, fall due or beconoaibdful. In such cases, the borrower must
immediately replace these loans with eligible lognthe same amount.

Loans are deemed disputed when due payments anmau#, either because of legal or
political obstacles beyond the control of the deldo because of contestation.

Loans are deemed doubtful when due payment is raatenfor reasons other than those
referred to in the previous paragraph.

Borrower undertakes to withdraw from pledged celiaf; all pledged loans un-validated during
CRH's inspections and more broadly to withdravplatiged loan not responding to CRH's criterias of
eligibility for loans.

Borrowers keep a register of loans provided asatarihl andmonthly send copies of this
register to CRH on a regular basis.
6.3. Inspection of borrowers

CRH inspects collateral for the notes issued bydvegrs or to be issued by institutions that
intend to borrow.

In particular, it verifies:

-the material existence of loans;

-full legal and beneficial ownership by the borrowe

-in accordance with the provisions of the law, #i®sence of related commitments, in
particular concerning a pledge or sale.

To this end, it may require the institution insgecto provide all relevant declarations from
its Independent Auditors.

In cases where inspection reveals the inclusionedigible loans in the portfolio, in particular

of the kind described in Article 6.2 of these reguans, the institution must replace these witbikle
loans to remedy the resulting shortfall.
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6.4. Insufficient collateral

Should the amount of the loans provided as coliafer notes be insufficient. The institution
concerned must immediately remedy this by pledgofdjtional eligible loans to CRH. Failing this, the
borrower undertakes to restore collateral to an@ake level through the immediate purchase of bonds
in a sufficient amount from the pool correspondimghe note concerned and to deliver these bonds to
CRH by way of repayment.

CRH may agree to the deferral of such transactions.

Borrowers undertake to inform CRH promptly as sastthey aware that such a situation may
arise.
6.5. Information system

The borrower undertakes to inform CRH eventualfyamy draft amendment likely to affect
filters being used to select pledged loans.
7. BORROWER DEFAULT

In the case of a borrower default on payment ofdativance referred to in Article 5.3 above
prior to a repayment date or interest payment ttetdollowing provisions apply:
7.1.Call for cash advances

CRH management calls on each stockholder to sugyidycash advances referred to in
Article 8.3 below for the purpose of meeting commahts to bondholders at the due date despite
the default.
7.2.Lapse of maturity dates on notes

When a borrower defaults on payment of interegriocipal at a due date, the maturity date on
all notes issued by the borrower in favor of CRpsks and all such notes become ipso facto immbdiate
due.

7.3. Transfer of ownership

On recognition of a borrower’s default, CRH, havoaled cash advances and consulted the
Risk Committee, considers:

a) the advisability of taking over ownership oflatdral, together with the conditions applying

to such action, in accordance with the provisidnSextions L. 313-42 to L. 313.49 of the Monetary
and Financial Code, once notice of default has lseered on the borrower.
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b) the advisability of entrusting administration thfe loans concerned to the defaulting
institution in accordance with the appended agreenit appropriate under the supervision of a
provisional administrator appointed by the Frenchdential Supervisory AuthorityAutorité de
Contréle Prudential et de Résolution— AQPR

CRH then carries out or commissions a detailedtanfdihe loan portfolio to ascertain its
overall makeup and to determine precisely the amsoamd dates of revenues it may be expected to
generate.

7.4.Management of risks resulting from the substitutid loans for defaulting mortgage notes

The revenue flows generated by the loans are tol@@RH to pay interest and principal on
bonds related to the defaulting notes. However,ddtes and amounts of revenue flows may not
exactly match those of payments.

In view of this, CRH may, once the loan portfoliashbeen fully assessed seek additional
refinancing to ensure a precise match between vegeand payments.

CRH may also retire its bond debt by selling thenlportfolio and buying back bonds in the
same amount on market terms, then cancelling theses.

7.5.Management of interest rate risk

When a borrower defaults, the interest rate rigk thay result is the object of particular
attention. CRH may use derivative products to cdhiy risk but to the extent possible must give
preference to the purchase or sale of fixed-incaemurities or loans eligible for its refinancing
operations.

Should CRH decide to sell the loans to fund thelpase of bonds as described in 7.4 above,
preparations for this will include the adoption gbrecisely defined measures to
limit interest-rate risk. This may involve in padiar entrusting a credit institution with an accho
mandate.

7.6. Settlement between defaulting borrowers and CRH
The final settlement with a defaulting borrower sldarelease CRH in full from all debts and
commitments entered into on behalf of the borrowséh no charge of any kind remaining as a result

of the default.

The final settlement is in principle made after tatest maturity date initially set for the
borrower’s notes.
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Payments due from the defaulting borrower includpadrticular:

- the amount of interest, repayments and tax paitb de paid by CRH on behalf of the
borrower since its default, including interest bie tash advances from other stockholders referred
to in section 8.3 below;

- the full amount paid out by CRH (including experand interest) in connection with the
bond repurchases referred to under 7.4 above;

- all legal and other expenses borne by CRH asdtref the default.

8. STOCKHOLDERS' COMMITMENTS
In addition to the obligations resulting from tlaevl regulations and contractual agreements
governing their operations, each stockholder mult the following commitments.

8.1. Capital contributions

In accordance with the Articles of Incorporatiom@y-laws, each stockholder must pay CRH
the sums needed to meet the capital adequacy eegemts of French banking regulations.

Each stockholder makes such payments in propottidhe prudential requirement relating
to the outstanding mortgage notes refinanced leynpdorsed by CRH and for the same period as these
notes are valid. The amounts of payments are adjustreflect changes in outstanding notes.

In the event of voluntary or court-ordered liquidatof CRH, these contributions are not
repaid until all other creditors have been paitlih

8.2.0wnership

In accordance with the Articles of Incorporatiorddy-laws, stockholders undertake to sell
or buy the number of shares required to ensurettiginterest of each is in exactly the same
proportion to total equity as its notes are to pinedential requirement in relative to total notes
outstanding.

Sales and purchases must be made before the #melfakt quarter of each calendar year, at
a price equal to the net book value of the shasesmkulated on December 31 of the previous year.
8.3.Cash advances from stockholders

In accordance with the By-laws, each stockholderstmsupply CRH with the
amounts in the form of cash advances, requireditfooperation, subject to a limit of 5% of
outstanding loans.

a) The Board of Directors has expressly empoweRH Ghanagement to use any means at

its disposal to call these cash advances at its iniiative, as soon as the need arises and in the
amounts required.

157



b) In the case of a stockholder default on delzteel payments to CRH, cash advances from
other stockholders allow CRH to timely pay all suoeged on behalf of the defaulting stockholder,
in particular to bondholders and French tax autlesri

Where necessary, the sums advanced are held umtlasettlement is made between the
defaulting stockholder and CRH.

c) Advances are due from stockholders in proportiotineir refinancing notes outstanding at
December 31 of the previous year.

d) The Board of Directors determines, at the appatgtime, the interest to be paid on these
advances on the basis of current market conditions.

e) To enable CRH to receive cash advances immédaieequest, each stockholder provides
it with an ad hoc file, kept up to date at all tsn&his file sets out the names, addresses arghteie
and fax numbers of two employees authorized to aéhl requests for cash advances from CRH
management.

f) A stockholder failing to make payments at the dlate is required, without further process
and without notice, to pay compensation to the cmgp The terms of this compensation are
determined by a Regular Stockholders’ Meeting.
8.4.Management agreement

Each stockholder accepts, by operation of lawteiras of the management agreement referred
to in Article 7.3 above
8.5. Compliance with Articles of Incorporation and Bawls

Each stockholder is required, by sole virtue ofstatus, to comply with the company’s
Articles of Incorporation and By-laws and the resioins adopted by Regular Stockholders’
Meetings.

9. INTERNAL CONTROLS AND INSPECTIONS

In accordance with French banking regulations, QRid implemented an internal control
system under the direct responsibility of senionaggement.

CRH operations are also reviewed by the audit deygants of stockholder institutions.

10. STOCKHOLDER APPROVAL OF INTERNAL RULES AND REGU LATIONS

CRH stockholders expressly undertake to comply whtse internal rules, as evidenced by their
signatures below.
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APPENDIX 7

CONDITIONS OF ELIGIBILITY

REMINDER

The sole business of Caisse de Refinancement @bitat is the funding of housing loans
extended by banks. CRH provides funding to the sdnkacquiring and holding the promissory
notes they issue. These notes have the same aratics as the bonds CRH issues to fund them,
and are guaranteed by a specific pledge of thesloaade by the banks.

These criteria can be further amended to be faltgmiant with the new European regulation.

INTRODUCTORY REMARK

The following provisions comprise the body of laasd regulations applicable to CRH'’s
operations. Some of these rules are also likelyet@mended, repealed or replaced in the coming
months due to the introduction of the new Europegulatory framework:

- Article 13 of Law no. 85-695 of July 11, 19850iad) with Article 36 of Law no. 2006-872
of July 13, 2006;

- Articles L. 313-42 through L. 313-49 of the Moast and Financial Code codifying the
provisions of Article 16 of Act no. 69-1263 of Deaker 31, 1969 as amended by Articles 12 and 13
of Act no. 85-695 of July 11, 1985 and by ArtictE3lof Act no. 99-532 of June 25, 1999, by Article
16 of Decree n°2008-556 of June 13, 2008 and bilari8 of Decree n° 2010-76 of January 21,
2010;

- Article L. 513-3 paragraph | relative to Frenabcetés de Crédit Foncier;
- Article L. 312-3-1 ofcode de la consommatioagarding some loans in foreign currency.

- Articles R. 313-20 to R. 313-25 of the Monetangdinancial Code codifying the provisions
of Decree no. 2000-664 of July 17, 2000 as amebgddecree no. 2003-144 of February 19, 2003
and by Decree no. 2007-745 of May 9, 2007 and byré&seno. 2014-1315 of November 3, 2014;

- French Banking and Finance Regulatory Committeguiation no. 99-10 as amended by
Regulation n0°.2002-02 nd the Decrees of May 77280 of February 23, 2011 on the valuation of
financed assets to be used to determine the paiora loan that may be collateralized,;

-Regulation (EU) n° 575/2013 of the European paréat and Council of June 26, 2013
hereinafter referred to as CRR;

-Directive 2013/36/EU of the European parliamerd @ouncil of June 26, 2013;

- The company By-laws of CRH;
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- This document, summarizing all of the generalvmions related to the raising of capital,
which details and supplements the above rules.omptiance with the By-laws of CRH, these
provisions have been approved by the Board of Borec

CONDITIONS OF ELIGIBILITY OF LOANS

The conditions of eligibility of the loans in whi€@RH result of the provision of article 129
of European regulation “CRR” of June 26, 2013 rdgay covered bonds and the capabilities
appropriate for the CRH.

1 - BENEFICIARIES

Beneficiaries must be either natural personssociété civile immobilierereal estate
partnerships whose stockholders are natural perdfotise latter do not engage in property
development activities.

2 -USE

The loans are intended to be used to finance thsteation or acquisition dflousing or in
the financing of both the acquisition of a buildalplroperty and the cost of the work for providing
Housing. All work performed to create or transform a hablé area, by extending or renovating it,
is considered to be construction.

Thus, all loans intended to be used to financegssibnal or commercial facilities are
excluded. In the case of a mixed-use operatioraritiimg of both housing and professional or
commercial facilities), the financing of the houwgipart may be eligible only that part is broken out
in a separate loan, mortgage registration and tialua
3 - GUARANTEES

The loans financed must be guaranteed:

1) either by a senior mortgage or a PRDVflege de préteur de denigrg/pe surety on the
asset financed,

2) or by a joint and several guarantee from anl#égorotection provider according to the
article 129-e of the European regulation “CRR”.

The borrower must ensure that the property seeantiatches the criteria of the regulation above.

4 - AMOUNT
The initial term of the eligible loan is greateathl year.

The outstanding principal balance of the eligilol@l must not exceed EUR 1 million.
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5 - MATURITY

The term to maturity of the eligible loan must eateed 25 years.

6 — PORTION OF AN ELIGIBLE LOAN THAT MAY BE FUNDED

The portion of an eligible loan that may be fundealy not exceed the lower of the following
two amounts:

- the remaining principal balance of the loan;

- 90% of the value of the asset financed or praviae collateral (or 100% in the casdPoéts
a I’Accession Socialsocial housing loans guaranteed by Fonds de Garahfccession Sociale
or any other substitute fund. body. entity or pajso

When several loans coexist (especigitgts d’épargne logemeand zero-interest ratgpe
regulated housing loans), the portion eligible @RH financing is calculated by taking the sum of
the remaining principal balances of all of the lman

7 - VALUATION OF THE ASSET FINANCED

All buildings financed by eligible loans are theébpct of a prudent evaluation that excludes
all speculative aspects. It is carried out by thedwing bank.

This valuation must be performed by an independgpert, i.e. a person who is not part of
the lending decision-making process and who possefise qualifications, competence and
experience necessary to perform such a valuation.

The valuation is performed taking into account thelding’s long-term characteristics,
normal and local market conditions, the currentraee of the asset and all other uses that might be
made. This mortgage value must be explained planty transparently in writing, and may not be
greater than the asset's market value.

By dispensation, the valuation may be based otothécost of the initial operation when this
cost is less than EUR 600.000 or when the sum efréimaining principal balances of the loans
guaranteed by the asset financed is less than EBORA0.

The valuation of the buildings is re-examined as pithe risk measurement system required
of borrowing credit institutions by the decree aidmber 3, 2014 relating to internal control of the
bank sector companies, payment services and ineassarvices subject to control by the Prudential
Control Authority and Resolution. This examinatismperformed annually using statistical methods.

The methods used to value buildings and the peariedexamination of their value must be
made available to both the ACPR and CRH who mayesigtheir modification.

The borrower has procedures describing their lendolicy and the nature of the goods

financed and enabling them to ensure that the piyppeken as collateral is adequately insured
against the risk of damage.
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8 - SPECIFIC CONDITIONS FOR GUARANTEED LOANS

Total guaranteed loans may not exceed 35% of tta¢ aonount pledged by a borrowing
institution in favor of CRH.

The loan-to-income ratio has to respect at mos¥38hen the loan has been granted. This
ratio corresponds to the portion of the borrowgrtsss income which covers the loan reimbursement
including interest.

Both the credit institution and the protection pd&r shall carry out a creditworthiness
assessment of the borrower.

9 - SPECIFIC PROVISIONS

Until such time as it matures, the funding providedst be secured by the pledging of a
portfolio of eligible loans in an amount equal tdesmast 125% of the total amount of funding. When
these loans are has fixed rate and at least equ&(% of the total amount of funding when these
loans are for revisable rate.

CRH may, however, require this minimum to be inseghin situations where certain rules
are not followed, especially rules regarding thegraence of interest rates.

The borrower may not transmit the pledged claimsugh any means. Consequently it cannot
sell them, notably to an FCC debt securitizatiamdfor to asociété de crédit foncienortgage debt
company.

The borrower is able to dispose freely solely ajsth claims that are reimbursed due for
payment, capitalized, disputed or doubtful. Thertwer is then expected to replace them with the
same amount of eligible claims.

All claims experiencing delinquent payments areswered to be capitalized or disputed if
the delinquent payments result from legal or pmditobstacles independent of the will of the debtor
or of any challenge.

All claims experiencing delinquent payments foeason other than those mentioned above
are considered to be doubtful.

It should be specified that a claim is considepeld experiencing delinquent payments once
the delinquency represents two payments or more.

The portfolio of pledged loans must have an aveliéggepan equal to the term to maturity of
the funding, and an average interest rate thakeistgr than or equal to that of the funding.

CRH may require controlled institutions to providay useful opinions issued by their
independent auditors.

When invalid claims are discovered, especially ¢hdsfined in Section 6.2. of the present

By-laws, the borrowing institution must pledge adiional portfolio of valid claims in favor of
CRH to compensate for the observed shortfall.
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Regarding the loans in Swiss francs, the borrolWweulsl insure that the beneficiaries of these
loans have mainly their income or hold assets irsSWwancs at the loan’s signatory date.

OTHER REMARKS

It may be observed tharéts d’épargne logememind similar regulated housing loans are
eligible under the same terms and conditions asttier loans.

By law, loans are considered eligible if they asedito finance a real estate asset located
within the European Economic Space or in the oeasrsearritories of the French Republic. At present,
however, regarding the above regulation, the opgrations authorized are those financing real@stat
assets in Metropolitan France and its overseasthegats and territories.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS TO BE MAINTAINED BY THE BORROW ING
INSTITUTIONS

Caisse de Refinancement de I'Habitat verifies thagemality of each claim and its compliance
with the criteria established in this documenautlits the following characteristics of each loan:

* purpose and location of the asset financed,

* beneficiary,

* guarantees,

* amount authorized,

* remaining principal balance,

* clauses describing repayment methods,

» date of final maturity and payment dates foriiest and principal,
* nominal interest rates and conditions for revisio

* total cost of the operation financed, cost of kgor

* valuation of the asset financed,

* portion of loan eligible for funding,

* outstanding payments,

* loan/income ratio for guaranteed loans,

« for Swiss franc loans, presence of incomes @atarpony in the same currency.

Institutions are thus required to maintain thedwaihg supporting documents in order to
present them to CRH:
1- GUARANTEES

« executory document, notices of registration agluired documents for mortgage loans;

 guarantee document for guaranteed loans;
* loan offer and amendments.
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2- VALUATION OF THE ASSET

 sale document, agreement of sale, VEFA-type vasen contract on future construction,
notice of donation, notarized certificate, condiiarc contract or any documents useful for
establishing the total cost of the operation onhileie of the asset financed,;

* summary of expenses engaged and sums released,;

 supporting documentation for the valuation of #sset financed, when so required by
regulations (total value of the operation gredtantor equal to EUR 600.000);

« in the event that a loan is acquired, all docusestablishing the purpose and the value of
the asset financed by the original loan and enguhat such loan satisfies all conditions of
eligibility.

3- CUSTOMER DATA

« current delinquent payment status report for daah;

« amortization tables of the loans used to finaheeoperation;
« analysis sheet, detailed financing projections;

« articles of incorporation of the SCI;

« loan to income ratio when the loan is granted;

« proof of income or assets for the loans in Syir&scs.
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APPENDIX 7
(Continuation)

GLOSSARY

Collateral: Pledging of a portfolio of eligible claims in favef CRH in accordance with the
provisions of Articles L. 313-42 of the French Mtarg and Financial Code to cover the amount lent
by CRH to the borrowing credit institution.

Congruence of term:Provision of the CRH’s By-laws requiring that tineerage term of the portfolio
of claims pledged in its favor be at all timeseddt equal to the term to maturity of the mortgage
note.

Congruence of interest rates:Provision of the CRH’s By-laws requiring that theerage interest
rate of the portfolio of claims pledged in its fava®, at all times, greater than or equal to therest
rate on the mortgage note.

Eligible claim: Housing loans compliant with the conditions ofg#dility established by the
provisions of Articles L. 313-42 et seq. of therkale Monetary and Financial Code.

Guaranteed bonds (or Regulated European Covered Bds): Bonds that meet the criteria
established by European regulation (EU) no 575/3@RR (article 129).

Invalid claim: Loans that are not compliant with the conditiohslaibility cited above.

Mortgage market: A market created in 1966 that, in accordance wighprovisions of Articles L.
313-42 to L. 313-49 of the French Monetary and ko Code, allows credit institutions to fund
certain housing loans. CRH was substituted fomtlbetggage market which is no longer restricted to
the funding of residential mortgages (under certaimditions).

Mortgage note: Security (promissory note) issued by a borrowingdit institution representing
CRH'’s claim on the latter. The principal and instref each note is guaranteed by the pledging of a
portfolio of eligible claims. This is essentiallyrade bill.

Oversizing: Minimum level of coverage of fundings by the polith of claims pledged in favor of
CRH. This minimum level is at least equal to 125¥oyisions of Decree no. 2000-664 of July 17.
2000).

Portion of an eligible loan that may be funded:may not exceed the lower of the two following
amounts: the remaining principal balance of thaloa90% of the value of the asset financed or
provided as collateral (or 100% in the casePodts a I'Accession Socialeocial housing loans
guaranteed by Fonds de Garantie a I’Accession Boaifaany other substitute fund. body. entity or
person).

This value is estimated in accordance with theigroms of French Banking and Financial Regulatory
Committee Regulation no. 99-10.

Subordinated loans:Sums loaned to CRH by its borrowers, pro-ratechupeir outstanding loans
and accounted for as Stockholders’ equity.
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APPENDIX 8

STRESS-TEST RESULTS

2014 COMPREHENSIVE ASSESSMENT OUTCOME
ECEBE PUBLIC

NAME OF THE ENTITY | FRCRH | C.R.H. - Caisse de Refinancement de 'Habitat
1 Main Results and Overview
A MAIN INFORMATION ON THE BANK BEFORE THE COMPREHENSIVE ASSESSMENT (end 2013)
END 2013
A1  Total Assets (based on prudential scope of consolidation) Mill. EUR 53 133,00
A2 Net (+) Profit/ (-) Loss of 2013 (based on prudential scope of consolidation) Mill. EUR 1,00
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital .
A3 according to CRDIV/CRR definition, transitional arrangements as of 1.1.2014 Mill. EUR 314,00
Total risk exposure * .
A sccording to CRDIVICRR definition, transitional arrangements as of 1.1 2014 Mil. EUR 547400
Total exposure measure according to Article 429 CRR .
A5 "Leverage exposure” Mill. EUR 53 133,00
CET1 ratio
A6  according to CRDIV/CRR definition, transitional arrangements as of 1.1.2014 % 5,74%
AE=A3/A4
AT Tier 1 Ratio (where available) % 5 74%
according to CRD3 definition, as of 31.12.2013 as reported by the bank i
Core Tier 1 Ratio (where available)
AB according to EBA definition % 5.14%
A9 Leverage ratio % 0,59%
A10 MNon-performing exposures ratio % 0,00%
A11 Coverage ratio for non-performing exposure % 0,00%
A12  Level 3 instruments on total assets %o 0,00%
B MAIN RESULTS OF THE COMPREHENSIVE ASSESSMENT (CA)
CET1 Ratio
B1  atyear end 2013 including retained earnings / losses of 2013 % 5,74%
B1=A6
B2 Aggregated adjustments due o the outcome of the AQR Basis Points 0
Change
AQGR adjusted CET1 Ratio
B3 B3=B1+B2 % 5,74%
Aggregate adjustments due to the outcome of Basis Points
B4  the baseline scenario of the joint EBA ECB Stress Test ch -6
; : ange
to lowest capital level over the 3-year period
Adjusted CET1 Ratio after Baseline Scenario o
BS Bs=B3+B4 "o 5,67%)
Aggregate adjustme_nts due _tn_the outcome of Basis Points
BE6 the adverse scenario of the joint EBA ECB Stress Test Change -22
to lowest capital level over the 3-year period 9
Adjusted CET1 Ratio after Adverse Scenario
B7 B7=B3+Bé % 5,51%
Capital Shortfall Basis Points ' Mill. EUR
B8 tothreshold of 8% for AQR adjusted CET1 Ratio 226 123,92
B9 tothreshold of 8% in Baseline Scenario 233 129,37
B10 to threshold of 5.5% in Adverse Scenario 0 0,00
Aggregated Capital Shortfall of the Comprehensive Assessment
B11 g1 = max( B8, B9, B10) 233 129,37

* Total risk exposure figure is pre-4QR. Please note that the corresponding Year End 2013 figure in the EBA Tramsparency template is post-AQR and therefore may not match exactly.
" RWA used corresponds to relevant scenario in worst case year




Overview AQR Overview Baseline Overview Adverse
7% -
6% 1 0.00% ~fB6%— 0,22% 1
5%
4% -
3% -
2%
1% -
CET 1 Ratio at year Aggregated AQR adjusted CET1 Aggregate Adjusted CET1 Ratio AC0R adjusted CET1 Aggregate Adjusted CET1 Ratio
end 2013 including  adjustments due to Ratio adjustments dus o after Baseline Ratio adjustments dus to after Adverse
retained amnings /  the cutcome of the the cutcome of the Scenario the cutcome of the Scenario
losses of 2012 AQR baseling scenano of adverse scenaric of
the joint EBA ECB the joint EBA ECB
Stress Test Stress Test
c MAJOR CAPITAL MEASURES IMPACTING TIER 1 ELIGIBLE CAPITAL

FROM 1 JANUARY 2014 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2014

Issuance of CET1 Instruments

C1  Raising of capital instruments eligible as CET1 capital

G2 Repayment of CET1 capital, buybacks

Conversion to CET1 of hybrid instruments
becoming effective between January and September 2014

Net issuance of Additional Tier 1 Instruments

C4  with a frigger at or above 5.5% and below 6%

C5  with a frigger at or above 6% and below 7%

C6  with a frigger at or above 7%

Fines/Litigation costs

C7  Incurred fines/litigation costs from January to September 2014 (net of provisions)

250,00

0,00

0,00

0,00

0,00

0,00

0,00
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Overall results

The median bank’s CET1 ratio falls by 4% in the
adverse scenario

Comprehensive assessment impact on CET1 ratio under the adverse scenario
Median by country of participating bank, %

* Median bank’'s CET1 ratio

o lm declines from 12.4% to 8.3%
s - 75% of participant banks
ES o, experienced 0to 6
z 7 [ < percentage points impact on
£f o [T o i CET1 under the adverse
2 = R R-BRB-R-B BB nr T scenario

Sl GR CY BE IE PT NL LU IT DE LT AT LV FI FR MT SK ES EE

5 www._ech.europa.eu @
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APPENDIX 9

SUMMARY PRESENTATION OF CRH

Rit

CRH - Caisse de Refinancement de I’Habitat
Aaa Moody’s /| AAA Fitch

CRH was createdin 1985 by the French Government with State explicit guarantee as a centralagencyin order to
issue bondsin the specific legal framework of art 13 of law 85-685 of July 1985 for refinancing residential mortgage

home loans granted by the French banking system.
Today, instead of State guarantee, the French law grants to CRH’s bondholders a very strongprivilege on CRH’s

securedloans to banks.
No other agency ofthis kind had been set up until the creation of Société de Financement de 'Economie Frangaise

(SFEF)in October2008.

Presentation March 2015

http:/fwww.crh-bonds.com 1

Ch“ CRH mechanism

CRH bondholders

Bonds issued by CRH

Privilege claim on the notes in order to
cover the bonds

Notes issued by banks
and memorialising CRH’s loans

Pledge of housing loans covering the notes

Mortgage loans granted
by the banks

Individual home
Buyers
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QH_ CRH at glance

CRH is a Specialized Credit Institution. Its equity belongs to French Banks

CRH's only function is to fund French residential home loans granted by banks by issuing mortgage bonds in the
special legal framework oflaw n® 85-695 of July 1985. CRH doesn't charge any fee or deals.

CRH' loans to banks have the same characteristics as those of CRH's bonds. CRH'’ debt is served by French banks and
CRH's balance sheet duration is zero

Refinanced loans remain on the borrowing banks' balance sheet, but are pledged as collateral for covering CRH’s loans
to banks with a minimum of 25% over-collateralisation. |n the event of a borrowing bank default, provisions of French
law give CRH the full ownership of these loans, without any formality, notwithstanding any provision to the
contrary

Loans in its cover-pool have to be compliant with sociétés de crédit foncier's criteria but have to be also compliant with
CRH's additional criteria. CRH implementedinternal rules strengtheningthe credit quality for CRH’s bonds

CRH debtis rated Aaa by Moody'sand AAA by Fitch Ratings
CRH has a total outstanding debt over EUR 47,6 bn with several highly liquid bonds (as of December 315t 2014)

CRH was appointed to control debt’s service and collateral’'s administration of Société de Financement de I'Economie
Francaise (SFEF)from 15t January 2010to 31 December 2014

Because of the size ofits balance sheet, CRH operates under the supervision of E.C.B. since November 4™ 2014

QH_ Breakdown of CRH’s Equity (December 2014)

%

Crédit Agricole SA - Crédit Lyonnais 37.8
Crédit Mutuel CIC 31.4
Société Générale 14,2
BNP Paribas 9.6
BPCE 6.6
Others L

100.0

+ Every borrower is committed to become a shareholder of CRH with a part in CRH's equity equal linked the
borrowings amount

+  Furthermore, every borrower is committed to supply back up lines to CRH if CRH calls them and regulatory
equity if CRH needs

+  These shareholders-borrowers' global market share is roughly 90% of the French Mortgage Market
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CRH Economic Balance sheet (December 2014)

Assets €bn | Liabilities €bn
Promissory notes 47,6 | CRH mortgage bonds 47,6
Interests and other assets 0,9 | Interests and other liabilities 09
Deposits and CD 0,6 | CRH equity 0,6
TOTAL 49,1 | TOTAL 491

Because of the perfect matching between CRH bonds and promissory notes, CRH's balance sheet duration
is zero. CRH'’s debt service is done by the French Banking System. CRH is an actual “Pass-through”

g
CRH Bonds - Key Points
(December 2014)
Euro CRH’s curve — 20 Euro bonds, from 2015to 2025, totalling € 45,7 bn
Tssue Amt EUR bn Status
ICRH 2.50% 07,03/15 Il [Potential ropering
ICRH 4 10% 251015 30 o furthartaps
ICRH 2.60% 26/04/16 11 [Potential racpering
ICRH 3,75% 121216 13 o furthertaps
ICRH 3,50% 23 49 [Nofurthertaps
ICRH 4.30% 2 24 [Potential reopening
ICRH 4.00% 25/04/ 40 |Potential reopening
ICRH 5.00% 08,0419 19  [Potential raopening
ICRH 1,373% 25/10/19 0.8 |Potential reopenin
ICRH 3,73% 19/0220 20 [Potential recpening
ICRH 3,50% 22:06120 21 [Potential reopening
ICRH 3 90% 18/0121 18 |Potential recpening
ICRH 3.60% 13:00721 1.5 |Potential ropering
G5 G di ICRH 4.00% 100122 2.1 |Potential recpening
I s Tem 3T ICRH 4,00% 110672 20 [Potential reopering
FEIRRIIRR Y CRH 3.30% 23,0022 77 |Potemtialreopering
; ICRH 4.30% 2410223 29  [Potential reopenins
Today: CRH 3.00% 201033 14 |Potemial reoperinz
CRH 3 60% 08,0324 335 |Potential recpening
. " - " _r . . ICRH 2.4% 170123 15 [Potential racpening
. Compliant with “Capital Requirement Directive 2” - 10% Risk weighted by European [rotaL rur BoNDs 5.7
credit institutions [TOTAL CHF 2015 - 2025 &
S i [EN EUROS EQUIVALENT
. _Ellglhle for open-market operations of the Eurt_)pean Central Bank European TOTAL TUROSTQUIVALENT| 478
investors and European Covered Bond Council complement
. Benefit from the exception referred to Article 52.4 of the Directive on UCITS
6
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To sum up

CRH is very different from other credit institutions:
- CRH’s only function is to fund French home loans to individuals granted by banks
- CRH’s loans and borrowings have exactly same characteristics (rate, duration, currency)
- CRH’s debt service, from an economic point of view, is done by French Banking System

- CRH’s loans to banks are covered by the pledge of a portfolio compound with home loans to
individuals. These loans are kept by borrowing banks in their assets

- In the event of a borrowing bank default, CRH becomes fully owner of that portfolio
“notwithstanding any provision to the contrary “and” without any formality” because of provisions of
French law.

- CRH doesn’t charge any fee on deals

- CRH’s equity belongs to borrowing banks (mainly: Crédit Agricole, Crédit Mutuel, Société Générale,
BNPP, BPCE)

- Borrowing banks are committed to supply back up lines to CRH if CRH calls them
- Borrowing banks are committed to supply regulatory equity to CRH if CRH needs
- CRH never had losses write-downs or difficulties since its creation even in core phases of crisis

- Paradoxicaly, CRR regulation is impeding CRH’ activity

Contact & Disclaimer

Henry RAYMOND
Chief Executive Officer
Tel: +33 1 42 89 49 10
crh@crh-bonds.com

CRH Caisse de Refinancement de I’'Habitat
35 rue La Boetie
75008 PARIS

http://www.crh-bonds.com

This document has been prepared by CRH only for use in the roadshow preseniation. This document is confidential and is not te be repreduced by any person, nor fo
be distrnbuted to any person other than its original recipient. CRH doesnt take any responsibility for the use of these matenals by any person

This document does not constifute a prospectus for any bond offering (an "offerng”) and shall not be considered as an invitation fo invest.

Any decision fo buy or purchase bond should be only on the basis of the information contained in Prospectus. In particular, investors should pay special attention to any
risk factors described in prospectus

Only the contents of the French Prospectus are binding on CRH.

Some information contained herein and other information or matenal may include forward-looking statements based on current beliefs and expectations about future
events. These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject fo inherent nsks. uncerfainfies and assumptions about CRH. Those
events are uncertain, and their outcome may differ from current expectations, which may in fum significantly affect expected results. Actual results may differ materially
from those projected or implied in these forward-looking statements. Any forwards-looking statement contained in this document speaks as of the date of this document,
without any obligation from CRH o update.

This document is not an offer to purchase securties in the United States. Securities may not be sold in the United States absent regisiration or an exemption from

registration under the U.S. Secunties Adt of 1933, as amended. CRH does not intend to register any portion of any Offering in the United Siates or to conduct a public
Offering of securities in the United Stales.
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APPENDIX 10

CRH's mechanisn

CRH bondholders

Bonds issued by CRH ________________

notes in order to
cover the bonds

i Privilege claim on the

Notes issued by banks «--------- -
and memorialising the
CRH loans

Pledge of housing
loans portfolio
covering the notes

Banks

Housing loans granted «
by the banks

Individual home
Buyers
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